2022 YEARBOOK

Saint Thomas Church

IN THE CITY AND COUNTY OF NEW YORK

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Year in Review	4
The Clergy	20
The Staff	20
Parish House Staff	21
The Vestry	22
Committees of the Vestry	22
The Parish Register	27
Letter From the Investment Committee	28
The Treasurer's Report	29
Annual Appeal Summary	30
Statement of Financial Position	32
Statement of Activities	33
Saint Thomas Choir	34
Choir School Staff	35
Students	36
Parochial Organizations	37
Recorded Contributors to Saint Thomas Church 2022	40
Recorded Contributors to Saint Thomas Choir School 2022	51
Summary of Additions to Invested Funds 2022	56

List of Invested Funds	57
Planned Gifts	91
The Saint Thomas Planned Giving Society	92

Parish Mission Statement

'To worship, love, and serve Our Lord Jesus Christ through the Anglican tradition and our unique choral heritage.'

2022 YEAR IN REVIEW

The Year in Review

Introduction

I vowed to myself that I would not begin my introduction to the 2022 Year Book with any mention of the word pandemic and yet, three years since the first cases in China, the pandemic is not over and we are still struggling with new variants, new waves, and for those testing positive, a fresh period of self-isolation. Regular use of masks and hand-sanitizing has now become the norm and I wonder if we will ever move away from them. One of the scientific breakthroughs of 2022 was the ability to fine tune the vaccine to respond to the very infectious Omicron variant. Even having had more than one booster, people were still contracting the virus, though it no longer seems deadly to much of the vaccinated population. If you are reading this many years into the future, you may be amazed to read this is three years after the first cases of COVID were reported. As if Coronavirus was not enough, 2022 saw a sudden outbreak of monkeypox around the world but, even more worrying, an exponential rise in influenza as the winter set in, and in Europe, intensive care beds once again became scarce with elderly and immunocompromised people now affected by a strong strain of the flu.

Nevertheless, Saint Thomas began the year in good heart, and on-line numbers of worshippers continued to strengthen. One fascinating fact is that in December, 2021, 28,000 people joined us on-line for worship. In December, 2022, that number had risen to 38,000. More important still is the fact that the average viewing time for those 38,000 was 25 minutes. If someone had said to me in 2014 that, in addition to our in-person worshippers, we would have 38,000 visitors each spending 25 minutes in church, I would have found it hard to believe.

During 2022, we resumed more in-person gatherings, and the Pilgrims' class resumed in hybrid form. One of the unexpected positive things to have come out of the pandemic is the improvement in our on-line facilities. Following the success of Project Gabriel (our 11-camera livestream system) in the Church, and our hard-working communications team led by Mr. Blake Martin, both Sunday School and Adult Education were able to offer hybrid gatherings with people joining via zoom and in-person simultaneously. The Vestry and other committees made the decision to always offer hybrid meetings. Years ago, that was frowned upon – now it has become a way of life. That being said, I think it is still preferable for us to gather in-person whenever possible as one cannot truly 'read the room' or, indeed, people's faces when there are multiple faces on a flat screen.

A highlight of 2022 was the resumption of a fuller liturgical expression of our life together; processions through and around the church resumed after a two-year hiatus, and we had the first full observance of Holy Week for the first time since 2019. Nevertheless, the Omicron variant and a large number of infections meant that we were still careful about masking and social-distancing. Similarly, Concerts at Saint Thomas continued and enjoyed greater in-person participation. Although the restrictions placed on the Choir School lessened in 2022, it was still challenging for the choir to fully function as it had before the pandemic.

On the world's stage, the Russian invasion of Ukraine caused dismay and distress as thousands of people were displaced. The indiscriminate targeting of civilians and civilian infrastructure caused moral outrage all over the world, but by the end of the year, the Ukrainians had surprised most military and political commentators in the defense of their land. As we prepare to begin 2023, our hope is that common sense will prevail, and that some kind of peace can be found.

In May, Queen Elizabeth II celebrated a milestone in the history of world monarchies by celebrating her Platinum Jubilee; she was not only the world's oldest head of state, she was also the longest reigning monarch ever. The outpouring of joy in the Commonwealth of Nations was followed by an outpouring of deep sadness when Queen Elizabeth died four months later at the age of 96, a matter of days after appointing her fifteenth Prime Minister. A special service was held to commemorate her death, attracting over 15,000 online viewers, and it was the first time since the Pandemic began that large numbers of Ambassadors, Consul Generals, their staff and staff of the United Nations attended in–person services at Saint Thomas. Books of Remembrance were available in Church from her

death until the funeral, and long queues formed as people paid their respects.

In 2022 many countries began to fear an economic recession and people all over the world saw the cost of living rise along with interest rates. With the careful support of J.P. Morgan and our hard-working Investment Committee, we were pleased to have beaten our bench marks in spite of uncertainty in the markets.

However, in the United States, mass shootings became ever more common with 641 occurring during the year. On May 24, at Robb Elementary School in Uvalde, Texas, 19 children and two teachers were murdered and a further 17 others wounded. We placed the portraits of the children and the two teachers on the candle stand next to the Shrine of Our Lady of Fifth Avenue.

The Choir School Board of Trustees completed its first academic year and the Trustees were present at the Choir School Graduation for the first time.

The Pilgrims' Class started again in January with fifteen regular attendees in-person and ten on-line.

The Vestry introduced a new process by which exiting members of the Vestry met with the Rector and Wardens to share thoughts about their time on the Vestry, and advice for the future.

In February, a number of staff attended the Annual CEEP (Consortium of Endowed Episcopal Parishes) Conference in Atlanta. This was the first in-person conference since 2020. The Rector took part in a key-note conversation with the Most Reverend Hosam Naoum, Archbishop of Jerusalem.

In March, the Rector attended the first Leadership Retreat for the Venerable Order of Saint John, held in Los Angeles. He was elected to the Chapter of the American Priory and, later in the year, appointed Co-Chair of the New York Region. While he was in California, he preached at St. John's Cathedral, LA.

Holy Week saw a much-improved attendance in-person and we were delighted to have the larger-than-life former Archbishop of York, John Sentamu, as the visiting preacher. Sentamu preached seven sermons on the theme of 'living a Jesus Christ-shaped life' and, on Easter day to a packed church, had the whole congregation using their bodies to show how much Jesus loved them. The Three Hours' Devotion was preached by the Holy Week conductor of 2021, The Rev. Professor Katherine Grieb. Both preachers were well-received.

Immediately after Easter, the long-awaited and thrice postponed Parish Pilgrimage to the Holy Land finally took place. With our partners from the Living Church Foundation, we were a small group of 22, half of which were from Saint Thomas Church. Although this was smaller than the original planned group of pilgrims, it led to an extremely intimate and life-changing experience. With our knowledgeable Palestinian-Coptic guide, our very full program took us all over Galilee, to Jericho, Bethlehem, and Jerusalem. From Caesarea Philippi to Magdala, the scriptures were opened by the Bishop of Tennessee, and the Rector looked after the liturgies each day. We were warmly welcomed by the keepers of so many of the Holy Land's holy sites, and were privileged to be able to say Mass each day in quite different places - from the Episcopal Church in Nazareth to the Mount of the Beatitudes; from the Chapel of St. Peter in Gallicantu (where Peter denied Jesus three times) to St. George's Cathedral – the pilgrimage was extremely moving. Celebrating Mass in a Palestinian School in Jericho run by Franciscans was heart-breaking because of the poverty we saw, but we also saw great faith and cooperation between Jew, Muslim, and Christian. The wall surrounding Bethlehem was shocking, but waiting for two hours to see the Grotto in the Church of the Holy Nativity with a large group of Ethiopian Pilgrims was inspirational. Saving Mass in the Shepherd's Field cave and taking a fishing boat across Lake Galilee brought the Gospels to life and we all left changed, and grateful. The Pilgrimage coincided with the end of Passover, the end of Ramadan, and the Orthodox Easter Celebrations, so security as well as tensions in Jerusalem were high. Exploring the Temple Mount brought the psalms alive and the Rector spotted swallows still living in the ancient walls of the Temple complex: "Yea, the sparrow hath found her an house, and the swallow a nest where she may lay her young: even thy altars, O Lord of hosts, my King and my God." (Psalm 84). Particularly breathtaking was traveling to the Damascus Gate at midnight to see the amazing Palestinian market. While on pilgrimage, the members of the group who were members of the Order of St. John visited the Eye Hospital in Jerusalem and were warmly welcomed with a tour and meeting with the Chief Executive, Dr. Ahmad Ma'ali. We asked Dr. Ma'ali if there was anything specific that the hospital needed and we learned that their OCT machine (optical coherence tomography) was about to fail. An OCT

machine captures high quality images of the retina, and so we took this to the Grants Committee and were delighted that Saint Thomas decided to buy a new machine for the hospital.

On return, the Bishop of London visited to give the talk to the annual Church Club gathering. Bishop Mullaly then preached at Saint Thomas on the Sunday.

The Choirmasters' Conference resumed in-person and internationally renowned organist and pedagogue Todd Wilson was featured as the 2022 guest clinician, celebrating the legacy of Saint Thomas Church's former Organist and Master of the Choristers Gerre Hancock in the conference's opening recital and keynote lecture.

The Rector and one or two parishioners were invited by Archbishop Caccia, the Permanent Representative of the Holy See to the United Nations, to attend the Pathway to Peace Gala at which the King and Queen of Jordan were honored. King Abdullah spoke powerfully and movingly about the road to peace and how hard that road was in the Middle East. He also spoke of the role of the Sacred Sites of the three Abrahamic Religions, and those of us who had recently been on pilgrimage were heartened.

At the beginning of June, the Rector was invited by the Sub Dean of the Chapel Royal to join the Royal Household for Queen Elizabeth II's Platinum Jubilee celebrations. They sat in a grandstand to watch the Trooping of the Color, and then attended a special luncheon. The Rector attended a dinner for the 1660 Society that celebrates the restoration of Anglican liturgy and music to the Chapel Royal with the restoration of the monarchy under Charles II. On the Sunday, Canon Turner preached at a special Evensong to celebrate the Platinum Jubilee in the Chapel Royal of St. James's palace, Westminster.

During the early summer, interviews were held for the post of Head Verger and Theologian in Residence. During his annual leave over the summer, the Rector and Mother Turner visited Fra. John Dunlap, who had recently been appointed Lieutenant of the Grand Master in the Sovereign Order of Malta in Rome. They were given a tour of the Palace, and the Order's Church and Villa.

In September, the Dean of Westminster had to cut short his first ever visit because of the death of Her Late Majesty Queen Elizabeth II.

A special Evensong was also held to celebrate the life of Martha Dodge, followed by a gathering at the University Club.

Mr. Benjamin Sheen made his first visit back to Saint Thomas since becoming Sub Organist of Christ Church, Oxford, and gave a splendid organ recital to coincide with the release of his first organ CD recorded on the Miller-Scott Organ.

In September, we welcomed a Seminarian on placement from St. Stephen's House, Oxford. Ms. Josie Godfrey spent a month shadowing Fr. Schultz, and engaging in pastoral care and children and family activities, and being fully immersed in the liturgical life of the parish.

In October, the choristers had their first tour since the pandemic! A very successful few days was held in the Midwest with concerts in Madison and Chicago. The Rector went in advance and had meetings at Nashotah House Theological Seminary. On the Sunday, the boys sang in a Trebles Festival in St. James' Cathedral and the Rector preached.

On St. Edward the Confessor's Feast Day which is also the Feast Day of Blessed Gerard – one of the saints of the Order of Malta and the other Johannine Orders – the Rector was invited with members of the parish who are also members of the Order of St. John to attend a joint service of Vespers at St. Vincent Ferrer Church in the New York.

A special event was held at the Rectory to honor Deacon Acella Lee from the Anglican Church of Korea. Members of EAST (Episcopal Asian Supper Table) attended and Bishop Shin and Deacon Acella each gave a talk,

The Annual Investiture of the Order of St. John was held in Houston, Texas, and a number of parishioners attended.

The October concert saw not one, but two world premieres and two pianos used in a concert, probably for the first time at Saint Thomas.

At All Saintstide, the Dean of St. Patrick's Cathedral, Dublin, Ireland, visited and preached at Saint Thomas. A reception was held at the Rectory for parishioners with Irish ancestry, and some local clergy of Irish descent, and members of the Irish Center in Brooklyn, also attended. It was a very happy event.

The first Young Adult gathering since the pandemic started was held at the Rectory on November 4 and very well attended, not least because the Young Adult Group accidentally sent the invitation to the Diocesan group! It was rather like the feeding of the 5000! But it went down well and re-energized the group.

Another first was the Senior Lunch held on November 9 – these had been hugely missed by our senior members throughout the past three years of pandemic. It was good to entertain our most loyal and faithful members once again.

Thanksgiving felt a little more familiar this year, and was quickly followed by a splendid Advent Procession with some beautiful music. Also, on Advent Sunday, we welcomed the Reverend Dr. Luigi Gioia as our new Theologian in Residence. Of international renown, and a former Roman Catholic Benedictine whose last teaching position was at St. Anselmo's Pontifical University in Rome, Fr. Gioia immediately won the hearts of parishioners with his quiet and scholarly approach to teaching, and his beautiful preaching, singing, and liturgical presence. We welcomed his husband, Claudio, and wished them both well as they began a new life 'across the pond.'

On December 3, the Diocese held an election for a Bishop Coadjutor to succeed Bishop Dietsche who had announced his intention to retire in 2024. Friend of the parish and local parish priest, The Reverend Matt Heyd, Rector of Heavenly Rest, was elected.

December saw a resumption of concerts and social events. Sadly, the Rector contracted COVID just before the second Messiah concert and the much-awaited Parish Guild Party had to be quickly moved from the Rectory to Andrew Hall. The same was true of the Midtown Clericus Christmas party.

A splendid Christmas Party was held for the Sunday School and the Noble Singers after the Crèche Service; held in the parish House, there was hardly any room to move!

Because of the success of the special Evensong to mark the death of Queen Elizabeth, a number of Ambassadors and Consul Generals asked if there could be a special Carol Service. On Tuesday, December 20, the shorter service of Lessons and Carols was followed by a reception in Andrew Hall attended by around 100 diplomatic service members from the Commonwealth of Nations.

The Year came to a close with very large congregations for Christmas and, as mentioned earlier, a significant increase in on-line attendance.

WORSHIP NOTES

2022 saw a more regular pattern of weekday worship. The daily Shrine Prayers continued to be very important, particular to on-line members of the congregation, and requests for prayers came in via the website daily. People were able to request candles to be lit in church for an intention and eight-day candles could be purchased to which we affixed the name(s) or prayer request. The daily Mass after Shrine Prayers continued to be the mainstay of our weekday worship. On Saturdays, a priest was available to hear Confessions, give spiritual advice, and the ministry of healing. During Choir School term times, Choral Evensong was offered regularly during the week, Festal Evensong on the eves of feasts, and a solemn eucharist on feast days. Mo. Lee-Pae began a service of Contemplative Prayer on Fridays in the Resurrection Chapel. Sunday worship continued and on Advent Sunday, an early said Mass (Rite 1) was re-introduced at the slightly earlier time of 7:45 a.m. so that adequate time was left for the preparations for the 9 a.m. Sung Mass. The 9 a.m. Mass continued to grow in number as did the Noble Singers. The youth acolyte guild also grew and children and young people regularly participated in readings and leading the Prayers of the People. On the second Sunday of the month a Sung Eucharist in Korean Language was introduced.

An Epiphany Sequence of music and readings was held on Sunday, January 16 and repeated on Tuesday, January 18.

In the Week of Christian Unity, we welcomed the Permanent Observer to the Holy See, Archbishop Gabriele Caccia, to

preach at a special Evensong on Sunday, January 23.

Choral Mattins and Eucharist was held on January 30 and October 30.

Since exposition and benediction had been well received last year, Evensong and Benediction was held on Sunday, February 6.

On Sunday, February 20, Bishop Andrew St. John celebrated the 50th anniversary of his priesting and presided at the 11 a.m. Mass. Dean McGowan from Berkeley Theological Seminary preached.

On Ash Wednesday, Ashes were re-introduced and made available at all services and in the church all day. Confession times were also expanded. During Lent, silent prayer before he Blessed Sacrament was held all afternoon with a special intention of praying for the end of the war in Ukraine. On Fridays, Come and sing Compline allowed the congregation to form the choir. The Way of the Cross and Mass was celebrated each Saturday in Lent; the stations acting as the Liturgy of the Word and the Prayers of the People, the service concluded appropriately in the Resurrection Chapel with the 'Fifteenth' Station – the Resurrection – and the offertory of the Mass.

On the Sundays of Lent, there was a sermon series at Evensong titled:

A Grain of Wheat - Martyrs of our Time

i: Maximilian Kolbe - Fr. Schultz

ii: Elizabeth of Russia - The Rev. Susan Hill, Associate Rector of Holy Apostles, NYC

iii: Won-Chang Lee & Jun-Kyoung Moon- Mo. Lee-Pae

iv: Manche Masemola - The Rev. Canon George Brandt, Retired Rector of St. Michael's, NYC

v: Martin Luther King, Jr. – Fr. Patrick Cheng

A full observance of Holy Week was observed this year. We welcomed the Rt. Rev. and Rt. Hon John Sentamu, recently retired Archbishop of York, who preached on Palm Sunday, Holy Monday, Holy Tuesday, Maundy Thursday, Good Friday, the Easter Vigil, and Easter Day at 11 a.m.. His theme was "Living a Jesus Christ shaped life." The gentlemen sang the evening Masses on Holy Monday and Holy Tuesday, and the office of Tenebrae on Holy Wednesday. The full choir sang the Evening Mass of the Lord's Supper on Maundy Thursday. The Three Hours' Devotion on Good Friday was preached by the Rev. Dr. Katherine Grieb who had led Holy Week in 2022 with the gentlemen of the Choir. The full choir resumed the singing of the Triduum and three services on Easter Day. In 2022, instead of a sermon at Evensong on Easter Day, a procession was held with carols and prayers offered at three stations: the Font, the Easter Garden, and the Shrine of our Lady of Fifth Avenue.

On Sunday, May 22, Bishop Dietsche made his first visit for some time to confirm and receive new members into the Episcopal Church. On the same evening, a special Evensong was held to honor all involved in the Funeral Industry.

A Valedictory Service was held on Trinity Sunday, June 12 at which the Head of School gave a charge to the Class of 2022 and awarded them their silver crosses.

On the Feast of Corpus Christi, Sunday, June 19, Solemn Evensong was followed by a Procession of the Blessed Sacrament and Benediction. We believe that this is the first time this has happened in Saint Thomas.

The Summer Feast Days program continued following its success in 2021. Each Solemn Eucharist was followed by cheese and wine in the Narthex:

Wednesday, June 29 – St. Peter and St. Paul, Apostles Friday, July 22 – St. Mary Magdalene Monday, July 25 – St. James the Apostle Wednesday, August 24 – St. Bartholomew the Apostle Thursday, September 8 – The Nativity of the Blessed Virgin Mary A full observance of All Saints and All Souls was held with services on the actual days and on All Saints' Sunday and Remembrance Sunday. The Patriotic and Historical Societies of New York attended a special Evensong and act of remembrance on Sunday, November 13.

The full choir sang on Thanksgiving Day.

Advent Sunday was marked with the singing of the Litany in procession, and the Advent Procession was held on Sunday, November 27 at 4 p.m. and Tuesday, November 29 at 5:30 p.m. The shorter version of Lessons and Carols was held on Wednesday, December 14 followed by a lunch for seniors, and Tuesday, December 20 attended for the first time by Ambassadors, Consul Generals, and their staff and staff from the United Nations followed by a reception in Andrew Hall. A full service of Nine Lessons and Carols was held on Sunday, December 18 and on Christmas Eve at 4 p.m. The Blessing of the Crèche this year had music provided by the Noble Singers and the Grade 8 choristers. Midnight Mass was kept at the earlier time of 10:30 p.m. On Christmas Day, there was a said Mass at 9 a.m. in addition to the Solemn Eucharist at 11 a.m.

On Sunday, March 13, the Rector preached at St. John's Cathedral, Los Angeles.

The Rector preached Trinity Church, Wall Street, New York on Saturday, May 7, 2022 at 11 a.m. on the occasion of the 25th Anniversary of the Life Profession of the Rev. Sr. Marie Promise Atelon SSM.

On Sunday, June 5, the Rector preached in the Chapel Royal, St. James's palace for a special Evensong to commemorate the Platinum Jubilee of HM Queen Elizabeth II.

On Sunday, October 9, the Rector preached at St. James' Cathedral, Chicago as part of a Trebles' Festival attended by our own choristers.

Visiting Preachers during 2021:

The Rev. Stuart Kenworthy, January 9

The Most Reverend Gabriele Giordano Caccia, Permanent Observer of the Holy See to the United Nations, January 23 The Very Reverend Andrew McGowan, Dean of the Berkeley Divinity School at Yale, on the 50th anniversary of the priesting of Bishop Andrew St. John, February 20

The Reverend Susan Hill, Associate Rector of Holy Apostles, Chelsea, March 13

The Reverend Canon George Brandt, March 27

The Rev. Patrick Cheng, Theologian in Residence, April 3

The Rt. Rev & Rt. Hon. John Sentamu, Holy Week Preacher 2022 Former Archbishop of York, Holy Week Preacher 2022 The Reverend Katherine Grieb, Meade Professor in Biblical Interpretation at Virginia Theological Seminary, Three Hours Devotion Preacher 2022

The Rev. Dr. Brandt Montgomery, Chaplain of St. James' School, Hagers Town, Maryland, April 24

The Rt. Rev. Dame Sarah Mullally, Bishop of London, May 1

The Rt. Rev. Andrew Dietsche, Diocesan Bishop of the Diocese of New York, Sunday, May 22, Confirmations and Receptions.

Christopher Seeley, Head of School, June 12, (Valedictory)

The Rev. Canon K. Jeanne Person, Canon for Pastoral Care August 14

The Rt. Rev. Andrew Dietsche, Diocesan Bishop of the Diocese of New York, Sunday, May 22, Confirmations and Receptions.

Josie Godfrey, Seminarian from St. Stephen's House, Oxford, October 2

The Rev. Canon Harry Kraus, October 2, Feast of the Dedication

The Rev. Michael Bird, Vicar of Trinity Church Wall Street, November 13, Remembrance Sunday

The Rt. Rev. Dorsey McConnell, 8th Bishop of Pittsburgh (Retired), December 4

ADULT EDUCATION

The Adult Education of the parish was ably looked after by Fr. Moretz throughout 2022, in spite of him having taken on extra responsibilities. During the year, we searched for a new priest to take on the ministry of adult education and

formation full-time. On Advent Sunday, 2022, we welcomed The Rev. Dr. Luigi Gioia and his husband, Claudio, among us.

Lectures

Theologian in Residence, the Rev. Dr. Patrick Cheng, presented our Spring Theology Lecture on Thursday, June 2, entitled "One, Holy, Catholic, and Apostolic: Anglican and Episcopal Ecclesiology." Among other things, Fr. Cheng discussed the principle of conciliarism and the polity of The Episcopal Church as expressed in its upcoming 80th General Convention, which was to be held in Baltimore in July.

The Reverend Dr. Kara Slade, Associate Rector of Trinity Church in Princeton and Canon Theologian of the Diocese of New Jersey, delivered the Saint Thomas Church's 2022 Fall Theology Lecture on Tuesday, November 8, 2022. Titled, "Christ the Center of Time," it was based on Dr. Slade's recent book The Fullness of Time: Jesus Christ, Science, and Modernity published by Wipf and Stock.

Theology Classes on Sundays at 10am:

January 9: A Short History of the Anglican Church in Korea with the Reverend Prisca Lee-Pae

January 16, 23, 30, February 6: The Treasures of Saint Thomas: The Whitefriars' Glass with Fr. Moretz

February 13: Preparing for Our Lenten Journey with Fr. Mark Schultz

February 20: The Christian Exodus – an exploration of the Holy Week Liturgies with the Rector

February 27: The Treasures of Saint Thomas: The Whitefriars' Glass with Fr. Moretz

Lenten Adult Education Series

"No Greater Love" - An Exploration of Christian Art and the Passion

Over the course of Lent, the clergy of Saint Thomas Church shared their love of fine works of art that convey the rich meaning of the suffering love of Christ during his Passion.

March 6 – The Rector – Stanley Spencer (1891–1959)

March 13 - Fr. Mark Schultz - Benedetto Bonfigli (1420-1496)

March 20 – Fr. Moretz – Merisi da Caravaggio (1571–1610).

March 27 – Mo. Prisca Lee-Pae – Ki-Chang Kim (1913–2001)

April 3 – The Rector (images of the Pieta and poetry)

May 1, 8, 15, 29, June 5, 12, 19, 26, July 3, 10, 17, 24:

The Gospel of Mark: Twelve Weeks with a Master of Surprise with the Rev. Dr. Katherine Grieb, director of the Center for Anglican Communion Studies, at Virginia Theological Seminary. Looking at the Greek text.

August 14, 21, 28:

Oxford Apostles - the story of the Catholic Revival in the Church of England and the Anglican Communion. the Rev. Canon Robin Ward, Principal of St. Stephen's House, Oxford.

September 4, 11, 18, and November 13:

Treasures of Saint Thomas: A Community in Stone with Fr. Moretz

September 25: The English Art of Change Ringing with Ms. Josie Godfrey (seminarian)

October 2 and 9: Liturgy and Social Justice with Mo. Lee-Pae

October 16 and 23: Powers, Principalities, and Bodiless Hosts with the Fr. Mark Schultz

October 30: Cathedral Ministry Presentation by the Very Rev. William Morton, Dean of St. Patrick's Cathedral, Dublin, Ireland

November 20: Poetry as a Way of Attentiveness with the Dr. David Mahan of the Institute of Sacred Music at Yale. December 4: Introductory Interview with Fr. Gioia and Fr. Moretz.

December 11: Handel's "Messiah" and the Spirit of Advent with Fr. Gioia

December 18: Advent and Advocacy with Fr. Gioia

Bible Study Group

The class resumed at 1:30 pm on Friday, January 14. This meetings was the last session with Fr. Bennett before his departure to Edinburgh. Starting January 21, Fr. Mark Brown led the study group. From May, Fr. Schultz led the group for the rest of the year.

Fr. Brown Topic:

"Mysteries of Light": the Baptism of Christ.

Fr. Schultz Topic:

"Christ and Ekklesia: John's Wondrous Vision of Light."

PASTORAL

Baptisms: 23; Confessions: 53; Weddings: 7; Funerals: 19; Communion Visits: 68.

We often read in Holy Scripture about holy ground—Moses at the Burning Bush, told to remove his shoes because the ground on which he stands is holy, provides the archetypal example of encounter with holy ground. And it is encounter that is important to what makes holy ground holy. What every story of holy ground richly demonstrates is that the ground is revealed to be holy because that's where encounter with God occurs.

This is precisely what pastoral care is about: seeking encounter with God in home and hospital and discovering in the pastoral relationship; in prayer; in counsel; in burdens, pain or doubts shared; in Eucharist given and received, that we stand on holy ground—that, indeed, the holiest conceivable ground is the ground of the human heart where the Eternal Word of God is joyfully born anew in any human soul willing to conceive him.

While the Word is joyfully born in us, it is not always the case that the Word is always sought in the midst of joy. Sometimes there are birth pangs. Sometimes the circumstances under which we are being brought to the joy God desires for us are difficult or even dire. But always, God desires to be born in us.

While visits to the homebound and hospitalized in 2022 increased as the pandemic continued to wane (our number of visits was well above the average of the visits made in the previous three years, bested only by the number of visits made in 2019), the frequency of Baptisms and Weddings have returned to pre-pandemic levels. As one might expect in the third year of a pandemic that has claimed the lives of so many, the number of funerals is higher than in 2019, though at 50% higher, it is likely the case that many of our departed loved ones have yet to receive the funeral rites that the corporal works of mercy urge us to celebrate. From all of this, a couple things are clear, particularly given the lower number of confessions made compared to pre-pandemic years. The first is this: people remain reluctant to receive a visit and Holy Communion from a priest, remain reluctant to make their confession, reluctant to be physically present to each other. This may be due to residual Covid fears, or a general reluctance to disclose one's pain or predicament, even to a sympathetic priest. My hope is that this reluctance, regardless of reason, will gradually fade.

The second insight is this: pastoral care still remains, in the thinking of most, something that's needed only in crisis. And while, yes, it's true, we're there in times of crisis, progress in faith, prayer, and the ongoing discipline of giving birth to the Eternal Word: these things do not end when crisis recedes. We do not cease to be called to holy ground. We are always being called to fall more deeply in love with Jesus. My desire for the ministry of pastoral care at Saint Thomas is that more people, in whatever circumstance they may find themselves, will avail themselves of the ministry, so that, more and more, together, in and as community, we may find the holy ground we seek.

YOUNG ADULTS

After a brief leadership hiatus at the start of 2022 and meetings with both outgoing and incoming leaders, Saint Thomas' ministry to Young Adults came roaring back with a new seasonal outreach brochure outlining plans for fellowship, spiritual growth, and renewal in the 2022-23 program year.

A robust November kickoff event hosted at the Rectory by the Rector and Mother Turner brought Bishop Shin and young folks from around the diocese to share in the celebration of the revived group. A monthly Sunday brunch gathering quickly created a sense of community, togetherness, and friendship amongst the members of the group, many of whom were new to Saint Thomas and planning for Baptism, Confirmation, or Reception in the New Year.

CHILDREN AND FAMILY MINISTRY

From January – June, Mother Turner and Ms. Floyd, with the assistance of Miranda Perkins (a longtime volunteer), prepared our weekly gathering for Sunday School after the 9 a.m. Mass. Mrs. Kellerman-Filsell continued to bring an enriching musical component to this weekly time for our 3–12 year-olds and Mrs. Morfi continued to support children and families in their involvement with Parish and Manhattan-wide ecumenical Outreach Opportunities, such as a special collection for Ukraine, the Angel Tree, and Easter Basket projects. As the summer term ended, we bade farewell to the Perkins family as they emigrated to the UK after many years of commitment to Saint Thomas.

In September 2022, Sunday School resumed and our Family Feasts returned as enjoyable opportunities for breakfast and fellowship for all ages. During this term we started to see more families at church in light of the changes in vaccination availability for younger children. Ms. Tricia Powell and Ms. Fiona Tian worked as part of the Children and Family Ministries team in both the Nursery and Sunday School. Families also joined together for some of our all-age activities, such as our annual Central Park Picnic and Palm Cross making, Christmas Card making for the homebound, as well as Advent Wreath Making. Members of staff and parishioners supported both our feasts and weekly lessons throughout the term. This included a visit from Saint Francis, Saint Nicholas, and Pamela Lewis, who gave her annual Advent presentation to the children and continued to prepare and encourage our Youth Lectors and younger readers for various services.

A Children and Families e-newsletter to parents and supporters continued to be mailed out each week detailing a wide range of gatherings throughout the year.

Since the introduction of the 9 a.m. Mass, in September 2021, and the development of a choir for local children age 5–12 called the Noble Singers, more children and families became involved in our worship. The choir continued to be directed by Choir Director and Cantor, Mrs. Rebecca Kellerman-Filsell (Music Associate for Children and Youth), with children participating in one of two weekly rehearsals and a Sunday rehearsal at 8 a.m. supported by Mother Turner, Mr. Adach, and Ms. Tian. In addition to supporting the 9 a.m. liturgy each Sunday morning in term time, twelve Noble Singers Choristers received their RSCM white ribbons on Laetare Sunday, while many participated in Choir Camp, a new September serving as both a musical introduction for new comers and a new term reunion for singers. Some of our singers also led a Stations of the Cross service for families on Good Friday, and all participated in leading the Annual Crèche service with Grade 8 students from the school. This was followed by a Children and Families Festive party in the Parish House.

PAN-ASIAN MINISTRY - "Belonging & Empowering"

Pan-Asian Ministry aims to give Asians a sense of belonging to the Church and to provide pastoral care appropriate to their special status as minorities and marginalized people, especially in the situation of hate crimes against Asians that have become more severe after the COVID-19 pandemic.

There are various challenges in running this gathering, such as generational differences due to wide age range from 20s to 70s, cultural differences as many are from different countries – Malaysia, China, Korea, Hong Kong, Japan, Taiwan, etc. and difference in mindset depending on the length of time lived in the United States. Providing a safe place to share their life stories and grow together in faith is a meaningful ministry regardless of its scale.

Mo. Lee-Pae started Contemplative Prayer every Friday with Taizé chants, Centering Prayer, and Lectio-Divina, geared toward Asians but open to all. A monthly Pan-Asian fellowship program was introduced that was also occasionally opened to non-Asians. It was the beginning stage of Pan-Asian Ministry, so gatherings were more focused on building fellowship, but programs have gradually turned toward spiritual growth. Some of the programs that were offered last year are listed below:

Celebrating Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage Month @MoMA - May 29

Sacred Words & Tea Ceremony "Warm your Spirit!" - June 26

Picnic in Central Park "Eat together! Walk together! Laugh together!" - October 30

Rosary Craft "Make your own Rosary!" - November 27

Rosary Prayer at the Resurrection Chapel – December 18 at 1 pm

There were ministerial collaborations with EAST (Episcopal Asian Supper Table) and EDNY (Episcopal Diocese of New York), notably a Welcome Reception for Deacon Acella Lee, Director of the I Am Spring Center for child victims of domestic violence and sexual abuse in Daejeon, South Korea, hosted by Saint Thomas Church at the rectory on Oct. 15, 2022. Mo. Lee-Pae has been working with and supporting the fellowship of EAST with Saint Thomas Church as its recognized base for ministry.

OUTREACH

The Ecumenical Outreach Partnership between Saint Patrick's Cathedral, Fifth Avenue Presbyterian Church and Saint Thomas Church, known as the EOP – continued its ministry to our homeless neighbors and those in need in 2022. Most requests for services came in the form of basic needs (food, clothing, and toiletries), however, clients also had access to more in–depth services, including counseling with a social worker and assistance with housing, legal and health concerns.

2022 brought one major change to EOP – Omicron! This Impacted several EOP staff and resulted in a reduced capacity operation for the first three weeks of January. Once the full team reassembled in the end of January the program thrived. EOP provided lunch twice a week, as well as spiritual care. Clients were successfully placed in the following housing facilities, Safe Horizon, Oliveri, Breaking Ground and Queen of Peace. Clients self-disclose demographic data during the intake process. Most of the clients served were over 50 years of age and homeless.

"Verily I say unto you, inasmuch as ye have done it unto one of the least of these my brethren, ye have done it unto me." (Matt. 25: 40)

GRANTS

Anglican Center in Rome	2,500.00
Anglican Centre at Santiago de Compostela Project	10,000.00
Berkeley at Yale Divinity School	10,000.00
Businesses Ending Slavery and Trafficking (BEST)	5,000.00
Episcopal Charities*	10,000.00
General Theological Seminary	10,000.00
Holy Apostles Soup Kitchen*	25,000.00
Nashotah House	10,000.00
National Compassion Fund, Buffalo 5/14 Survivors Fund	1,600.00
Rural & Migrant Ministry, Inc	5,000.00
Saint Ann's Church of Morrisania	5,000.00
The Doula Program to Accompany and Comfort	5,000.00
The St. John of Jerusalem Eye Hospital Group, Jerusalem	75,000.00
UA3, Inc.	5,000.00
Ukraine crisis Response Fund, Episcopal Relief and Development	25,000.00
Washington Heights Choir School*	5,000.00
WHIN Music Community Charter School	3,900.00

^{*}Recipients marked with an asterisk were paid via a pass-through grant to Episcopal Charities.

\$20,000 was set aside for the Saint Thomas Soup Kitchen, once it resumes.

MUSIC NOTES

The **47th Annual Conference for Choirmasters and Organists** was held from May 1 – 3 with organist and pedagogue Todd Wilson, Head of the Organ Department at The Cleveland Institute of Music, and Director of Music at Trinity Episcopal Cathedral in Cleveland, Ohio, as guest clinician. The conference celebrated the music and legacy of Saint Thomas Church's former Organist and Master of the Choristers Gerre Hancock in the conference's opening recital and keynote lecture. Other presenters included Dr. Jeremy Filsell, The Reverend Canon Carl F. Turner, Nicolas Haigh, and Christopher Seeley. Thirty-three organists and choirmasters from around the country attended the conference.

The Saint Thomas Girl Chorister Course was held from July 23 – 31. The 2022 STGCC featured Katherine Dienes-Williams, Organist and Master of the Choristers at Guildford Cathedral, as Guest Director of Music, as well as Janet Yieh as Guest Organist, and Jacqueline Horner-Kwiatek as guest voice teacher. Jeremy Filsell and Nicolas Haigh served as course organists. Twenty-nine choristers from around the country attended the course and sang 5 choral services at the church during their week in residence.

The boy choristers travelled to sing concerts in the **Midwest from October 5-10**. In Madison WI, they performed concerts in Luther Memorial Church, and in Chicago IL, in St. James' Cathedral. In Chicago, they featured in a Treble Festival at St. James Cathedral which included 40 choristers from the Chicago area. The tour was the first in two years due to pandemic restrictions.

In February Jeremy Filsell (organ) and the Saint Thomas Choir of Men and Boys released the album J. S. Bach: Clavier-Übung III on Signum Records. On this recording, the choir sang the Lutheran chorales which precede Bach's organ settings and paraphrases. Jeremy Filsell recorded the organ works on all five organs of the church. In April, Jeremy Filsell released an album on the Raven label, of organ works composed by Michel Boulnois (1907–2008). Filsell played the 2018 Dobson Organ at Saint Thomas Church, New York on this, the first solo recording of the organ.

The **Concert Series** in 2022 presented the following:

February 3, 2022 | Thursday at 7:30 PM

AN EVENING WITH NICO MUHLY

Daniel Moody, Countertenor; David Fung, Piano; John Ramseyer, Tenor; Jeremy Filsell, Piano; Nico Muhly, Composer

March 29 & 31, 2022 | Tuesday at 7:30 PM Saint Thomas Church & Thursday at 7:30 PM

Trinity Church Wall Street

J.S. BACH ST. MATTHEW PASSION

The Saint Thomas Choir of Men and Boys & The Choir of Trinity Wall Street & Trinity Youth Chorus

New York Baroque Incorporated & Trinity Baroque Orchestra;

Thomas Cooley, *Evangelist*; Jonathan Woody, Jesus; Dana Marsh, *Conductor*

HOLY WEEK MUSICAL MEDITATIONS

April 11, 2022 | Monday from 6:45-7:45 PM

PAMELA DECKER THE SEVEN LAST WORDS AND TRIUMPH OF CHRIST Jeremy Filsell, Organ

April 12, 2022 | Tuesday from 6:45-7:45 PM

PORTRAITS OF A GRIEVING MOTHER: VIVALDI STABAT MATER Ryland Angel, Countertenor with Queens Baroque

Ensemble; Nicolas Haigh, Organ

April 28, 2022 | Thursday at 7:30 PM

THE ORGAN MUSIC OF GERRE HANCOCK Todd Wilson, Organ

May 12, 2022 | Thursday at 7:30 PM

THE KING SHALL REJOICE:

HEROIC MUSIC OF HANDEL AND PURCELL

The Saint Thomas Choir of Men and Boys New York Baroque Incorporated

Sarah Rose Taylor, Mezzo-soprano

Nicolas Haigh, Organ

Jeremy Filsell, Conductor

September 22, 2022 | Thursday at 7:30 PM

BENJAMIN SHEEN: IN LONDON TOWN Benjamin Sheen, Organ

October 15, 2022 | Saturday at 3:00 and 7:00 PM

FRANCK: THE COMPLETE WORKS FOR ORGAN Joseph Arndt, Organ

Adam Pajan, Organ

October 27, 2022 | Thursday at 7:30 PM

TANDEM: TWO PIANOS, TWO PREMIERES

The Saint Thomas Choir of Men and Boys with Benjamin Howard, Baritone

Nicolas Haigh, Organ

Francis Pott, Piano

Jeremy Filsell, Piano and Conductor

December 6 and 8, 2022 | Tuesday and Thursday at 7:30 PM

G. F. HANDEL: MESSIAH

The Saint Thomas Choir of Men and Boys with

New York Baroque Incorporated – Wen Yang, Artistic Director Leslie Fagan, Soprano

Sarah Rose Taylor, Mezzo-soprano

Rufus Müller, *Tenor*

Bryan Murray, Baritone

 ${\it Jeremy Filsell}, {\it Conductor}$

December 15, 2022 | Thursday at 5:30 PM

CHRISTMAS ON FIFTH AVENUE

The Boys of the Saint Thomas Choir with Bridget Kibbey, Harp

Nicolas Haigh, Organ

Jeremy Filsell, Conductor

Sunday Afternoon Organ and Chamber music Recitals 2022 *denotes Chamber Music

January 23 Janet Yieh, NYC

January 30 Jeremy Filsell

February 6 *Chad Kranak (*Tenor*) with Jeremy Filsell (*Piano*)

February 13 Nathaniel Gumbs, Yale University

February 20 Raymond Nagem, NYC

February 27 Johnny Vaughn, Greenwich, CT March 6 Ali Mammadoff, NYC (*Piano*)

March 13 Jeremy Filsell, Messiaen Méditations sur le Mystère de la Sainte Trinité

March 20 Mark Pacoe, New York, NY March 27 Jamie Hitel, Greenwich, CT

April 3 *Margaret Carpenter Haigh, Madeline Healey, Nicolas Haigh

April 17 Irvin Peterson, (Saxophone) and Nicolas Haigh, (Organ)

May 1 Todd Wilson, Cleveland, OH

May 8 Christopher Keady, San Francisco, CA
May 15 Thomas Sheehan, Washington, DC

September 25 Käthe Wright Kaufman, Atlanta, GA

October 2 *Les Canards Chantants
October 9 Phoon Yu, Singapore

October 16 Patrick Pope, Charlotte, NC
October 23 Giovanni Solinas, Germany
October 30 Seth Bott, Salt Lake City, UT

November 6 *Margaret Carpenter Haigh (Soprano) and Billy Simms (Theorbo and Lute)

November 20 Nicolas Haigh

December 4 Amelie Held, New York, NY

December 11 Maks Adach

INSTITUTIONAL ADVANCEMEMENT

Development

The Office of Institutional Advancement was comprised of the fundraising team of Bruce Smith, Chief Advancement Officer, Adam MacDonald, Director of Development, Amy Cheresnowski, Database Manager, and Wee Tai Hom, Development Associate, as well as the Communications team of Blake Martin, Director of Communications and Production, Avery Griffin, Communications Manager and Audio Engineer, and Dalton Cheatham, Communications Associate, who began in June 2022. Ben Koch moved on from Saint Thomas to pursue his dream of working in sports media after Easter. Michael Stark started in November 2022 as Administrative Assistant, also working in that capacity with Fr. Moretz. Together, this team is charged with telling the story of Saint Thomas Church and Choir School to increase engagement, broaden access to our ministries of liturgy, music, theology, and education, and to raise funds for the support of our mission. The OIA team accomplishes these goals through direct outreach to our community of donors, including one-on-one meetings, social gatherings, and excellence in the livestream presentations of our worship services and concerts.

Annual Appeal Chair Eric Blair-Joannou and Co-Chair Darren Littlejohn led the 2023 campaign, supported by Adam

MacDonald. The Committee met at the House of the Redeemer for an in-person stewardship retreat facilitated by Fr. Schultz. Bruce Smith helped to coordinate plans for the Saint Thomas Bicentennial, working closely with Bicentennial Committee Chair Kazie Metzger Harvey. Plans including a bicentennial exhibition, a gala, educational opportunities, and a tour of the Choir to the UK in 2024. Mr. Smith and Mr. MacDonald began a feasibility study for a potential capital campaign. Feasibility study interviews continued into 2023 and the report will be made to the vestry in that year. Amy Cheresnowski continued to lead the full implementation of the TouchPoint Database system. She helped clergy and lay staff make full use of the software event and class registration, volunteer information, as well as for contributions and vestry elections. One notable improvement is that all Saint Thomas donors have access to their donor records and are able to download their annual statements at any time. Many donors took advantage of the opportunity to check their progress toward the pledge completion or for tax purposes. Wee Tai Hom cleaned up hundreds of addresses and alumni records.

Spearheaded by Mr. MacDonald, Saint Thomas continued to explore rental opportunities. Death of Classical, a non-profit music organization, rented the Nave in March for the U.S. premiere of Infinity Gradient by Tristan Perich, with the Miller-Scott organ played by James McVinnie. Over 700 of people attended the concert, many of who had never been inside Saint Thomas before.

Friends of Music

While maintaining enthusiastic participation from core supporters, the Friends of Music felt the ripple effects of the last few years of pandemic and current economic climate, and there was a decline in contributed revenue in 2022. Several key supporters died or relocated away from New York, some had a change in financial circumstances, and still others found their philanthropic interest drawn to other organizations. Most significantly, since 2017 the Russell Keys Oberlin Foundation had provided substantial annual support to Saint Thomas for Friends of Music. In 2022 the Foundation ceased operations. We are grateful for the decision of the trustees to distribute the entire sum of the fund to Saint Thomas in accordance with Mr. Oberlin's great love of the Choir of Men and Boys. Of note, in November 2022, Ronald Thomas, a long-time parishioner and supporter of Friends of Music, commissioned a new work for the Saint Thomas by Choir School alumnus Trevor Weston '81. American Lamentation

BUILDING MATTERS

Rector's Stair Tower Repair, with Scaffolding April 2022 - Ongoing Purchase of 112 W. 56th St. Apartment

May 2022

Basement Upgrade and Advanced Copier Installation

June-July 2022

Living Room and Dining Room of the Parish House Restoration

June-September 2022

Beale Memorial Gates

September 2022 - Ongoing

Finance Office Renovation, upgrade in quality and in number from three desks to four.

addresses the entanglement of slavery, racial inequality and the Episcopal Church in New York.

September – October 2022

SAFEGUARDING

Mother Turner led a parish Safeguarding Monitoring Committee, which met on a monthly basis and reported to the Vestry. Commissioned by the Vestry, the collaborative committee included:

Christopher Seeley (Head of School), Aaron Koch (Executive Assistant to the Head and School Safeguarding Administrator), Miriam Allman (School Nurse), Claire Thomas (School Nurse), Nicolas Haigh (Assistant Organist) on behalf of the Choir and Music Department, Aaron Koch (Head Verger until August), David Bryan (Head Verger beginning October and online administrator for safeguarding), Sharlene Shah (HR Manager), Christopher Haley (Clerk

to the Vestry and Vice Chair of the Choir School Board of Trustees) and The Rev. Alison Turner on behalf of Children and Families and the Clergy. Their work continued to monitor current safeguarding protocols and practices, in both the school and church. New training by the Episcopal Church was rolled out across the organization, with the support of the Office of Institutional Advancement and HR, in order to develop our collective familiarity with safeguarding policies which also promote aspects of inclusion, hospitality and welcome.

As part of an external Audit, The Vestry took on board recommendations from an external audit of our policies from T&M USA LLC regarding our next set of priorities for action planning, which include preparing a Staff, Volunteers, and Student Handbook.

At the end of October, there was a joint meeting of the Choir School Board of Trustees and the Vestry of the Church with the author of the safeguarding investigation report, our legal team from Ropes and Gray, our counsel from Sullivan and Cromwell, our Director of Communications, and a specialist PR team from Camino PR. We heard a precis of the T&M investigation into historic allegations of sexual misconduct, and received advice from the legal team and the communications team. We were able to ask questions, and we voted to publish the report in full, accompanied by a community letter signed by the Head of School, the Board Chair, and the Rector. This happened within 24 hours. Within hours of publication, the first response came and was from a former chorister. It was short and sweet:

"A remarkably powerful and well-writte2 letter. Thank you,

NAME

St. Thomas Choir School, Class of 58"

The responses that came in after were all in the same vein. Thanks was the sentiment that pervaded all of them. We had said that we wanted to do the right thing for the right reason; we had taken time to reflect and to find appropriate advice and support. We ensured that we were prepared for the day of release. We held two meetings in advance – one for church staff, then another for school staff and faculty; the Rector wrote to all staff and faculty and ensured that pastoral care was available, including the availability of clergy off site; we reached out to the former wardens, Headmaster, and Rector Emeritus to advise them that the report was about to be released. Fr. Mead and Fr. Wallace kindly wrote back expressing gratitude. On the day of the release, Bruce Smith (CAO) and the Rector met and reached out to a number of significant donors who had given sums to the Choir School; The Rector also reached out to those who were about to become new Vestry members. Again, the response was overwhelmingly positive, including a long phone call with a major donor. All the reporting letters were written and Fed Expressed to law enforcement, child protective services, and in one case, to the school where one of the alleged perpetrators is now working. That school has subsequently been in touch with us and with T&M.

The investigation email and phone line remained open. T&M were contacted by one member of the Alumni Association that confirmed some of what has been reported in the final report.

STAFF CHANGES IN 2022

We welcomed Anjolin Acevedo to our staff. He began January 10 as Parish Custodian in our Facilities Department. He is on site most evenings in the Parish House keeping our workplace clean, tidy, and safe. He has over 20 years of experience in events and hospitality.

Fr. Ryan Bennett, our Assistant Priest since 2018, departed for Edinburgh, Scotland on February 1 to pursue his doctoral studies.

On February 2, 2022, we welcomed Ruth Cobb to the St. Thomas staff. She began her role as Interim Director of Outreach and Enrollment at the Saint Thomas Choir School. A loving parent of two Choir School Alumni (Zach Cobb, '01 and Andrew Cobb, '03), she will be working closely with the Head of School, Christopher Seeley, to pursue the mission and to grow the community of Saint Thomas Choir School.

After serving with distinction as Assistant Verger from 2015-18, and then as Head Verger from 2018-2022, Aaron

Koch has made arrangements with Head of School, Chris Seeley, to become the Choir School Executive Assistant for Administration. He agreed to assist the Vergers' Office during a transitional period that began Monday, March 21.

We welcomed Maks Adach, our new Associate for Musical Studies and Assistant Organist. His most recent position was at St. Paul's Choir School in Boston, a Roman Catholic day school. Maks is married to Sarah Norvell, who is pursuing a Ph.D. in Classics at Princeton University. Maks' first Sunday with us was March 27.

Dalton Cheatham was hired on June 12 to be our next Communications Associate. In this role, Dalton reports to our Director of Communications and Production, Blake Martin.

Douglas Kato, was hired and then fired after six weeks for the position of Senior Accountant in our Finance Department. These weeks were in June and July.

During the month of September, Ms. Josie Godfrey, a seminarian from St. Stephen's House, Oxford, had a pastoral placement in the parish under the supervision of Fr. Schultz.

On September 12, Margaret Carpenter Haigh (having served as part time Music Office Administrator since September of 2021) was appointed to the full-time position of Music Office Manager. Reporting to the Director of Music, she is responsible for managing the many aspect of the day-to-day functions of the Music Department and the Music Office.

October 12, David Bryan began part-time as Head Verger, then full-time on Sunday October 23. He has been working closely with the Vicar and the Rector to support the worship and events of Saint Thomas Church and Choir School and to lead the department of Vergers.

Monday, October 24, Christopher Perez began his role in our Finance Department as Senior Accountant. Christopher has broad accounting experience in institutions such as Iona College, College of Mount St. Vincent, and, for several years, the Church Pension Group, the body that administers pensions, insurance, and publishing for the Episcopal Church. He will be working closely with Laura Bush, our Controller, and Jenny Herrera, our CFO, to support the work of the Finance Department of Saint Thomas Church and Choir School. Our new Senior Accountant brings us a significant step closer to establishing a proper in-house Finance Department that can meet the needs of the entire institution.

November 7, Michael Stark began his role working with the Vicar and Bruce Smith, as Administrative Assistant to Vicar and COO and Chief Advancement Officer. Michael supports a wide variety of initiatives across the institution, including video production for worship.

The Rev. Dr. Luigi Gioia began his full-time clergy position as Associate for Adult Education and Formation on Sunday November 27. After living in temporary housing for two weeks, he and his husband, Claudio, moved into their church-provided apartment at 112 West 56th Street (at 6th Avenue).

On November 28, Jennifer Kim began serving as temporary administrative support for the Music Office until early spring.

Joshilyn Hoisington, former Chantry acolyte before then pandemic, accepted the position of Second Verger. She began on December 11, completing the full-time staffing plan for the Verger's Department.

THE CLERGY

RECTOR The Reverend Canon Carl F. Turner

RECTOR EMERITUS The Reverend Andrew C. Mead, OBE, DD

VICAR AND CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER The Reverend Matthew Moretz

THEOLOGIAN IN RESIDENCE The Reverend Dr. Luigi Gioia, DPhil

ASSOCIATE FOR PASTORAL CARE The Reverend D. Mark Schultz

DIRECTOR FOR CHILDREN AND FAMILY MINISTRY The Reverend Alison J. Turner

& SCHOOL CHAPLAIN

ASSOCIATE PRIEST FOR PAN-ASIAN MINISTRY

The Reverend Ju Young Prisca Lee-Pae

ASSISTANT PRIEST The Reverend Ryan Bennett*

BISHOP IN RESIDENCE The Right Reverend Andrew St. John

HONORARY ASSISTANTS The Reverend Mark Brown

The Reverend Gina Gore

The Reverend Patrick Holtkamp

The Reverend Canon Anne Mallonee

The Reverend Doctor David F. McNeelev

The Reverend William A. Norgren**

The Reverend Thomas F. Pike

The Reverend Canon Professor J. Robert Wright**

THE STAFF

ORGANIST AND DIRECTOR OF MUSIC Dr. Jeremy Filsell

ASSOCIATE ORGANIST Nicolas Haigh

TEACHER OF MUSIC THEORY Maksymilian Adach

& ASSISTANT ORGANIST

ACTING CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER Jenny Herrera (Citrin Cooperman)

CHIEFADVANCEMENT OFFICER Bruce Smith

DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT Adam MacDonald

ACTING CONTROLLER Laura Bush (Citrin Cooperman)

ACCOUNTANT Christopher Perez

STAFF ACCOUNTANT Yeshi Lama

DIRECTOR OF HR. Sharlene Shah

COMPENSATION, & BENEFITS

HEAD VERGER Aaron Koch (transferred to Choir School), Charles D. Bryan

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO THE RECTOR Lizette Herenandez

DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANT Wee Tai Hom

DATABASE MANAGER Amy Cheresnowski

ADM ASSISTANT TO VICAR AND COO AND CAO Michael Stark

RECEPTIONISTS Claudette Thomas, Martha Parajon

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS Blake Martin

& DIGITAL PRODUCTION

COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER Avery Griffin

COMMUNICATIONS ASSOCIATE Ben Koch*, Dalton Cheatham

MUSIC OFFICE MANAGER Margaret Carpenter Haigh

CHOIR LIBRARY ASSOCIATE Padraic Costello

CONCERT SERIES MANAGER John Ramseyer

CONCERT AND MEDIA COORDINATOR Rebecca Kellerman-Filsell

& MUSIC ASSOCIATE FOR CHILDREN AND YOUTH

10000000 1101101111011 1 1100

CARILLONNEUR Zachary Zaroogian

PARISH HOUSE STAFF

FACILITIES MANAGER Angel M. Estrada

Mauricio Castillo DeJuan Givins (Verger) Rodrigo Lazo (Verger) Anjolino Acevedo (PT)

THE HOSPITALITY/HOUSEKEEPING Anjolino Acevedo (PT)

Jeffrey Dennis Magpantay (PT)

Mylene Magpantay (PT) Rita Thomas-Carbon(PT)*

THE NURSERY STAFF Amanda Ortiz*

Tracia Powell

SUNDAY SCHOOL STAFF Gretchen Floyd*

NURSE William T. Davis, PhD, RN

THE VESTRY

The Rev'd Canon Carl F. Turner. Rector & Chair

Kazie Metzger Harvey, Warden

Lloyd G. Stanford, Warden

Karen Duncan

Stephen W. Gauster-Filek

Christopher M. Haley, Clerk

Winnie Kung

Darren Littlejohn

Brett F. Moore

Edith L. Morrill

Inge Reist

Karl C. Saunders, Treasurer (non-voting)

Gregory Zaffiro, Assistant Treasurer

ELECTION OF OFFICERS - 2022

Upon motion made, and duly adopted, each of the persons listed below were appointed to be officers of Saint Thomas Church in the City and County of New York for the Christian year 2021– 2022, and until the 2022 organizational meeting of the next Vestry or such earlier time as this Vestry may determine:

OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION

The Rev'd Canon Carl F. Turner, Rector & Chair

Kazie Harvey Metzger, Warden

Lloyd G. Stanford, Warden

Karl C. Saunders, Treasurer

Christopher M. Haley, Clerk

Gregory Zaffiro, Assistant Treasurer

Kenneth Koen, Assistant Treasurer

Jesse Adelaar, Assistant Treasurer

G. William Haas, Assistant Secretary

Tom Mahoney, Assistant Secretary

Fred Zonzius, Assistant Secretary

COMMITTEES OF THE VESTRY

COMMITTEES OF THE VESTRY - 2022 Upon motion made and duly adopted, the formation of the Committees of the Vestry and the Appointed Committees of the Vestry and their membership for the Christian Year 2022-2023, and until the 2022 organizational meeting of the next Vestry or such earlier time as the Vestry may determine, was approved as set forth below. The Rector is ex-officio a member of all Committees.

STANDING COMMITTEE

The Rector, Chair

Kazie Metzger Harvey, Warden

Lloyd G. Standford, Warden

Karl C. Saunders, Treasurer

Gregory Zaffiro, Assistant Treasurer

Jenny Herrera, Chief Financial Officer

The Rev'd Matthew Moretz, Vicar & Chief Operating Officer

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

The Rector, Chair

Kazie Metzger Harvey, Warden

Lloyd G. Stanford, Warden

Karl C. Saunders, Treasurer

Gregory Zaffiro

Sharlene Shah, Ex Officio

Christopher Seeley, Ex Officio

The Rev'd Matthew Moretz, Ex Officio, Vicar & Chief Operating Officer

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Gregory Zaffiro, Chair

Kazie Metzger Harvey

Stephen Gauster-Filek

Darren Littlejohn

G. William Haas, Advisor

BUILDING COMMMITTEE

Tom Mahoney, Co-Chair

Fred Zonzius, Co-Chair

Kazie Metzger Harvey

Inge Reist

Angel Estrada, Ex Officio

The Rev'd Matthew Moretz, Ex Officio, Vicar & Chief Operating Officer

Advisors:

Robbie Gianetta

Charles Haydock

Kenneth Koen

Andrew Laing

Tom Mahoney

Jesse Adelaar

William H.A. Wright II

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Edith Morrill, Chair

Matthew Ailey, Vice Chair

Laura Bush, Controller

Peter Gleysteen

Kazie Metzger Harvey

Darren Littlejohn

Karl C. Saunders

Advisors:

John B. Hoffmann

Jesse Adelaar, Assistant Treasurer

Kenneth Koen, Assistant Treasurer

Gregory Zaffiro, Assistant Treasurer

The Rev'd Matthew Moretz, Vicar & Chief Operating Officer, Ex Officio

Chief Financial Officer, Ex Officio

Controller, Ex Officio

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Lloyd G. Stanford, Chair

Jay Sterling

Edith L. Morrill

Anne Kelly Treantafeles

Alternates:

Kenneth Koen (non-vestry, male)

Pamela Zonzius (non-vestry, female)

Kazie Metzger Harvey (alternate)

APPOINTED COMMITTEES OF THE VESTRY FOR 2022

GRANTS STUDY COMMITTEE

Pamela A. Lewis, Chair

Laura Bush, Controller

Karen Chapman

Susan Clearwater

Winnie Kung

Brett Moore

Linda Morfi

SAFEGUARDING COMMITTEE

Mo. Allison Turner, Chair

Miriam Allman

Nicolas Haigh

Christopher M. Haley

Aaron Koch

Sharlene Shah

Lloyd G. Stanford

MUSIC COMMITTEE

Karl C. Saunders, Chair

Dr. Jeremy Filsell, Ex Officio

Stephen Gauster-Filek

Kazie Metzger Harvey

Kenneth Koen

Susan Lewis

B. Franklin Reinauer III

Gregory Stoskopt

Ellie Shearing

Ron Thomas

George van der Ploeg

Midge Woolsey

Margaret Haigh,

Music Office Administrator and Clerk

John Ramseyer, Concerts Manager

Bruce Smith, Chief Advancement Officer

Adam MacDonald, Director of Development

Laura Bush, Controller

ADULT EDUCATION ADVISORY COUNCIL

The Rev'd Dr. Patrick Cheng, Theologian in Residence*

The Rev. Dr. Luigio Gioia, Theologian in Residence

Francis Blouin

The Very Rev'd Kurt Dunkle,

Dean of the General Theological Seminary

Michael Galligan

Lauren Hildreth

Fred T. Isquith

Hayden Lester

Pamela A. Lewis

The Very Rev'd Dr. Andrew McGowan Dean of Berkeley Divinity School at Yale

Chantal Phaire

B. Franklin Reinhauer III

PLANNED GIVING COMMITTEE

Richard Lester, Chair

Barry Capella

Michael Galligan

G. William Haas

B. Franklin Reinauer III

Chenault Spence

Stanley J. Tucker

Raymond Wells

Pamela Zonsius

Susan Hill,

Christopher Seeley, Head of School

The Rev'd Mark D. Schultz Associate for Pastoral Care

Bruce Smith, Chief Advancement Officer

Adam MacDonald, Director of Development

HOSPITALITY COMMITTEE

Adam MacDonald, Director of Development, Chair

Betsy Ashton

Amy Cheresnowski, Database Manager

Lillian Claggett

Agata Lucy

The Rev'd Matthew Moretz, Vicar & Chief Operating Officer

Linda Morfi, Pastoral Care Coordinator

Willem Pruissers

The Rev'd Mark D. Schultz Associate for Pastoral Care

The Rev'd Alison J. Turner Associate for Children

& Family Ministry and School Chaplain

TRUSTEES OF SAINT THOMAS CHOIR SCHOOL FUND

Kazie Metzger Harvey, Chair

Lloyd G. Standford

Karl C. Saunders

DIRECTORS OF MUSIC ON FIFTH AVENUE

Karl C. Saunders, President

Bruce Smith, Chief Advancement Officer

Kenneth Koen

BICENTENNIAL TASK FORCE

Kazie Metzger Harvey, Chair

Adam MacDonald, Director of Development

Blake Martin, Director of Communications

Inge Reist

Lloyd G. Stanford

Karl Saunders

Christopher Seeley, Head of School

Bruce Smith, Chief Advancement Officer

Nathan Urbach

Gregory Zaffiro

CHOIR SCHOOL BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Rev'd Dr. Daniel Heischman, Board Chair

Christopher Haley, Vice Chair

Jo Harney, Treasurer

Rachel Segger, Secretary

The Rev'd Canon Carl Turner, Rector, ex officio

Christopher Seeley, Head of School, ex officio

The Rev'd Michael Bird

Michael Cappiello

Kazie Metzger Harvey

Aaron Primero

Erik Suter

Trevor Weston

Gregory Zaffiro

VESTRY MEETING DATES 2022

Upon a motion duly adopted, the Vestry established the following 2022 Vestry meeting dates:

- January 26
- February 23
- March 23
- May 4
- May 25
- June 22
- July 27
- September 28
- October 26
- November 16
- December 14

ANNUAL ELECTION

Upon a motion duly adopted, the Vestry set December 14, 2022 as the date for the next Vestry election.

DELEGATES TO ANNUAL DIOCESAN CONVENTION

Upon a motion duly adopted, the following persons were appointed delegates to any regular or special Diocesan Convention to be held in 2021. The regular Diocesan Convention will be held Saturday, November 11–12, 2022 at the Westchester Marriott.

Karen Duncan or Lloyd G. Stanford

Michael Cappiello

Christopher M. Haley

Pamela A. Lewis

Alternate - Edith L. Morrill

PARISH REGISTER

Sunday Masses	109	Harrison Bieschke
Weekday Masses	450	Jaitham Osler
Total Masses offered for 2021	559	Paul Petretta
		William Petretta
Sunday Evensongs	34	Max Saurberg
Weekday Evensongs	62	Mich Shemezwa
Total Choral Evensongs for 2021	96	Fernando Ynoa
Shrine Prayers	308	Receptands (5)
Baptisms	20	
Weddings	7	Giancarlo Bruno
Funerals	19	Eleonora Hroncich
Blessed Sacrament taken to a home or hospital	68	Agata Lucy
Confessions	53	Brendan Moffitt
Confessions	53	Brendan Moffitt Joseph Scarpinito

Baptism (20)

Raphael Bergin Eve Brookville Andrew Cook Skai DaCosta Melissa Feenev Mary French Frances Hoyt Patricia Jo Patrick Keijman James Koenigs

Margot Quinn Lyons Vincent John Marriott Gabriel Moretz

Emerson O'Neill

Hudson Lawrence

Lyra Sycamore Provenzano

Jesus Regaldo

Jan Willem van Bergen Oliver Wartak-Monroy Zuri Rose Yoosuf

Confirmands (15)

Laura Binski Andrew Cook Mary French Eric Hartline Patricia Jo Alexandra Syrah Jan Henegouwen Wells Graney

Marriage (7)

Laura Ann Binski and William Curry Helton Alexandra Quaintance Fomon and Andrew Meckel Henry David Fung and Daniel Moody Elenora Hroncich and Joseph Scarpinito Patricia Jo and Samyel Lee Agata Piatek Lucy and Kenneth Underwood Mary Catherine Williams and Matthew Ryan Carbonelli

Funeral (19)

Barbara Battle Robin Blackhurst Stephanie Blackhurst Martha Dodge Edmee Firth John Hoffman Theodore Louis Jacobson Shirley Maytag King Douglas McGrath **Jovce McLean** William R. Miller Gene Mintz William Norgren Mary Phipps Hannelore Strelau Indiana Camelia Sweda John Train Pamela Ward

Theresa White

A LETTER FROM THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

J.P. Morgan continues to advise and manage our investment portfolio as our outsourced investment managers, while working closely with the Investment Committee of the Vestry who oversees their work.

In 2022, we focused on implementing strategic improvements to our investment portfolio and financial operations. We actively worked to reduce the overall cost of operating our endowment, refine our asset allocation strategy, and streamline our financial reporting systems. These efforts afford us greater flexibility to invest across various asset classes as new opportunities presented themselves throughout the year. Additionally, our Investment Committee took a proactive role in assisting the Vestry around sustainable spending discussions, recognizing the importance of preserving our resources before we deplete our unrestricted investment pools beyond recovery.

Despite the challenges faced by all investment classes in 2022, marked by the impact of rising inflation on economic growth, corporate profits, and consumers' purchasing power, our portfolio demonstrated resilience. While we did not entirely shield ourselves from these headwinds, our investments showed relatively lower volatility and outperformed the market while also coming in line with our policy benchmark. As of December 31, 2022, our portfolio had a total return of approximately -14%, compared to the S&P 500 Index, which was down approximately -18%. The total value of our invested funds reached \$130 million by the end of 2022.

It's crucial to emphasize that we primarily rely on withdrawals from our invested funds to cover the operating and capital expenses of the Church and Choir School. On average, we derive 80% of the funds allocated to ministry, music, and education from withdrawals to our endowment, while the remaining 20% comes from various sources throughout the year, including the annual appeal, one-time gifts, and bequests. Consequently, we undertake any changes with great care, adhering to conservative principles – especially given the unsustainably high withdrawal rates. In 2022, our portfolio saw total withdrawals to satisfy expenses of \$11.6 million, with \$8.2 million supporting the Church and Choir School's operating budget and \$3.4 million allocated to the capital budget.

At year-end 2022, we maintained a balanced and diversified portfolio that was allocated 55%, 25%, 20%, to public equities, alternative investments, fixed income and cash, respectively. During the year, we added to our equity investments as markets decreased and began to open new positions in higher yielding fixed income assets.

Lastly, the investment committee would like to encourage those who haven't already done so to consider joining the Noble or Duffie Guilds. By including arrangements in your estate plans that benefit Saint Thomas Church and Choir School, you actively contribute to securing our institution's future.

TREASURER'S REPORT

2022 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A Letter from the Treasurer

A full copy of the financial statements of Saint Thomas Church as audited by its independent public accountants, PKF O'Connor Davies, is available on our website.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP). During the year ended December 31, 2022, Saint Thomas Church spent \$12 million in direct program services, which included \$5.9 million in support of ministry activities, \$1.9 million in support of our music program, a \$1.0 million Diocesan assessment, and \$2.6 million in direct support of the Choir School. We maintained our support to organizations that share our core values, grants and awards provided during the year were \$418K. The level of expenditure for direct program activities increased by \$2 million. Program growth was experienced in ministry, music, and Choir School educational programs.

Additionally, we spent in supporting services a total of \$4.1 million. Supporting services increased by \$600K when compared to the prior year. Supporting service activities for the Church were \$2.2 million and \$1.9 million for the Choir School. The increase of \$600K is primarily attributable to the Choir School, during 2022 new strategic positions were added to facilitate student recruitment.

Funding for these activities are through the generous and faithful giving of Saint Thomas' congregation. Contributions totaled \$4.3 million, which included the annual appeal campaign of \$1.4 million. During 2022, we received bequests from faithful pledgers totaling \$1.9 million. Included in this amount is the final distribution of the Merow Estate of \$1.1 million. In addition to these bequests, Saint Thomas received a gift from the Russell Oberlin Foundation of \$1,130,000 as its final distribution. The Foundation was a substantial annual supporter of the Music program.

Revenue from Concerts at Saint Thomas has not yet returned to pre-pandemic levels. Ticket revenues during 2022 were \$164K. Activities continued to be supported by donors to the Friends of Music at Saint Thomas, amounts raised in 2022, were \$188K.

Our investment assets continue to substantially fund our operations. Fair market values, including the beneficial interest in perpetual trust, reported on December 31, 2022, were \$130 million. A conservative spending rate, as approved by the Vestry, is applied to determine the amount spent in support of the Church and Choir School operations.

We are looking forward to our Bicentennial celebration in 2023. Saint Thomas Church will continue to focus on its strategic objective as we deliver our mission to worship, love, and serve Our Lord Jesus Christ through the Anglican tradition and our unique choral heritage.

Karl Saunders, Treasurer

2023 ANNUAL APPEAL SUMMARY

Annual Appeal

In 2023, Saint Thomas retained most of the gains achieved in the 2022 Annual Appeal, despite the economic uncertainty and inflation that impacted charitable giving nationwide. Giving USA reported a 3.4% decline in overall philanthropy in 2022. Despite that trend, Saint Thomas support held firm in number of donors and saw a modest 2% decline in pledges for 2023. We would like to thank the Annual Appeal Chair Eric Blair-Joannou, Co-Chair Darren Littlejohn and the committee for their active support.

Annual Appeal Campaign Comparison 2023 and 2022

	2023	2022	Difference	%
To Church				
Pledging units	458	465	-8	-2%
Amount	\$979,131	\$1,003,061	-\$23,930	-2%
To School				
Pledging units	333	323	10	3%
Amount	\$404,383	\$404,392	-\$9	
Total Pledging Units	510	505	5	1%
Total Amount	\$1,383,515	\$1,407,453	-\$23,938	-2%
Average Pledge:				
Church	\$2,132	\$2,157	-\$25	-1%
Choir School	\$1,214	\$1,252	-\$38	-3%
Combined	\$2,708	\$2,787	-\$79	-3%

2022 COMPREHENSIVE PHILANTHROPIC SUPPORT

Comprehensive Philanthropic Support

Philanthropic support for Saint Thomas comes in the form of pledges to the annual appeal and of gifts for everything from Choir School scholarships to community service, the music programs, the Girls Chorister course, and Easter baskets and backpacks for the children of St. Ann's Church in the Bronx. Measured in cash received*, total philanthropic support for Saint Thomas in 2022 was \$6,137,766. Bequests and gifts to endowments represented 64% of overall giving. Pledge payment income to the Church on the Choir School was \$1,368,878, representing 23% of overall giving in 2022.

These additional gifts come from pledging parishioners as well as tourists, visitors, the online community, foundations, corporate matching programs, and, most significantly, members of the Saint Thomas planned giving societies, the Duffie and Noble Guilds (listed on page xx). Saint Thomas received substantial gifts for its endowment (list begins on page 56) that will help to ensure its long-term financial sustainability.

2022 Comprehensive Philanthropic Support	Amount	%
Saint Thomas Church Pledge Payments Saint Thomas Church Non-pledge gifts Choir School Pledge Payment Choir School Non-pledge gifts Friends of Music Total Operating Support	962,957 441,627 405,921 223,098 187,866 2,221,469	16% 7% 7% 4% 3% 36%
Bequests, Endowments and General Fund Gifts	3,916,297	64%
Total Philanthropic Support	\$6,137,766	

The above chart shows total cash received in 2022. The financial statements on the following pages reflect revenue on an accrual basis according to GAAP.

Bruce Smith Chief Advancement Officer

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

	2022	2021	
ASSETS			
Cash	\$1,270,764	\$1,338,845	
Pledges receivable	1,188,357	1,052,940	
Bequest receivable	-	_	
Prepaid expenses and other assets	338,238	342,596	
Investments	115,409,183	147,898,471	
Restricted investments	11,385,882	10,439,710	
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust	2,875,506	3,933,539	
Property and equipment, net	52,385,162	51,861,268	
Total assets	\$184,853,092	\$216,867,369	
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS			
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$1,938,300	\$1,724,682	
Refundable advance PPP	-	834,497	
Total liabilities	1,938,300	\$ 2,559,179	
Net assets			
Without donor restrictions	124,111,489	144,229,813	
With donor restrictions	58,803,303	70,078,377	
Total net assets	\$ 182,914,792	\$214,308,190	
Total liabilites and net assets	\$184,853,092	\$216,867,369	

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

	2022	2021
Dublia Cupport and Davanua		
Public Support and Revenue	# 229 #29	# 1 199 100
Pledge revenues	\$1,328,528	\$1,488,129
Contributions other	2,892,948	1,700,083
Plate offerings	126,805	72,783
Bequests	1,858,906	790,311
Other income	615,005	471,539
Total	6,822,192	4,522,845
Expenses		
Program services		
Ministry	5,883,951	5,117,440
Music	1,933,732	1,371,249
Diocesan Assessment	1,005,255	885,624
Grants	417,498	364,463
Educational	2,616,360	2,238,184
Total program services	11,856,796	9,976,960
Supporting services		
General and administrative	3,452,889	2,902,543
Advacement/Fundraising	603,991	532,821
Professional fees and services	4,056,880	3,435,364
Total expenses	15,913,676	13,412,324
Change in net assets before non-operating activity	(9,091,484)	(8,889,479)
Investment and Non-Operating Activity		
Allocated operating investment income (spend rate)	6,846,898	2,200,000
Investment income allocation in excess of spend rate	4,192,622	_
Non-operating investment income	(34,175,931)	19,678,887
Loss on disposal of property and equipment	-	(385,374)
Forgiveness of PPP loan	834,497	1,209,875
Total investment and non-operating activity	(22,301,914)	22,703,388
Change in net assets	\$(31,393,398)	\$13,813,909

THE SAINT THOMAS CHOIR

Jeremy Filsell, Organist and Director of Music

Nicolas Haigh, Associate Organist

Maks Adach, Associate for Musical Studies and Assistant Organist

Rebecca Kellerman-Filsell, Music Associate for Children and Youth; Concerts and Media Coordinator for Music

John Ramseyer, Concert Series Manager

Margaret Carpenter Haigh, Music Office Manager

Padraic Costello, Music Librarian

Adam MacDonald, Director of Development (Friends of Music)

Giuseppe Spoletini, Treble Voice Instructor

Karen Wentling and Charles Perry Sprawls, Choir Assistants

Zachary Zaroogian, Carillonneur

TREBLES

Wells Alling Graney*	Ian Kim	Jovon Patrick-Bernard
Harrison Bieschke*	Nathan Kim	William Petretta*
Bakore Camara	Constantin Lafourcade	Zack Rabel
Daniel Conrado	William Lee	Max Sauberg*
David Conrado	Arthur Li	Dominic Scarozza
Christian Goudge	Fernando Morel*	Francis Segger
Rocco Halvey	Julian Moreno	Mich Shemezwa*
William Hanoian	Nathan Moreno	Arthur Stowe
Grayson Hochenberg	Henry Park	
Elias Jeon	William Park	*Graduated Spring 2022

THE GENTLEMEN OF THE CHOIR

Countertenor	Tenor	Bass
Eric Brenner	Lawrence Jones	Benjamin Howard
Padraic Costello	Chad Kranak	Brian Mummert
Tomás Cruz	Alex Longnecker	Charles Perry Sprawls
Jonathan May	John Ramseyer	Christopher Trueblood

CHOIR SCHOOL STAFF

Christopher Seeley, Head of School

Jeremy Filsell, Organist and Director of Music

Nicolas Haigh, Associate Organist

Maksymilian Adach, Associate for Musical Studies and Assistant Organist

FACULTY

Nicholas Berry, 3rd & 4th Grade Teacher

Veronique Buelens, Teacher of French

Christopher Cuomo*, Teacher of History

Matthew Gilbert, Teacher of Science

Elisabeth Hodge, Teacher of Mathematics

Christine Hruska*, Director of Studies and Teacher of English

Belinda, Morrissey, Assistant Head of School and Teacher of English

Noel Patterson Jr., Teaching and Residential Life Intern

Kathleen Roberts, School Counselor

Giuseppe Spoletini, Vocal Studies Teacher

Calvin Wentling, Athletic Director and Teacher of Physical Eductation and Teacher of Music Theory

Margaret White, *Teacher of English and Latin* Regina Yung, *Director of Instrumental Music*

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

Miriam Allman*, School Nurse and Houseparent
Claire Thomas, School Nurse and Houseparent
Karen Wentling, Houseparent
Aaron Koch, Executive Assistant for Administration
Rinchen Tsephal, Receptionist and Office Assistant
Mauricio Castillo, Evening Receptionist
Blue Perimeter Security (Robbie Giannetta)

FLIK INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DINING DIVISION STAFF

Glenn Trickel, *Chef*Adam Adam, *Assistant Chef*Jackie Baez, Sharon Brown, Claude Collins,
Rogel de Asis*, Richard Williams*, Lewis Nixon, *Staff*

HOUSEKEEPING AND BUILDING STAFF

Angel Estrada, *Facilities Manager*Ricardo Viera, *Building Superintendent*

Sonam Guyrme, Mylene Magpantay, Olga Matos*, Teresa Rivera, Ediltrudis Rivera*, Carlos Velez, Staff

STUDENTS

THE GRADUATING CLASS OF 2022

Wells Alling Graney (Concord Academy, Concord, Massachusetts)

Harrison Bieschke (Christ School, Arden, North Carolina)

William Petretta (Loyola School, New York, New York)

Max Sauberg (Woodberry Forest School, Woodberry Forest, Virginia)

Mich Shemezwa (Northfield Mount Herman School, Mount Hermon, Massachusetts)

Fernando Morel Yñoa (Don Bosco Preparatory High School, Ramsey, New Jersey)

CLASS OF 2023 CLASS OF 2026

Jovon Patrick-Bernard Luke Allman*

David Conrado William Park

Grayson Hochenberg

Constantin Lafourcade CLASS OF 2027

Nathan Moreno Daniel Conrado

Francis Segger Ian Kim

Jeffrey Liu*

CLASS OF 2024 Arthur Stowe

Christian Goudge

William Hanoian CLASS OF 2028

Elias Jeon Julian Moreno

Nathan Kim Zack Rabel

William Lee Henry Park

CLASS OF 2025

Bakore Camara

Avery Donaldson*

Rocco Halvey

Dany Intsinzi*

Arthur Li

Dominic Scarozza

THE PAROCHIAL ORGANIZATIONS

The beauty of worship at Saint Thomas does not just happen. Many people contribute their time, faithfully and generously, to create a reverent and peaceful atmosphere in which both parishioners and visitors can worship. In addition, many participate in various activities which enhance our parish life. Below are the most active organizations.

THE CHANTRY ACOLYTES are men and women who assist the clergy at the 12:10 and 5:30 p.m. weekday services, and the 12:10 p.m. Eucharist on Saturday. The Lay Reader reads the **Daily Office**, when there is one, and assists the priest in celebrating the Eucharist.

Tessa Dunning, Senior Chantry Acolyte

Pamela A. Lewis

Frances E. Mintz

THE CHOIR SCHOOL ACOLYTES assist at sung services. They serve as crucifers, torch bearers and thurifers at the Eucharist and Evensong.

January - June

Wells Alling Graney

Fernando Morel

Max Sauberg

Mich Shemezwa

September - December

David Conrado

Jovon Patrick-Bernard

Grayson Hochenberg

THE GUILD OF ACOLYTES serve at the Rector's invitation and assist at the Eucharist when celebrated at the High Altar and at Evensong, performing various liturgical duties as required.

Betsy Ashton

Diane Beck

David Brown

Barry Capella, Senior Acolyte

Michael Cappiello

Grace Choi

Brian Denton

Prescott Denton

Dan Fowler

Jimmy Jia

John Oghia

J. B. Osler

Cyra Osler

Will Petretta

Marie Postlewate

Aleen Prentice

Paul Ramos

Lynn See

Patricia Smith

Lloyd Stanford

Fiona Tian

Abraham Wu

Greg Zaffiro

THE ALTAR GUILD's purpose is to serve God by preparing and tending to the places where his people worship him. At Saint Thomas Church, the Altar Guild assists the clergy by preparing the High Altar, the Chantry Altar, the Resurrection Altar and the War Memorial Altar for the celebration of the Holy Eucharist. They are also responsible for the care and storing of the linen, silver, and silks used on these altars.

Active Members

Diana Beck

Dan Fowler

Chris Haley, Director

Pamela A. Lewis

Linda Morfi

Robin Otton

Marie Postlewate

Willem Pruissers

Honorary Members

Brigita Abolins

Ellen D. Beschler

Thelma Dixon

Marilyn Finklea

Jean Grainger

Damara L. Greene

Marilyn Heineman

Mary Lou Russell

Joan Saunders

Jane Whitley

THE SAINT THOMAS BOOKSTORE located on the ground floor of the Parish House offers religious texts, prayer books, hymnals, other educational materials, CDs of the Saint Thomas Choir of Men and Boys, postcards, and various gift items. The store is open on Sundays and at other particular times. It is maintained by volunteers.

Jean Savage, Manager

THE 2022 ANNUAL APPEAL COMMITTEE assists with the annual pledge drive.

Eric Blair-Joannou, Chair

Darren Littlejohn, Co-chair

Diana Beck

Dan Fowler

Edward Gibson

Eric Hartline

T.J. Houlihan

Steve T. Kelly

B. Franklin Reinauer

Andrea Stanford

K.C. Underwood

Greg Zaffiro

Adam MacDonald, ex-officio

The Rev. Mark Schultz, ex-officio

Bruce Smith, ex-officio

The Rev. Canon Carl Turner, ex-officio

THE LECTORS are a small group of communicants who read the first lesson (usually from the Old Testament, King James Version) at the 11 a.m. Sunday service and at special weekday services, such as Ash Wednesday. Lectors are appointed by and serve with the approval of the Rector.

Betsy Ashton

Stephen Bates Billick

Eric Blair-Joannou

Tessa Dunning

G. William Haas

John C. Harvey

Kenneth F. Koen

Pamela A. Lewis, Head Lector

Mary Catherine Mattis

Frances E. Mintz

Gregory Zaffiro

THE NURSERY AND SUNDAY SCHOOL, COMMUNION AND CONFIRMATION CLASSES AND FAITH ALIVE (young teen group) were led by Mother Alison Turner, Rebecca Kellerman-Filsell (music), Gretchen Floyd, Tracia Powell, and Fiona Xian.

THE TOUR GUIDES conduct tours following the 11 a.m. Sunday services and at other times on request. The tours relate the history and explain the architectural features of the Church.

Francis Blouin

Peter Clunie, Coordinator

Nelson Happy

William Hearst

Andrew Laing

Pamela Lewis

Tom Mahonev

Craig Tozzo

THE USHER CORPS, a group of men and women of the parish, serves at Sunday worship services, at weekday choral services, at choir concerts, and at special events. Ushers greet parishioners and visitors, distribute service leaflets, direct worshipers to the pews, take the collection, and guide communicants to the altar.

Willem Brans

Karen Duncan - head

Tom Dean

Mark Hallup

Eric Hartline

Anne Kelly

Fay Lewis

Tom Mahoney

David Pengily

George Shepherd

Bruce Smith

Chennault Spence

KC Underwood

Ms. Rita M. Abbott

Mr. Mark Abbott and Dr. Adam Fall

Mr. Ed Abdill

Miss Brigita Abolins

Ms. Amy Acarlar

Ms. Katharine J. Adamson

Mr. Jesse Adelaar

Dr. Joan Taub Ades

Ms. Terry D. Adkins

Ms. Tina Ahlgren

Ms. Donna Ajaero

Ms. Beatrice Ajaero

Mr. Matthew R. Ailey

and Mr. Gregory C. Zaffiro

Ms. Andrea Alampi

Dr. and Mrs. Gregory Alexander

Ms. Rebecca Alford

Mr. Douglas Allen

Mr. and Mrs. Archibald Allen

Dr. John G. Alley, Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. Matthew J. Allman

Mr. and Mrs. Michael Ambler

Dr. Carl E Anderson

Ms. Shurn Anderson

Miss Rose Anderson

Ms. Linn Anderson

Ambassador

and Mrs. Thomas H. Anderson, Jr.

Ms. Virginia Anthony

Ms. Josephine C. Antonecchia

Mr. George W. Armston and Mr. Kaiwei Zhi

Mrs. Peter Arniotis

Miss Alexandra Arnold

Mr. and Mrs. Harold Arnwine

Ms. Lilia Ashjian

Ms. Betsy F. Ashton

and Mr. James Stepleton

Mr. Christopher H. Babcock

Ms. Susan Bachelder

Mr. Robert Baensch

Mr. William J. Baggett

Mr. Kamel S. Bahary

Mr. Anthony Bahri

Mr. Tom Bair, Jr.

Ms. Una C. Baker

Mr. Thomas Baker

Mr. Thomas W. Balamaci

Mr. Joseph C. Balbo, Jr.

Ms. Nancy S. Baldwin

Mr. John W. Ballantyne

Ms. Rachel M. Bandli

Mr. George W. Bang

Mr. Charles Banks

Mr. and Mrs. Daniel P. Barbiero

Mr. David J. Barger

Mr. Robert Barger

Dr. William M. Barnard

Dr. Charles T. Barron

Ms. Constance C. Barton

Mr. Curtis Bashaw

Mr. Kent Bass

Mr. Thomas Bast

Mrs. Deanna Bates

Ms. Karyna Batok

Mr. Charles Battle

Mr. Brooks Battle

Mr. Karl Baudendistel

Ms. Caroline Bauerschmidt

Mr. Matthew Bauersfeld

Mr. William Bayne

Mr. David Bazett-Jones

Ms. Mary Beard

Mrs. Louise H. Beard

Mr. David Beatty

Ms. Diana L. Beck

Mr. and Mrs. John Beier

Mr. and Mrs. John Beinecke

Ms. Barbara Belloli

Ms. Suma Bellur

Ms. Chamese Bennett

Mr. Julian B. Holmes

Ms. Doris Bernardini

Mr. Stephen Bernstein

Mr. and Mrs. Peter Berton

Mr. and Mrs. Matthew R. Bethancourt

BG Charitable Foundation

Mr. Anthony Bianchi

Mr. and Mrs. J. Truman Bidwell, Jr.

Mr. Steven J. Bie

Mr. and Mrs. Paul Bieschke

Dr. Stephen B. Billick

The Rev. Michael

and Ms. Catherine Bird

Mr. Edwin Bishop

Ms. Suzanne P. Bishopric

Mr. B. Eric Blair-Joannou

Mr. Edward Blaney

Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey C. Bloch

Mr. Francis Xavier Blouin

Ms. Aurora Blum

Mr. Carmine Boccuzzi

and Mr. Bernard I. Lumpkin

Ms. Maritza Bolano Ms. LaVerne Cameron The Rev'd Dr. Patrick Cheng and Mr. Michael Boothroyd Dr. and Mrs. Richard Bonforte Mr. and Mrs. Brian P. Campbell Ms. Amy Cheresnowski Ms. Emily Bono Mr. and Mrs. Howard Campbell and Mr. Michael Lee Ms. Kathleen A. Campbell Miss Dawn R. Booth Christ Church New Haven Mrs. Geiriet Bowen Mr. and Mrs. Neal F. Campbell Ms. Blanche Christerson Mr. Gordon Boyd Dr. Barry John Capella The Church of the Holy Spirit Mr. Robert A. Boyer Mr. Thomas Caplan Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Chute The Stephen and Valerie Mr. Michael T. Cappiello Ms. Lillian H. Clagett **Boyle Foundation** Ms. Jeanne B. Caraley Mr. and Mrs. George Erskine Clarke Mr. Geoffrey N. Bradfield Ms. Anne Caraley Ms. Joan C. Clarke Mr. and Mrs. Paul W. Brandow Mr. Timothy Cardina Ms. Susan B. Clearwater Willem (Pim) Brans MS. Nancy Carithers Dr. Cristina C. Clement Ms. Arina van Breda Ms. Virginia Carl Ms. Nancy A. Cleminshaw The British Schools & Mr. Larry Carr Universities Club of New York Mr. Curtis A. Cleveland Mr. Ronald W. Carroll Mr. William M. Brittenback Mr. Peter C.R. Clunie Mr. Michael Carroll Ms. Victoria Brooks Mr. Charles W. Clute, Jr. Mr. John F. Carter Mr. Keith Broughton Ms. Elizabeth T. Cochran Mr. Jay Carter Mr. David L. Brown Ms. Sally Coenen Mr. William Cassarini Mr. Matthew Brown Ms. Antoinette Coffee Mr. and Mrs. Rives Cassel Ms. Ellen E. Coker Mr. J. Troy Browning Ms. Diana Castro Mr. William Buckley Mr. Leighton Coleman, III Mr. Nicholas Centanni Ms. Sarah H. Burrall Mr. and Mrs. Paul Colombo Mr. Lewis F. Center Ms. Stephanie A. Connor Ms. Laura Burress Mr. and Mrs. Sean Chan Mr. John E. Burrows II The Rev. and Mrs. Victor H. Conrado Miss Esther Hsuan Hsin Chang Mr. Ellis A. Burrows Mr. Gerald L. Cooper and Ms. Jenifer Y. Liu Ms. L. Ruth Changsiri Mr. Dorrett Burton Mr. and Mrs. Peter W. R. Corfield Ms. Bernadette D. Chapman, MA Mr. Troy A. Buttone Ms. Judith C. Cormier The Rev. Chawanda Charae Mr. and Mrs. Harold R. Byers Mr. and Mrs. Craig Corneau Ms. Susan Charette Mr. and Mrs. David Cahall Mr. Ivan W. Cort Mr. Michael Charles Mr. Stuart L. Caldwell and Ms. Cora E. Jackson Mr. Thomas R. Charsky Mr. and Mrs. John A. Caldwell Mr. Christopher Corts Mr. and Mrs. Paul Chelminski The Rev'd Canon James G. Callaway Mr. Christopher Europe

and Mrs. Marilyn Coxall-Europe

Mr. Gerald W. Craft

Miss Siqi Chen

and Mrs. Mary Callaway

Mr. Christopher Caltieri

^{*} Deceased

Ms. Ann Crane The Right Reverend Ms. Melinda G. Ewing and Mrs. Andrew M. Dietsche Ms. Hannah Crane Mr. and Mrs. Peter L. Faber Mr. David A. Disi Mr. Donald R. Crawshaw Ms. Sonia Fagan and Ms. Elizabeth Smart and Mr. Matthew Hoffman Ms. Adelaide P. Farah Ms. Thelma Dixon Dr. Jere L. Crook Mr. and Mrs. Paul Farinella Dr. Tina Dobsevage Mr. and Mrs. Mark Crosby Estate of Martha Dodge* Mr. Gregory J. Farrell Mr. and Mrs. Bill Crosswhite Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Farrington Mr. and Mrs. Richard Domas Ms. Christina Culver Mr. and Mrs. William L. Farris Mr. and Mrs. Joseph W. Donner Cmdr. John Francis Vance Cupschalk Ms. Melissa Feenev Mr. and Mrs. Peter Drasher Mrs. Mortimer Curran Mr. and Dr. Jonathan Fellows Mr. and Mrs. Lammot I. du Pont Mr. and Mrs. James D. Daniels Mr. and Mrs. Rov Felshin Mr. Kirk M. Duffy Mr. Byron R. Daudelin Dr. Helen M. Ference Ms. Karen Duncan Daughters of The British Empire Inc. Mr. Carlos Fernandez Mr. and Mrs. Ralph E. Duncan Daughters of the Cincinnati Dr. Ana E. Ferreira Mrs. Catherine C. Dunn Daughters Of Union Veterans The Ferriday Fund of The Civil War Ms. Tessa Dunning The Fiduciary Trust Company Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Davenport Ms. Catherine M. Durgin Mr. Schuvler Field Mr. and Mrs. Mark Scotland Davis Dr. Lisabeth During Dr. Jeremy D. Filsell Mr. and Mrs. Stephen U. Davis Ms. Victoria C. Ekwey and Mrs. Rebecca Kellerman-Filsell Mr. and Mrs. Keith A. Davis Mr. Douglas Ell Mr. James S.T. Finch Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Dawson Ms. Juli Elliot Mr. Michael Findikyan Mr. John De Camillis Mr. Christopher M. Ellis Ms. Mimi Fisher Mr. and Mrs. Mark De Rocco The Honorable* Mr. and Mrs. James Flaherty and Mrs. Thomas E. Engel Mr. Kenneth Decina Dr. Jeremy J. Flood Mr. Thomas W. Ennis Ms. Patricia Y. Demmitt The Florence V. Burden Foundation Mr. Carl Erickson Ms. Rebecca Deng Mr. Michael A. Flores Ms. Janis Erland Mr. John A.W. Densem Ms. Gretchen G. Floyd Mr. and Mrs Carlos de Leon Esguerra Mr. Brian Denton Mr. Robert Q. Fomon Mr. Glenn Eskew Mr. James Derr Mr. Patrick Fong Essence of the Garden Mr. Marcos M. Desillas Ms. Martha Forbes Mr. Mason L. Essif and Mr. Wai Lee Mr. David Deulofeu i Antúnez Mr. and Mrs. John Forbush Mr. and Mrs. Edward V. Evanick Mr. Daniel A. DeVeau Ms. Mary Pat Fortier The Reverend John M. Evans Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Dewey, Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. George D. Fosdick

Mr. V. Taylor Foster

Mr. Leroy Evatt

Mr. Scott Evenbeck

Mrs. Wilma deZanger

Mr. David Diephouse

Mr. Daniel L. Fowler Mr. and Mrs. Peter Glevsteen Mr. John R. Hall Ms. Deborah Fox Mr. Justin Goding Mr. William Halvey Mr. Thomas Franco Mr. Roman Goik Mr. Timothy Hamilton Mr. John V. Frank Mr. David Hamilton Ms. Janes Golden Ms. Mary French Mr. Josep Gonzalez-Medina Mr. Eugene Han Mr. Edward S. Frese, Jr. Ms. Evadne Gooding Mr. and Mrs. Scott Hanoian Mr. Ronald Freyberger Ms. Helen F. Goodkin Mrs. Walter H.B. Hansen Mr. and Mrs. Charles Frisbie Mr. and Mrs. Peter Goodrich Mr. J. Nelson Happy Mr. Timothy Fugmann Mr. Donald H. Goodvear, Ir. Mrs. Margaret Harding Mr. David Fung and Mr. Daniel Moody The Reverend Gina Gore Dr. Jo Harney and Mr. Gary Harney Ms. Caroline Gotschall Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan Furr Ms. Constance Harnisch Mr. Martin T. Harris Mrs. Ann T. Furr Mr. Bruce Goudge Mr. Virtue G. Gabbidon Mr. Michael A. Harris Ms. April R. Gow Mr. Daniel E. Gabriele, Jr. Mr. Joseph Grafwallner Mr. and Mrs. Matthew K. Harrison Mr. Michael William Galligan Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Graham Ms. Susan Hartley The Rev. Simmons Gardner Mrs. Louis Greaux Mr. Eric Hartline and Ms. Susan Andrews Mr. Wilson Green Mr. and Mrs. John C. Harvey Mr. and Mrs. John Garnjost Mr. William M. Green Ms. Jo Harvey Mr. Michael Gaulin Mr. Lawrence William Greene Ms. Alexandra B. Harvey Ms. Janine Gauntt The Rev. Dr. William Greenlaw Dr. Katherine St. John Harvey Mr. and Mrs. Stephen W. Gauster-Filek and Mrs. Jane Greenlaw Ms. Joyce Hata Ms. Jun Ge Mr. John B. Gregor Mr. Christopher Hatcher Dr. and Mrs. Philip G. George Ms. Sibyl M. Groff Mr. Charles Havdock Ms. Elizabeth Gerber-Lefkowitz Ms. Sarah Grogan Mr. Stephen Heady Mr. and Mrs. Alan F. Gettner Mr. and Mrs. Herbert F. Grove II Mr. Kevin Healy Mr. and Mrs. Robert Giannetta Mrs. Judith J. Gruttman Mr. and Mrs. William S. Hearst Mr. John D. Giansello III Ms. Jenny Gu Mr. Andrew G.B. Heath Mr. Michael V. Gilmartin Mr. Nathan Gunter Mr. Thomas I. Heffernan Ms. Paula Gilmartin Mr. G. William Haas Mr. Peter C. Hein and Mr. George J. Moeschlin III Mr. Joseph D. Gioe Ms. Marilyn J. Heineman and Mr. Stephen T. Kelly Mr. Scott J. Haberkorn Miss Laura D. Heineman Ms. Carla Gladstone Mr. and Mrs. Meredith Haddock Mr. and Mrs. William Helton Mr. David Glass Mr. and Mrs. Richard Hahn

Mr. and Mrs. Matthew Henry

Mr. Christopher M. Haley

and Mr. David Knapp

Ms. Priscilla Glass

Ms. Ann P. Gleason

^{*} Deceased

The Henry Luce Foundation, Inc Dr. Charles E. Ingram Dr. Thomas Kelly Matching Gift Program Mr. Fred Taylor Isquith Mr. Robert John Kent Dr. and Mrs. R. Alan Henseler Ms. Iill Newman Iversen Mr. and Mrs. Trip Kern Mr. and Mrs. Frederick C. Herman Ms. Rosalind Iversen Dr. Ben Keseley Mr. Robert Herring Ms. Kathleen Jackson Mr. Paul M. Pompili Ms. Joan Hickey and Mrs. Linda Ketchum-Pompili Dr. Ivan V. Jacobson Dr. Emile Hiesiger Mr. Charles Kidder Mr. James C. Jaegers Mr. and Mrs. Donald Rowland Hill Ms. Woo Jung Kielty Mr. Andrew Janer Dr. Emita Hill Mr. and Mrs. Michael Kiesel **IB Butler Farms** Mr. Walter T. Killmer, Jr. Mr. Paul Himmelstein Mrs. A. E. Jenkins and Ms. Barbara Appelbaum Mr. Joonhyeon Kim Mr. Bryce Jenson Ms. Karen Hindenlang and Mr. Rodman Richter Mr. Jueun Jeon and Mrs. Ju Eun Kim Mr. Charles Hodge V Mr. and Mrs. Barry Kingham Mr. Robert Jezowski Ms. Carol Hoekje Mr. K. Bryan Kirk Mr. Jimmy Z. Jia Mr. John Prevost Hoffman Ms. Sandra Kirsch Ms. Ellen Johnson Ms. Catherine Klemann Mr. John B. Hoffmann and Ms. Leslie Strickler Ms. Joshilyn Hoisington Mr. and Mrs. George O. Klemp Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Johnson Mr. and Mrs. Peter Holland Mr. and Mrs. John Klinger Mr. and Mrs. Ethan W. Johnson Mr. and Mrs. William P. Holm Mr. Barry S. Kloda Mrs. Caryl D. Johnson Mr. and Mrs. Henry K. Holmes, III Mr. Gregory W. Knapp Mr. and Mrs. Kamal Jolly Mr. Mark Holup Mr. Johannes M.P. Knoops Ms. Anita L. Jones Mr. and Mrs. Murray Hood Ms. Valerie Koch Ms. Teola T. Jones Miss Kristina Ilse Horn Mr. Kenneth F. Koen Mr. Avery Jones Dr. and Mrs. Jerry W. Howington Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Konney Mrs. Susan D. Jones Ms. Christine Hruska Ms. Irene Korenfield Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Kamm Mrs. Rebecca Hsu Mr. and Mrs. Robert Korver Mr. Viktor Kapiliovich Mr. and Mrs. David E. Koskoff Mr. James A. Hug Ms. Ann Hall Kaplan Mrs. Mitsy C. Kovacs Ms. Lisa Bobbie Schreiber Hughes Mr. Aaron Kaplan Estate of Rita Hughes* Mr. Robert Krainer Mr. Frances Katrishen Mr. and Mrs. Robert Kramer Ms. Robin J. Humble Mr. William Keenan Ms. Jill V. Hunt* Ms. Yvonne Kress Mr. Tom Keene and Mrs. Ami Keene Mr. Matt Anne Hunting Mr. John F. Kreutz Mr. Blake C. Keesee Ms. Kimberly Kreuzburg Ms. Sarah J. Hussey

Mr. and Mrs. James Kriewald

* Deceased

and Mr. Lawrence Keigwin

Mr. Christian Keesee

Mr. David Keller

Mr. and Mrs. Ronald Hylton

Mr. and Mrs. George E. Ingram

Mr. Casper Kroop

Mr. Timothy J. Kryger Ms. Janet Lim Mr. Thomas F. Mahoney Mr. James Kuhn Mr. Alex Limpach Ms. Joan Mahoney Ms. Winnie Kung Mr. and Mrs. Troland Spengler Link Mr. Mathew J. Maine Mr. and Mrs. Darren A. Littlejohn Mr. Robert Kuser Ms. Lynne Malina Miss Nicole Alexandra LaBarbera Ms. Ying Liu The Rev. Anne Mallonee and Mr. Tony Furnivall Mr. Roger LaFontaine Mr. Timothy M. Lively Mr. Dennis Mallov Mr. Andrew M. Laing Ms. Patricia Lloyd Manhattan Chapter NSDAR Mr. Kaishram Lalaram Mr. and Mrs. Chad Loewenstine Mr. Peter T. Manning Mr. Richard P. Lange Mr. Chester S. Logan Ms. Yiling Mao Mr. Frederick W. Lapham III Ms. Susan Logan Mr. Clyde V. March III Mr. John Lapp* Mr. Neal E. Logue Mr. and Mrs. Vincent Marriott Ms. Rebecca LaReau Ms. Susan Longhito and Mr. Marc Taslit Mrs. Catherine Marron Mr. George Loomis, Jr. Mr. David J. Laurenson Mr. Steven Marsh Ms. Lady Lora Mr. and Mrs. Paul T. Lauria Mr. John Martinez Ms. Rose-Edith Lord Mr. Vincent E. Lauten Miss Merrie Martinson Ms. Amy D. Lore Ms. Judith V. Mason* Mrs. Sally Lavlinskaya Mr. Ronald D. Lorton Mr. and Mrs. Robin Masters Mr. Kiel R. Lawrence Mr. and Mrs. Jose Los Arcos Mr. and Mrs. Varkey Mathew Dr. Arthur Lawrence Mr. and Mrs. Alexander Mr. William J. Lawson Lotocki de Veligost Mr. Louis Matis Mr. Michael R. Mattern Mr. Youngjae Lee and Ms. Julie Suk Ms. Christina Louis Mr. and Mrs. Samyel Lee Mr. Jimmy O. Love Dr. Mary C. Mattis Ms. Jana Lee Mr. Guy Luca and Ms. Karen Blackmon Ms. June H. Mayer Ms. Alison Mazzola The Rev. Juyoung Lee-Pae Mr. John Ludwig Mr. Eldon Leishman Mr. Fred Luety Mr. Ikechukwu Mbagwu Mr. David Lemon Ms. Helen Mc Mahon Ms. Rita Lwanga Richard D. Lester, MD Mr. and Mrs. John Lyddane Mr. John H. McCann and Mr. Willem P. Pruissers Mr. Berry C. Lynch Ms. Kathleen D. McCarthy Mr. Philip Levine Mr. and Mrs. Adam MacDonald Ms. V.K. McCarthy and Ms. Louisa Lawrence Ms. Elinor MacKinnon Mr. and Mrs. William McChesney Miss Fay M. Lewis

Mr. J. Bruce McClelland

Mr. Charles F. McCown

Mr. Dennis McCrary*

Mr. and Mrs. James Cornwell

Ms. Suzanne Maffucci

Ms. Carol W. Mahaffee

Mr. P. Wayne Mahlke

Mr. and Mrs. Terrence Mahon

Ms. Pamela A. Lewis

Mrs. Susan Lewis

Ms. Pamela Lewis

Mr. Griffin O. Lewis

^{*} Deceased

Mr. John Wesley McDade, Jr. Ms. Sarah Mook* Mr. Carl R. Neu and Ms. Virginia Ambrosini Ms. Suzanne McDonald Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Moore The New York Caledonian Club, Inc. Mr. William D. McElhinev Mr. Brett F. Moore New York City Chapter United States Mr. and Mrs. Bernard McElhone Mr. Donald L. Moore Daughters of 1812 Mr. Gregory McHale Mr. John U. Moorhead Mr. Paul R. Newbury and Ms. Candice A. Corcoran Mr. and Mrs. William McInerney Mr. and Mrs. Neville Morcom Mr. and Mrs. Charles S. Newman Mr. Donald R. McKechnie The Reverend Matthew J. Moretz and Mrs. Megan Brandt-Meyer Dr. Charles Nicolson Mr. Robert F. McKeon Dr. Rosmarie T. Morewedge Ms. Melanie M. Niemiec Mr. Easton T. McMahon Ms. Linda Morfi Dr. Pamela Niesslein The Reverend Dr. David F. McNeelev and Dr. Marise B. McNeeley Ms. Edith L. Morrill Ms. Diana Nixon The Reverend Andrew C. Mead and Mr. Michael E. Morrison Mr. Mark Noble Canon Nancy H. Mead Mr. Jonathan L. Mortimer Mr. and Mrs. Keith A. Norden Mr. John C. Mehrling Ms. Helen Mosher Mr. and Mrs. John P. North, Jr. Ms. Elizabeth G. Melillo, PhD Mr. Lawrence C. Moss Mr. and Mrs. John Nozell Mr. and Mrs. Gregory B. Mendenhall Ms. Krisha Mota The National Society Sons & Daughters of The Pilgrims NYC Mr. Brian Tetsuo Moto Mr. Frank Meola NYC Chapter NSDAR The Merow Foundation Mr. Brian P. Mullanev Mr. William R. Nye Ms. Lindsey R. Mullholand Ms. Karen Metcalf Mr. William R O'Brien Mr. Nicholas Metcalf Mr. and Mrs. P. Clarke Murphy Mr. Robert O'Brien Mr. John Metcalf Miss Barbara A. L. Mushalko Mr. Charles John O'Byrne Ms. Nancy G. Milburn Mr. Damon A. Myers Mr. Miguel Ocasio Mr. Charles R. Miller Myers-Ball Foundation Inc. Mr. Chris Ochillo and Ms. Angela Simon Mr. and Mrs. Peter Nadosv Ms. Ginger C. Miller Ms. Starr Ockenga Ms. Kristine Miller Toru Nagai Ms. Eileen A. O'Connell Ms. Jean Mills Mr. James Napoli Mr. and Mrs. John O'Connor Ms. Laurie Milone Mr. Niven Narain Dr. John J. O'Connor Mrs. Frances E. Mintz Ms. Tina Naser Mr. John G. Oghia Mr. and Mrs. Charles P. Nastro Ms. Cathy Miranker Mutsuko Oikawa Miss Joan T. Mischo The National Society of Colonial Dames in the State of NY Mr. John O'Mallev Ms. Sarah Moden-Alliston Mr. William Neel One to World, Inc. Mr. & Mrs. Thorpe Moeckel Mr. Blair Nelson Mrs. Linda B. O'Neill Mr. Khashayar Moghadam Dr. Richard B. Nelson Mr. and Mrs. Shane O'Neill

The Order of Lafayette, Inc.

* Deceased

Ms. Rosalind Mohnsen

Mr. Will Orsburn Professor Susan R. Peterson Mr. Winston Redhead Mr. Mark Ortega Ms. Barbara W. Pettus Major General Mary Regan Dr. and Mrs. Geroge Osapay Sister Anne Martin Phelan Ms. Katherine Reier Ms. Abigail P. Reilly Ms. Dawn Osbourne Mr. Patrick Pheng Mr. and Mrs. Britton Osler Mr. Jason Phillips Mr. B. Franklin Reinauer III Mr. Frank L. Reis Mr. Erik Ostberg Ms. Diana Phillips Mr. and Mrs. James D. Otton Colonel Thomas F. Pike, Jr. Ms. Inge Reist and Mr. Rob Freeman Ms. Linda V. Otway Ms. Kathryn Pilch The Rev'd Canon and Mrs. Wade A. Renn Mrs. Jane Paddleford Henrickson Ms. Joyce Pinder-Haynes Mr. Mark Rennie Ms. Noele Padgett Mr. Robert Pinion Mr. and Mrs. Lee Reycraft Mr. Medel Paguirigan Mr. Michael Pippenger and Mr. Brian Logan and Ms. Andrea Crawford Mr. Martyn L. C. Reynolds Mr. Daniel R. Palko Ms. Olivia Pittet Ms. Judith Rhedin Mr. Mark Palmgren Ms. Diane M. Pivarnik Mr. Douglas J. Riccardi Mr. Michael W. Panicali Mr. Anthony P. Polito Ms. Margaret Richards Mr. Nicholas Panza Mr. and Mrs. Drew S. Popjoy Mr. Barry E. Richardson Mr. Michael D. Parent Ms. Marie Postlewate Ms. Valinda Richardson Mr. David Parker Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Potters Ms. Lauren Ridenhour Mr. Hamish Parker Mr. Chris A. Power-Smith Mr. Wavne Ritchie Mr. Matthew Parrott Ms. Natalie T. Prav Mr. Hector Rivera and Ms. Lauren Hildreth Mr. Douglas M. Robbe Ms. Tricia Prentice Mr. David B. Parshall Mrs. Fave Prewitt Ms. Donna Robillard Mr. Gordon Burleigh Paxton Pattee Miss Lucinda Susan Priess Ms. Ioanne H. Rodland Dr. Russel H. Patterson, Jr. Ms. Carol Rodland Mr. Andrea Prigot Mr. David S. Patterson Mr. and Mrs. Roger Proctor Mr. Troy Michael Rohne Mr. Michael Patterson Mr. Santiago Puigbo Mr. John Romeri Ms. Ann Patton Mr. Howard Quarmby Ms. Susan Rosenberg Mr. David Pauley and Dr. Rajiv Gulati Mr. James Ouinless Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Rosenthal Ms. Kristin M. Paulus and Ms. Dianne Schultz Mr. Peter Ross Mr. Charles Peck Mr. Jonathan Rabinowitz Mr. Allen Roth Ms. Laura J. Pels Mr. Jürgen Rademaker Ms. Kathy Rubendall Ms. Jacqueline Y. Pelzer Mrs. Jean Radice* and Mr. Peter Stark Mr. David P. Pengilly Mr. and Mrs. David A. Rahm Ms. Leah Rubin Mr. David Perry Mr. A Z Rains Ms. Ewa Rumprecht

Ms. Dana Runestad

* Deceased

Mr. John Ramseyer

Mr. and Mrs. Leland W. Peterson

Mrs. Mary Lou C. Russell The Rev'd Mark D. Schultz Ms. Margaret Shields Mr. and Mrs. William Schultz The Reverend Fleming Rutledge The Right Rev. Allen Shin and Ms. Clara H. Mun Mrs. Allison Rutledge-Parisi Mr. and Mrs. David C. Schultz Ms. Susan E. Shipman Miss Frances Schultz Mr. William S. Ryall and Mr. Barry Bergdoll Dr. Susanne Short Mr. and Mrs. Donald N. Schulz Ms. Erin B. Ryan Ms. Pamela Sieving Ms. Allison Hug Schuringa Dr. George H. Sack, Jr. Mr. Ron Simmons Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Scinta Saint Andrew's Society Mrs. Mary Simonds Mrs. Stanley Scott of the State of New York Mr. Costa Simpson Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Scott, Jr. Mr. Daniel Salerno Ms. Lois Simson Mr. Kim Scown Mr. Stephen Salley Ms. Susanne Singleton Ms. Patricia Scully Ms. Amanda Samuelian Ms. Kari Skov Miss Susan E. Seaman Mr. Adonis Sanchez Mrs. Amanda Slattery Mr. Robert Searcy Sir Cesare Santeramo Mr. Bruce Smith Mr. Richard Secare Ms. Genevieve Santos and The Rev'd Kate Malin and Ms. Cynthia A. Read Mr. and Mrs. Richard G. Smith Mr. and Mrs. Paul Sauberg Mr. and Mrs. David See Mr. and Mrs. Karl C. Saunders Mr. Gregory Smith Mr. Christopher Seeley and Mrs. Staci Williams Seeley Miss Christine A. Smith Ms. Jean E. Savage Mr. Steven Savona Ms. Patricia L. Smith Mr. and Mrs. Glen Segger and Ms. Nina M. Zwolinski Mr. and Mrs. Webb C. Segur Mr. Allan B. Smith Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Scarpinito Mr. Edward Seidel Mr. Jason Smith Mr. Robert L. Schachne Mr. and Mrs. Stuart Settle Ms. Susan Smodish Mr. Gabriel Schael Ms. Harriet Shaffer Ms. Sharon Snapp Mr. Stephen P. Schaible Mr. Vivek Sharma Society of Daughters of Holland Dames Mr. Douglas Schaller Society Of The First Families Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Sharp Mr. Charles D. Scheips, Jr. of New York Ms. Janet M. Shea Mr. David Scheller-Schuller Mr. Richard A. Somerset-Ward Ms. Rhonda Shearer and Mr. Sean Scheller-Schuller Ms. Sonia Somerville Ms. Bonnie L. Schiffer Lady Eleanor Shearing Mr. and Mrs. Murray Somerville Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Sheffield Ms. Linda Schmidt Sons of the Revolution Mr. Edwin S. Sheffield Mr. John Schopfer in the State of New York and Ms. Suzanne Rice

The Sorosis Club

Mr. Chenault Spence

and Mr. Guido Aren

The Rev'd Adam Spencer

Mr. Jonathan Spurrell

Mr. and Mrs. Gerald D. Shepherd

Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Sherman

Mr. James E. Sherman

Ms. Beverly Sherrid

Mr. Andrew Shewan

Mr. David Schraa

Dr. James R. Schreppler

Mr. Andrew Schuessler

Mr. Gary A. Schuler

^{*} Deceased

St. George's Society of New York Ms. Alexandra Svrah Mr. and Mrs. Peter Travers The Right Reverend Ms. Mary Anne Tait Ms. Anne K. Treantafeles Andrew R. St. John, DD Mr. Daniel Tarapacki Mrs. Beverly Benz Treuille Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd Stanford and Mr. Jarrad Scott Ms. Rebecca Tripi Mr. Charles Stanley Mr. James D. Taylor Ms. Sarah Trombley Ms. Elizabeth Stearns Ms. Candace R. Taylor Mr. J. Stanley Tucker Mr. John C. Sterling Mr. Joel Taylor Mrs. Sheila K. Tucker and Ms. Susan Evans Mr. Richard P. Tegtmeyer Dr. James L. Tuohy Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Sterling Mr. Dax Tejera* Mr. John G. Turnbull Mr. David W. Sternberg Mr. Christopher Terzian The Reverend Canon Carl F. Turner Mr. Robert T. Stevens Mr. and Mrs. Theologos Thanos and The Reverend Alison J. Turner Ms. Suzanne Stevens The Ambler Family Foundation Mr. Patrick Noel W. Turner Mr. Robert C. Stevenson The Johnson-Stillman Mr. and Mrs. Oliver Tyler Mr. Craig Stewart Family Foundation Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Underwood Dr. and Mrs. James Stewart Mr. Otmar Thoemmes Mr. Charlie J. Updegraph Mr. Charles R. Thomas Mr. Malcolm H. Stewart Mr. Samuel E. Urmey Mr. Stanley Stillman Mr. James Thomas and Ms. Ann Gray Edward S. Valentine, MD Mr. Philip H. Stires Mr. Ronald L. Thomas Mr. Jan Willem van Bergen Henegouwen Mr. David M. Stitt Mr. Charles Thomas Mr. Matthew C. Van Hattem Mr. George Stonbely Mr. Roger Thomas Ms. Ann-Hunter Van Kirk Mr. Stephen Storen Mr. Brandon C. Thompson Mr. John W. Van Sant Mr. Gregory A. Stoskopf Ms. Ileen M. Thompson Mr. George W. Vanderploeg Mr. and Mrs. Henry M. Strous III Ms. Theresa S. Thompson Mr. Loren M. Varga Mr. and Mrs. Carl Struck Ms. Beverly B. Thompson Ms. Catharine Vaughan Ms. Carole Stubet Ms. Dorathea Thompson Mr. David Verchere Mr. William F. Stutts Mr. and Mrs. Anthony Thompson and Mr. Xavier Gabaix Mr. and Mrs. Steve Stutts Mr. Stephen Thorp Ms. Sylvia von Helldorff Mr. David E. Stutzman Messieurs David N. Ms. Anastasia K. von Walkenberg and Gary L. Tisdale-Woods Mr. Christopher Sullivan The Nina W. Werblow Charitable Trust Mr. and Mrs. Bradford Todd Mr. James P. Wade Mr. and Mrs. Erik W. Suter Mr. Edward P. Todd Ms. Rinah E. Suzuki Mr. and Mrs. Owen Waggoner Miss Loretta A. Tomasiello, Ph.D. Ms. Theresa Swarny Ms. Jean Wagley Mr. Donald Toth Ms. Cecilia D. Sweenev Ms. Kathryn H. Walker Mr. Craig A. Tozzo

* Deceased

Mr. Robert K. Walkup

Mr. Wayne Walton

Mr. and Mrs. James S. Trager

Ms. Danielle Sweetser

Ms. Rebecca Sykes

Ms. Riska P. Wanago Mr. Prescott Wintersteen

Mr. Shawn Wanless Mr. D. Scott Wise

Mr. Sedgwick A. Ward Ms. Monique E. Wise

Mr. Matthew D. Warnecke Dr. Gilbert Wise

Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Warwick Mr. Joseph Wisniewski

Mr. Wisner Washam Mr. and Mrs. Michael Witter

Mr. and Mrs. Henry Watanabe The Rt. Reverend Geralyn Wolf

Ms. Janet Waterhouse Ms. Diane Wondisford

Miss Virginia U. Watler Mr. Miles A. Woodlief

Mr. Wellington D. Watters

Ms. Leslie Woodruff
and Mr. David Blaut

Ms. Teri Weaver

Mr. and Mrs. Gregory Woods

Mr. and Mrs. William Weeks

Mr. and Mrs. Donald Workman

Mr. Jesse Weiher
Mr. Lawrence A. Wrenn

Mr. and Mrs. Mark Weisenreder

Mr. and Mrs. Marvin Wynne

Mr O. Wendell Welch
Mr. and Mrs. Victor M. Yerrill
Mr. Raymond G. Wells

Mr. and Mrs. Jaime Yordan Mr. and Mrs. William M. Welter

Mr. Jun Li and Ms. Liang Wen

Mr. Edwin Yowell Ms. Roxane West

Mr. and Mrs. David Zahorsky Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N. Weston

Ms. Caroline Zaleski
Ms. Theresa M. White

Mr. Craig Zeichner

Dr. and Mrs. Peter M. Whiteley

Mr. and Mrs. Frederic Zonsius

Mr. Stephen Whyte and Ms. Rebecca Ralston Mr. and Mrs. Steven Zumbrun

Ms. Leslie Wickham

Mr. Peter Webb

Mr. and Mrs. Richard P. Widdicombe

Mr. and Mrs. Laurence D. Wiley

Mr. Benjamin Williams

Ms. Heather M. Williams

Mr. Scott Williams and Mrs. Tracy Emerton Williams

Mr. John R. Wilson, Jr.

Mr. and Mrs. David L. Wilson

Mr. Doug Wingo

* Deceased

Mr. Mark Abbott and Dr. Adam Fall

Miss Brigita Abolins

Mr. Anthony J. Accinno

Ms. Katharine J. Adamson

Mr. Jesse Adelaar

Ms. Terry D. Adkins

Mr. Matthew R. Ailey

and Mr. Gregory C. Zaffiro

Ms. Andrea Alampi

Dr. and Mrs. Gregory Alexander

Mr. and Mrs. Archibald Allen

Miss Claire H. Anderson

Miss Rose Anderson

Ms. Linn Anderson

Ambassador

and Mrs. Thomas H. Anderson, Jr.

Mr. Willem Appelo and Ms. Renate Prins

Ms. Betsy F. Ashton

and Mr. James Stepleton

Mr. Christopher H. Babcock

Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Bachman

Mr. David Bacon

Mr. Joseph C. Balbo, Jr.

Ms. Nancy S. Baldwin

Mr. Philip H. Baldwin, Jr.

Mr. John W. Ballantyne

Mr. David J. Barger

Dr. William M. Barnard

Mr. Paul Barnsley

Mr. James R. Barry

Mrs. Deanna Bates

Mr. Karl Baudendistel

Mr. Matthew Bauersfeld

Mr. Winthrop Baylies

Mr. and Mrs. John Beier

Ms. Suma Bellur

Ms. Dawn Benson

Bessemer Trust Company

Mr. and Mrs. Matthew R. Bethancourt

Dr. Stephen B. Billick

Mr. William P. Blair III

Mr. B. Eric Blair-Joannou

Mr. Edward Blaney

Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey C. Bloch

Ms. Maritza Bolano

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas E. Botts

Mr. Geoffrey N. Bradfield

Mr. and Mrs. Paul W. Brandow

Willem (Pim) Brans

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bristol

Mr. David L. Brown

Mr. Nicholas Browne

Mr. John E. Burrows II

Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Butner

Mr. and Mrs. Harold R. Byers

Mr. and Mrs. Howard Campbell

Mr. and Mrs. James Cannon

Dr. Barry John Capella

Mr. Michael T. Cappiello

Ms. Jeanne B. Caraley

Mr. Ronald W. Carroll

Mr. John F. Carter

Mr. and Mrs. John H. Carter

Mr. and Mrs. Rives Cassel

Ms. Diana Castro

Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan W. Chapman

Mr. Thomas R. Charsky

Mr. Alistair L. Chase

Siweon Choi

Ms. Blanche Christerson

Ms. Lillian H. Clagett

Ms. Joan C. Clarke

Ms. Susan B. Clearwater

Dr. Cristina C. Clement

Mr. Peter C.R. Clunie

Mr. Charles W. Clute, Jr.

Ms. Carolann Clynes

Mr. George W. Cogan

Mr. James Coker

Mr. and Mrs. Paul Colombo

Mr. and Mrs. Dennis Connelly

Mr. Ivan W. Cort

and Ms. Cora E. Jackson

Mr. Gerald W. Craft

Ms. Ann Crane

Ms. Kay Crnkovich

Ms. Christina Culver

Cmdr. John Francis Vance Cupschalk

Mr. and Mrs. James D. Daniels

The Rev'd and Mrs. David L. Danner

Mr. and Mrs. Stephen U. Davis

Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Dawson

Dr. John A. Deaver

Mr. Kenneth Decina

Ms. Patricia Y. Demmitt

Mr. Geoffrey E.J. Dennis

Mr. John A.W. Densem

* Deceased

Mr. Daniel A. DeVeau Mr. David Fung and Mr. Daniel Moody Ms. Susan Hartley Mr. David Diephouse Mrs. Ann T. Furr Mr. Eric Hartline Ms. Thelma Dixon Mr. Virtue G. Gabbidon Mr. and Mrs. John C. Harvey Estate of Martha Dodge* Mr. Daniel E. Gabriele, Jr. Ms. Alexandra B. Harvey Mr. Kirk M. Duffy Mr. Michael William Galligan Dr. Katherine St. John Harvey Mr. and Mrs. Stephen W. Gauster-Filek Ms. Karen Duncan Ms. Loretta Haskell Mr. and Mrs. Ralph E. Duncan George Forrest Chichester Trust Mr. Henk Haverkamp Mrs. Catherine C. Dunn Georgia E. Hofmann Trust Mr. and Mrs. William S. Hearst Ms. Tessa Dunning Mr. and Mrs. Alan F. Gettner Ms. Marilyn I. Heineman Mr. Harland H. Eastman Ms. Marsha Gewirtzman Miss. Laura D. Heineman Mr. Richard F. Edmonds Mr. and Mrs. Robert Giannetta The Rev'd Daniel R. Heischman Mr. and Mrs. Frederick C. Herman Ms. Norma Lopez Eicher Mr. Joseph D. Gioe and Mr. Stephen T. Kelly Mr. and Mrs. Mark Hochenberg Ms. Victoria C. Ekwey Mr. David Glass Mr. Paul R. Emmons Ms. Joshilyn Hoisington Ms. Marylon R. Glass Mr. and Mrs. John England Mr. Julian Bennett Holmes Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Glauber Mr. Thomas W. Ennis Mr. Albert T. Holtz Mr. and Mrs. Peter Gleysteen Mr. Carl Erickson Mr. Mark Holup Mr. Frank C. Goodwin Ms. Janis Erland Mr. and Mrs. Murray Hood Ms. Caroline Gotschall Ms. Betty Evangelista Miss Kristina Ilse Horn Mr. Joseph Grafwallner Ms. Dorlene Evans Mrs. Rebecca Hsu Mr. Paul Granev and Ms. Julia B. Alling Estate of Rita Hughes* Mr. Leroy Evatt Mr. William M. Green Mr. and Mrs. Jerome M. Feldman Ms. Robin J. Humble Mr. Lawrence William Greene Dr. Lynn Feldman Mr. Harrison Hunt and Mrs. Cynthia Feldman The Rev. Dr. William Greenlaw Ms. Sarah J. Hussey and Mrs. Jane Greenlaw Dr. Ana E. Ferreira Mr. and Mrs. Harry Inglis Mrs. Judith J. Gruttman Mr. Ian Fisher Dr. Ivan V. Jacobson Mr. G. William Haas Dr. Jeremy J. Flood and Mr. George J. Moeschlin III Mr. Jueun Jeon and Mrs. Ju Eun Kim Mr. Michael A. Flores Mr. Scott J. Haberkorn Mrs. Caryl D. Johnson Mr. and Mrs. George D. Fosdick Mr. Christopher M. Haley Mr. Dudley D. Johnson and Mr. David Knapp Mr. V. Taylor Foster Ms. Susan M. Johnson Ms. Cornelia Hamilton Mr. Daniel L. Fowler Mr. Gerald P. Jones, PhD Mrs. Walter H.B. Hansen Mr. Richard S. Franklin Mr. Viktor Kapiliovich Dr. Jo and Mr. Gary Harney Mr. Chester Freeman, Jr. Ms. Ann Hall Kaplan Mr. Michael A. Harris Mr. Edward S. Frese, Jr.

Ms. Jean Harris

Mr. Aaron Kaplan

* Deceased

Mr. Stefan Karlsson Mr. Philip Levine Ms. June H. Mayer and Ms. Louisa Lawrence Ms. Susanna Kearney-Kaletsch Mr. John H. McCann Mr. William J. Lawson Mr. Christian Keesee Mr. I. Bruce McClelland and Mr. Lawrence Keigwin Mr. Youngjae Lee and Ms. Julie Suk Mr. Charles F. McCown Dr. Jeremy D. Filsell Ms. Penelope Leighton Mr. Dennis McCrary* and Mrs. Rebecca Kellerman-Filsell and Mr. John Hurshman Richard D. Lester, MD Mr. John C. McGuire Mr. and Mrs. Trip Kern and Mr. Willem P. Pruissers Mr. Robert F. McKeon Mr. Paul M. Pompili and Mrs. Linda Ketchum Pompili Ms. Jeanne Levinson The Rev'd Dr. David F. McNeelev and Dr. Marise B. McNeelev Ms. Woo Jung Kielty Miss Fay M. Lewis The Rev'd Andrew C. Mead Mr. and Mrs. Michael Kiesel Ms. Pamela A. Lewis and Canon Nancy H. Mead Mr. Joonhyeon Kim Mrs. Susan Lewis Mr. John C. Mehrling and Mr. Rodman Richter Mr. Alex Limpach Ms. Elizabeth G. Melillo, PhD Estate of Christopher King* Mr. and Mrs. Darren A. Littlejohn Mr. Nicholas Metcalf Mr. K. Bryan Kirk Mr. Timothy M. Lively Mr. Theodore H. Meyers Mr. Morgan Kist Mr. Robert Lively Ms. Ginger C. Miller Ms. Catherine Klemann and Mrs. Christine Lively Mr.* and Mrs. Eugene G. Mintz Mr. and Mrs. Chad Loewenstine Mr. David L. Klepper Mr. Daniel Moe Mr. and Mrs. John Klinger Mr. Neal E. Logue and Mrs. Ann Stephenson-Moe Mr. Grant Klinger Mr. Ronald D. Lorton Mr. & Mrs. Thorpe Moeckel Mr. and Mrs. Alexander Mr. Johannes M.P. Knoops Ms. Sarah Mook* Lotocki de Veligost Mr. Aaron Koch Ms. Edith L. Morrill Mrs. Suzanne H. Lowe Mr. Kenneth F. Koen Mr. Jonathan L. Mortimer Dr. C. Gregory Lozier Mr. and Mrs. Paul E. Konney and Ms. Meg Armstrong Mr. and Mrs. William G. Moten Mr. John F. Kreutz Mr. Cide He and Ms. Yong Ma Mr. Brian Tetsuo Moto Mr. Timothy J. Kryger Mr. P. Wavne Mahlke Mr. Brian P. Mullaney Ms. Winnie Kung Mr. Thomas F. Mahoney Ms. Linda Mullestein Mr. and Mrs. Pierre Ms. Joan Mahoney Mr. Chadwick Muse Lafourcade-Haverkamp Mr. Dennis Malloy Mr. Damon A. Myers Mr. Andrew M. Laing Mr. Clyde V. March III Ms. Tina Naser Mr. Frederick W. Lapham III Mr. and Mrs. James Marino Mr. John E. Neithammer Mr. John Lapp* Mr. Sanford R. Martin Mr. Blair Nelson Ms. Rebecca LaReau

Dr. Richard B. Nelson

Ms. Martha Nesbitt

Ms. Judith V. Mason*

Mr. Michael R. Mattern

Dr. Mary C. Mattis

Mr. and Mrs. Varkey Mathew

and Mr. Marc Taslit

The Rt. Reverend C. Alexis LaRue

Mr. Richard J. Larsen

^{*} Deceased

The New York Community Trust Mr. and Mrs. Roger Proctor Mrs. Stanley Scott -Albion and Natalie Metcalf Fund Ms. Emily Pulley Miss Susan E. Seaman Mr. Paul R. Newbury Mr. Howard Quarmby Mr. Richard Secare and Ms. Candice A. Corcoran and Ms. Cynthia A. Read Ms. Jean Radice* Dr. Charles Nicolson Mr. and Mrs. David See Mr. Philip T. Ragland Mr. and Mrs. John P. North, Jr. Mr. Christopher Seeley Mr. A Z Rains Mr. and Mrs. Roger E. Nott and Mrs. Staci Williams Seeley Mr. Paul A. Randour Mr. Charles John O'Byrne Mr. and Mrs. Glen Segger Mr. Winston Redhead Mr. and Mrs. John O'Connor Mr. Augustine M. Segger Ms. Abigail P. Reilly Mr. Abayomi Olusegun Odunuga Mr. and Mrs. Webb C. Segur Mr. B. Franklin Reinauer III Mrs. Linda B. O'Neill Mr. and Mrs. Stuart Settle The Orchestra of Saint Luke's Ms. Inge Reist and Mr. Rob Freeman Mr. Andrew Shaughnessy Mr. Mark Rennie Mr. and Mrs. James D. Otton Mr. and Mrs. Gerald D. Shepherd Ms. Judith Rhedin Ms. Jarene Pagliarulo Mr. John D. Sherwood Mr. Douglas J. Riccardi Mr. Medel Paguirigan The Reverend Geoffrey S. Simpson and Mr. Brian Logan Mr. Barry E. Richardson Ms. Susanne Singleton Ms. Susan Palmer Ms. Valinda Richardson Mr. and Mrs. Richard G. Smith Mr. Michael D. Parent Mr. Douglas M. Robbe Miss Christine A. Smith Ms. Nancy Parks Ms. Joanne H. Rodland Mr. Allan B. Smith Mr. David B. Parshall Ms. Carol Rodland Mr. Bruce Smith and The Rev'd Kate Malin Ms. Ann Patton Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Rosenthal Ms. Patricia L. Smith Mr. & Mrs. William L. Patton Mr. and Mrs. Detrick T. Rothacker Mr. David Pauley and Dr. Rajiv Gulati Ms. Sylvia Smith Mrs. Mary Lou C. Russell Ms. Kristin M. Paulus Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Smoot Mr. Daniel Salerno Ms. Iacqueline Y. Pelzer Ms. Sharon Snapp Dr. and Mrs. David Sarrett Estate of Richard W. Pendleton, Jr.* Ms. Sonia Somerville Mr. and Mrs. Karl C. Saunders Mr. David P. Pengilly Mr. Chenault Spence Ms. Jean E. Savage and Mr. Guido Aren Ms. Barbara W. Pettus Dr. Stephen G. Schaeffer Mr. and Mrs. Scott D. Stanard Mr. Jason Phillips Mr. Douglas Schaller Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd Stanford Mr. Robert Pinion Mr. Charles D. Scheips, Jr. Ms. Elizabeth Stearns Mr. and Mrs. Drew S. Popjoy Ms. Bonnie L. Schiffer Mr. John C. Sterling Ms. Marie Postlewate and Ms. Susan Evans Dr. N. Lewis Schoon and Mrs. Janice H. Schoon Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Potters Ms. Suzanne Stevens

Mr. Robert T. Stevens

Mr. and Mrs. Peter D. Stevenson

Mr. David Schraa

Dr. James R. Schreppler

Mr. Aaron C. Primero

Mr. and Mrs. Elidoro Primero

^{*} Deceased

Mr. Charles A. Stewart Edward S. Valentine, MD

Mr. Philip H. Stires Mr. & Mrs. James R. Van Gaasbeek

Mr. Gregory A. Stoskopf Mr. Matthew C. Van Hattem

Mr. John Strauch Mr. John W. Van Sant

Mr. and Mrs. Henry M. Strous III Mr. Thomas H. Vanderford IV
Mr. and Mrs. Neal Stuber Mr. George W. Vanderploeg

Mr. William F. Stutts Mr. Michael J. Volkovitsch

Mr. and Mrs. Erik W. Suter Mr. Robert K. Walkup

Mr. Daniel Tarapacki Ms. Riska P. Wanago and Mr. Jarrad Scott

Estate of Alan V. Waters*

Ms. Candace R. Taylor

Mr. Wellington D. Watters

Mr. James D. Taylor
Mr. Peter Webb

Mr. Richard P. Tegtmeyer

Mr. Harold Weinstein

The Russell Oberlin Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Mark Weisenreder

The William A.M. Burden Fund
Mr O. Wendell Welch

Mr. Ronald L. Thomas

Mr. and Mrs. William M. Welter

Ms. Theresa S. Thompson

Mr. Jun Li and Ms. Liang Wen

Mr. and Mrs. David Thomson

Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N. Weston

Miss Loretta A. Tomasiello, Ph.D.

Dr. Trevor L. Weston

Mr. Craig A. Tozzo

Mr. James White and Ms. Alidia Clagett

Mr. and Mrs. James S. Trager
Dr. and Mrs. Peter M. Whiteley

Ms. Anne K. Treantafeles

Mr. and Mrs. Richard P. Widdicombe

Ms. Beverly Benz Treuille

Mr. and Mrs. Laurence D. Wiley Trinity Church Wall Street

Ms. Heather M. Williams

Ms. Rebecca Tripi
Mr. John R. Wilson, Jr.

Mr. J. Stanley Tucker

Ms. Judith Wolff

Mrs. Sheila K. Tucker

Mr. William Henry Andrew Wright II

Dr. James L. Tuohy

Ms. Janet H. Young

Mr. John G. Turnbull

Ms. Margot T. Young

The Reverend Canon Carl F. Turner and The Reverend Alison J. Turner Mr. and Mrs. David Zahorsky

Mr. and Mrs. Michael Twomey Mr. Craig Zeichner

Mr. and Mrs. Oliver Tyler Mr. and Mrs. Frederic Zonsius

Mr. Charlie J. Updegraph

Mr. Samuel E. Urmey

SUMMARY OF ADDITIONS TO INVESTED FUNDS 2022

Total Additions to Funds	\$ 958,997
The Rev. Charles Wallace Choristership*	\$ 500,000
Saint Thomas Choir School Endowment Fund	\$ 9,000
The Moeschlin/Haas Endowment Fund	\$ 200,000
The Ferriday Fund	\$ 12,875
The Paul Emmons Choristership in honor of Fr. John Andrew	\$ 46,622
The Martha J. Dodge Continuo Organ Preservation Fund	\$ 93,750
The Hazel and Harrison S. Dodge Memorial Scholarship Fund	\$ 93,750
The William A.M. Burden III Scholarship Fund	\$ 1,500
The Florence V. Burden Foundation	\$ 1,500

^{*}New

Α

THE ALBION H. ADAMS FUND

Founded 1974 \$4,747

Established for Choir School scholarships and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PETER LEVER A. AIDEYAN MEMORIAL FLOWER FUND

Founded 1998/1999 \$250 Added 2000-2001 \$1,250

Established in 1998 by Dr. Emokpolo Aideyan in memory of Peter Lever A. Aideyan. To be used to place flowers on the Resurrection Chapel Altar every September 17, in memory of Peter Lever A. Aideyan.

THE LYDIA A. AITKEN FUND

Founded 1931 \$1,000

Established for income to be applied to the quota for Missions as levied upon the Parish by the Diocesan authorities.

THE GEORGIANA M. AMIDON FUND

Founded 1931 \$52,418

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ANNIE A. ARENTS FUND

Founded 1948 \$15,000

Established under the will of Annie A. Arents. Income to be used to place flowers on the Altar every Sunday in February in memory of her husband, George Arents, and the balance for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LENA R. ARENTS FUND

Founded 1957 \$2,500

The gift of George Arents in memory of Lena R. Arents. Income to be used for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ARENTS ORGAN ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 1961 \$100,000 Added 1968-1983 \$125,000 Added 2006 \$32,887

Established under the will of George Arents for

maintenance of the Arents organ. In 1968 \$50,000 was added by the Vestry and \$50,000 by the Robert Goelet Foundation.

THE MARGARET ATKINSON FUND

Founded 1950 \$1,000

Proceeds of an insurance policy bequeathed by Margaret Atkinson, a choir mother. Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

B

THE LOIS D. BAKER FUND

Founded 1980 \$433,056 Added 1981-1983 \$81,856

Established for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE WALTER C. BAKER FUND

Founded 1972 \$100,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FREDERICK HARRISON BALDWIN FUND

Founded 1928 \$9,772

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PHILIP H. BALDWIN FUND

Founded 2000 \$38,000 Added 2001-2016 \$31,000 Added 2017 \$5,000

Established by Philip H. Baldwin, Jr. in memory of his father, Philip H. Baldwin. The income to be used for computer, math and science purposes at the Choir School.

THE RICHARD STURGIS BARNES FUND

Founded 1973 \$4,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish

THE BENJAMIN CARDOZA BARON MEMORIAL FLOWER FUND

Founded 2000 \$300

Established by Janine Baron in memory of her husband, Benjamin. The income to be used to place flowers on the

High Altar the Sunday before October 25, in memory of Benjamin Cardoza Baron.

THE BAROQUE FAIR FUND (THE CHOIR SCHOOL TOUR FUND)

Founded 1991 \$55,725 Added 1992-94 \$60,469

Established for the benefit of the Choristers' tours to Europe.

THE MURIEL ANDERSON BARRIE FUND

Founded 1982 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE REVEREND GORDON-HURST BARROW FUND

Founded 1995 \$10,000 Added 1996-2008 \$32,967 Added 2011 \$2,000

Established for maintenance of the Chantry Altar.

THE CECILIA FITLER BARROWS FUND

Founded 1935 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE IRA BARROWS FUND

Founded 1945 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LOUIS M.S. BEAL FUND

Founded 2017 \$1,250,000 Added 2018 \$150,000 Added 2019 \$150,000 Added 2020 \$180,218

Established under the will of Louis M.S. Beal for the general uses and purposes of Saint Thomas Church.

THE GEORGIA ROBISON BEALE FUND

Founded 2006 \$1,000

Established under the will of Georgia Robison Beale to be used for the corporate purposes of the Church.

THE CARRIE PHELAN BEALE FUND

Founded 1951 \$1,000

The gift of Phelan Beale in memory of his mother to place flowers on the Altar on the fourth Sunday in April.

THE PAMELA ELSA BELLAMORE FUND

Founded 1985 \$225,000 Added 1992-1997 \$46,149

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HENRY ROGERS BENJAMIN FUND

Founded 1968 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE BETHLEHEM DAY NURSERY FUND

Founded 1997 \$216,523

Established with funds from the Bethlehem Day Nursery to provide day care for children whose circumstances require such services.

THE HARRY PAYNE BINGHAM FUND

Founded 1955 \$50,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HERBERT A. BIRKS FUND

Founded 1995 \$25,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LENORE BLUMENTHAL MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1984 \$1,000

Established by a gift from Walter Blumenthal, a former Choir Boy, in memory of his wife for Choir School scholarships.

THE JAMES E. BOISSEAU FUND

Founded 1852 \$2,000

Established for the poor of the Parish.

THE J. MARSHALL & JANE H. BOOKER FUND

Founded 1995 \$100,000 Added 1996-2005 \$213,500 Added 2007 \$122,500

Established for building and restoration projects, including the carving of the corbels and arches supporting the living room bay window in 2006.

THE ELLEN MILLS BORNE FUND

Founded 1927 \$60,124 Added 1939 \$1,949

Established for Parish and Mission work.

THE PRISCILLA BOTT FUND

Founded 1973 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CAROLYN V. BOURNE FUND

Founded 1976 \$50,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELEANOR BOVEE FUND

Founded 1937 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JANE C. BOWMAN MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1999 \$27,277

Established under the will of Ms. Jane C. Bowman to be used for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE LOUISE RICH BOYD MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1998 \$10,702

Established by Mr. Donald M. Boyd in memory of his wife to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE SADIE V. BRADY FUND

Founded 1946 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE IRENE M. BRAMAN FUND

Founded 1964 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT MEANS BRANNON FUND

Founded 1945 \$250

The gift of Mrs. Mary B. Brannon in memory of her husband to place flowers on the Chantry Altar the second Sunday in May.

THE MRS. MARGARET ADAMS BROMLEY FLOWER FUND

Founded 1934 \$1,000

The gift of William Adams Kissam in memory of his aunt to place flowers on the Altar the first Sunday in February & June.

THE MRS. MARGARET ADAMS BROMLEY FUND

Founded 1934

\$15,051

The gift of William Adams Kissam in memory of his aunt for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROELIF H. BROOKS ANNIVERSARY FUND

Founded 1953

\$2,850

Established to commemorate his 25th anniversary as Rector of Saint Thomas Church and the 50th anniversary of his ordination. Funds to benefit the Choir School.

THE ROELIF H. BROOKS FUND

Founded 1954

\$274,988

Established by Dr. Brooks. Gifts and contributions during his Rectorship to benefit the Choir School.

THE ROELIF H. BROOKS MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1979

\$5,000

Established by William G. Miller to be used for the Rector's Discretionary Fund.

THE JOHN WESLEY BROWN FUND

Founded 1940 \$500

Established in memory of the Reverend John Wesley Brown, DD, Rector of the Parish 1888–1901 to place flowers on the Altar the second Sunday in November.

THE JOHN WESLEY BROWN MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1901 \$49,244

Established by Grace Scoville in memory of the Reverend John Wesley Brown, DD, Rector of the Parish 1888–1901, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MRS. WILLI BROWN FUND

Founded 1954 \$500

The gift of Margaret J. Brown in memory of her mother to place flowers on the Altar the first Sunday in September.

THE SARAH AURELIA BRUSH FUND

Founded 1930 \$300

The gift of Charlotte Worrall to place flowers on the Chantry Altar the third Sunday in November.

THE FLORENCE V. BURDEN FUND

Founded 1961	\$10,000
Added 1962-2018	\$88,333
Added 2019	\$1,000
Added 2020	\$1,500
Added 2021	\$1,500
Added 2022	\$1,500

Established by Mrs. Florence V. Burden to benefit the Choir School and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM A. M. BURDEN III FUND

Founded 1962	\$25,000
Added 2001-2018	\$18,500
Added 2019	\$1,000
Added 2020	\$1,500
Added 2021	\$1,500
Added 2022	\$1,500

Established by his grandmother, Florence V. Burden, to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE SARAH REMSEN BURNHAM FUND

Founded 1945

\$500

The gift of Mrs. Charles H. Mellon and William DeForest Manice in memory of their mother to place flowers on the Altar the fourth Sunday in February.

THE ELIZABETH BURR COLUMBARIUM AND HIGH ALTAR FUND

Founded 2007 \$5,000 Added 2008- 2015 \$100,114 Added 2018 \$22,343

Established by Elizabeth Burr to be used for the maintenance and possible expansion of the Columbarium and for the maintenance and enhancement of the high altar.

\mathbf{C}

THE CATHERINE B. CANDA CHOIR SCHOOL FUND

Founded 2004 \$300 Added 2005 \$50,000

Established under the will of Catherine B. Canda. The income to be used for the support of the Choir School.

THE CATHERINE B. CANDA FUND

Founded 2005 \$5,000 Added 2016 \$250

Established under the will of Catherine B. Canda. The income to be used for the work of the Women of Saint Thomas.

THE LUCY C. CAREW FUND

Founded 1920 \$986

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ZACK CARR III MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2001 \$15,000

Established under the will of Zack Carr III to be used for corporate purposes of the Church.

THE BEATRICE L. CARSON FUND

Founded 2013 \$11,800 Added 2014-2015 \$10,475

Established for the general charitable purposes of the Parish and to support the Choir School.

THE MAURA M. CARTER FUND

Founded 1933 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CARROLL L. & CONSTANCE B. CARTWRIGHT FUND

Founded 1961 \$1,000

Established to encourage contemporary arts in religion.

THE HERBERT CASTEL FUND

Founded 1986 \$1,685

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE BARTHOLOMEW CAVANAGH FUND

Founded 1947 \$100

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT A. CHAMBERS FUND

Founded 1952 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHAPEL OF THE RESURRECTION FUND

Founded 1929 \$1,000

Established by Margaret Crane Hurlbut for flowers in the chapel on Easter.

THE MARIETTA PEARSONS CHAPIN FUND

Founded 1954 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ALFRED MCCREA CHAPMAN FUND

Founded 1978 \$5,000

Established by Sarah McCrea Chapman Jones to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE LUCY CHAUNCEY FUND

Founded 1952 \$500

Established by Mrs. Leland Eggleston Cofer to place flowers on the Chantry Altar the first Sunday in March in memory of Lucy Chauncey.

THE CHOIR BOYS FUND

Founded 1965 \$2,850 Added 1966–1996 \$160,711

Established by the Vestry from fees and royalties of the Choristers to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE CHOIR SCHOOL ALUMNI SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1946 \$1,500 Added 1963-1992 \$3,747

Established with offerings by Choir School Alumni to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE CHOIR SCHOOL FUND

Founded 1975 \$400 Added 1976-2010 \$399,626 Added 2013 \$20,000 Added 2021 \$45,900 Added 2022 \$9,000

Established by the Vestry for the benefit of the Choir School or, by action of the Vestry, for other corporate purposes.

THE CHOIR SCHOOL BUILDING FUND

Founded 1986 \$14,076 Added 1987-1994 \$580,446

Established to provide for the new Choir School building.

THE CHOIR SCHOOL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1978 \$5,000

Added 1978-2015 \$325,907 Added 2017 \$97,492

Established in 1978. Funds added 1995-96 include \$100,000 from the 75th Anniversary of the Choir School. Funds added 2005 - \$26,985 from the estate of Holmes Easley. Funds added 2015 - \$42,442 from the estate of Canon John Andrew. Funds added 2017-\$97,492 from the estate of Michael Hunter.

THE ENGLISH CHOIR FUND

Founded 1995 \$20,000

Established by the Music Committee for concerts by visiting English choirs.

THE ELIZABETH CLARK FUND

Founded 2018 \$228,572

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE SIBYLY. CLARK FUND

Founded 1988 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MR. AND MRS. WILLIAM ANDREWS CLARK FUND

Founded 1928 \$1,000

Established to place flowers on the Altar the first Sunday in March and the third Sunday in October.

THE GRACE M. CLARKE FUND

Founded 1965 \$2,000

Established by Mabel Clarke for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MARIANNA COLLINS AND HAROLD CLAUSEN FUND

Founded 1979 \$2,352 Added 1983 \$577

Established for both the music program and corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ALFRED CLAY FUND

Founded 1988 \$200

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GORDON H. CLEM SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1995 \$43,320 Added 1996-2014 \$293,061 Added 2015 \$200

Established to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE EDWARD FRANKLYN COLE FUND

Founded 1943 \$77,976

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDWARD FRANKLYN COLE SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1943 \$5,000

Established under the will of Mary Lee Cole to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE MAUD D. COLE FUND

Founded 1997 \$89,012

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE COMMUNITY SERVICE PROJECTS FUND

Founded 1975 \$1,769 Added 1976-1979 \$4,225 Added 2014 \$5,000

Established for community service projects.

THE COMMUNITY SERVICE PROJECTS FUND

Founded 1981 \$25,000 Added 1989-1991 \$24,188

Established by Grace S. Powers for community service and corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GODFREY PIERSON CONNFELT FUND

Founded 1928 \$800

Established to place flowers in the Chapel of the Resurrection the third Sunday in January and on Christmas.

THE JANICE L. CONZET FUND

Founded 2012 \$375,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and for the Choir School.

THE FRANCIS COOKE AND JOHN HOWLAND FUND

Founded 1937 \$3,064

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT COOKINGHAM MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1998 \$8,662

Established under his will to be used for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE ADELAIDE J. CORBETT FUND

Founded 1960 \$1,000 Added 1961-1963 \$ 12,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MAYBELLE J. CORBETT FUND

Founded 1973 \$1,000 Added 1975-1980 \$163,460

Established by her husband, R. Leroy Corbett for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LEONIE DEBARY CROSS FUND

Founded 1954 \$15,951

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GUERNSEY CURRAN FUND

Founded 1950 \$1,000

Established to place flowers on the Altar the second Sunday in May.

THE JAMES ROSS CURRAN FUND

Founded 1944 \$500

Established to place flowers on the Altar the fourth Sunday in October.

D

THE ANNIE KELLOGG DALE FUND

Founded 1914 \$10,000

Established for fresh air work.

THE MARY CLARK DE BRABANT FUND

Founded 1940 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MARY CLARK DE BRABANT FLOWER FUND

Founded 1940 \$500

Established to place flowers on the Altar the third Sunday in December.

THE SAMUEL JARVIS DENNIS FUND

Founded 1932 \$101,821

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHAUNCEY MITCHELL DEPEW FUND

Founded 1944 \$668,497

Established under the will of Anne Depew Paulding for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CLAUDE DEROBERTS FUND

Founded 1980 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HAZEL AND HARRISON S. DODGE
MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1982 \$1,000 Added 1983-2008 \$50,956 Added 2010 \$200 Added 2022 \$93,750

Established by Martha J. Dodge to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE MARTHA J. DODGE CONTINUO ORGAN PRESERVATION FUND

Founded 2002	\$5,000
Added 2003-2007	\$30,027
Added 2008	\$5,000
Added 2022	\$93,750

Established by Martha Dodge to be used for the maintenance and the preservation of the Martha J. Dodge Continuo Organ.

THE MRS. ROBERT L. DODGE FUND

Founded 1960 \$250

Established to place flowers on the Chantry Altar the second Sunday in December.

THE ROBERT BOWMAN DODSON FUND

Founded 1942 \$30,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DAYE E. DONOVAN FUND

Founded 2001 \$1,000 Added 2003 \$500

Established under the will of Mrs. Daye Donovan to be used for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE ANNE DEWITT DOMINICK FUND

Founded 1927 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ALEXANDER D. DUFF FUND

Founded 1958 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHARLES E. DUNLAP FUND

Founded 1967 \$82,169 Added 1969-1976 \$85,565

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ERNESTINE B. DURR FUND

Founded 1976 \$1,255 Added 1976–1991 \$70,167

Established for the music program, Choir School and community service or corporate purposes of the Parish.

E

THE EASTER OFFERING FUND

Founded 1953 \$2,192

Established to support the Choir School.

THE BRUCE E. EBERLE FUND

Founded 1991 \$266,588 Added 1995 \$6,198

Established to support the Choir School.

THE COMMODORE FRANK H. ELDRIDGE FUND

Founded 1939 \$3,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MR. AND MRS. JOHN ELLIOTT, JR. FUND

Founded 2008 \$25,135

Established under the will of Eleanor T. Elliott to be used for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE MAUDE E. ELLIS FUND

Founded 1959 \$19,208

Established to place flowers on the Altar every Sunday in October in memory of William Harris Douglas and Robert Erskine Douglas and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PAUL R. EMMONS FUND

Founded 2019	\$23,446
Added 2020	\$1,000
Added 2021	\$48,336
Added 2022	\$46,622

To establish the Father John Andrew Choristership at the Choir School.

ENDOWED BED FOR NURSERY CARE BY JESSE ROBERTSON

Founded 1918 \$2,000

Established for the procurement of the Angel's Minister

ENDOWED BED FOR NURSERY CARE BY MRS. GEORGE ARENTS

Founded 1918 \$2,000

Established for the procurement of the George Arents bed.

ENDOWED BED FOR NURSERY CARE BY MRS. EDMUND C. CONVERSE

Founded 1918 \$2,000

Established for the procurement of the Louise Converse bed.

ENDOWED BED FOR NURSERY CARE BY MRS. MARIUS DE BRABANT

Founded 1928 \$2,000

Established for the procurement of the Gerald Clark Kling

ENDOWED BED FOR NURSERY CARE BY **COLONEL THOMAS DENNY**

Founded 1930 \$2,000

Established for the procurement of the Louise Jenkins Denny bed.

ENDOWED BED FOR NURSERY CARE BY MRS. J. WILLIAM KILBRETH

Founded 1931 \$2,000

Established for the procurement of the Rutgers Barclay

THE ROBERT ENDO FUND

Founded 1997 \$7,918

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JULIA B. ENGEL FUND

Founded 1985 \$100,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish (\$50,000), the Rector's Discretionary Fund (\$49,000) and flower Memorial Fund (\$1,000).

THE IRVINE J. ENGLISH FUND

Founded 1996 \$400

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JOHN HENRY EYDELER FUND

Founded 1958 \$500

Established to place flowers on the Altar the second Sunday in August.

THE ANNE J. EXLINE FUND

Founded 2013 \$292,324 Added 2015 \$855

To be used for the corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HARRIS FAHNESTOCK FUND

Founded 1940 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MABEL METCALF FAHNESTOCK FUND

Founded 1930 \$5,217

Established by Harris Fahnestock for corporate purposes

of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM FAHNESTOCK FUND

Founded 1955 \$11,000

Established by Julia G. Fahnestock to support the Choir

School.

THE FRANCES S. FALCONER FUND

Founded 2005 \$795,922

Established under the will of Frances S. Falconer. To

be used for corporate purposes of the Parish and for the establishment of the Frances S. Falconer Choristership at the Choir School.

THE CHARLES VALENTINE AND SARAH CRANE FAILE FUND

Founded 1929 \$500

Established by Jane Rutherford Faile to place flowers on the Altar the third Sunday in May.

THE JANE RUTHERFORD FAILE AND LENA SUCCA FUND

Founded 1956 \$200 Added 1958–1975 \$28,273

Established by Mrs. John George Succa to assist the work of the Altar Guild, and to place flowers on the Altar on Mother's Day and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE RALPH N. FALES FUND

Founded 1972 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GENERAL DEWITT CLINTON FALLS FUND

Founded 1938 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FANNIE KENYON FELTON FUND

Founded 1942 \$143,904

Established by Henry E. Felton for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CAROLYN W. FERRIDAY FUND

\$5,000
\$115,000
\$5,000
\$15,000
\$5,000
\$12,875

Established for work among the underprivileged.

THE EDITH MARY FERRIS FUND

Founded 1949 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE E. HAYWARD AND AMELIA PARSONS FERRY FUND

Founded 1976 \$3,000

Established by Harriet Ferry Manice to place flowers on the Altar the Sunday near February 14, Sunday near February 17 and Sunday near June 30. Funds also to be used to support the Choir School.

THE HENRY KEEP FLOWER MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1881 \$5,000

Established by Roswell P. Flower and his wife in memory of their son to assist the working poor of Saint Thomas.

THE MARGARET W. FORSHAY FUND

Founded 1982 \$121,349 Added 1983-1988 \$5,230,016

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish (\$121,349) and to benefit the Choir School.

THE FREE PEW ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 1943 \$3,000 Added 1943–1961 \$3,110

Established as a fund to free the pews and for corporate purposes of the Parish. The pews were declared free as of November 1, 1961.

THE GEORGE G. AND SARA L. BALLANTINE FRELINGHUYSEN FUND

Founded 1952 \$2,000 Added 1953 \$2,000

Established to support the Choir School.

 \mathbf{G}

THE MARION B. GACCIONE FUND

Founded 2018 \$100,000 Added 2019 \$66,212

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE KINGSLEY GANSON ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 1998 \$75,000

Established with funds received from the Kingsley Ganson Church of the Epiphany Charitable Choir Trust in memory of Kingsley Ganson. The income to be used to further our choristers' musical education through the music program at Saint Thomas Church.

THE ELSIE LEE GARTHWART FUND

Founded 1966 \$5,000 Added 1972 \$5,987

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JAMES W. GERARD FUND

Founded 1953 \$1,000

Established to place flowers on the Altar the first Sunday in September.

THE SUMNER GERARD FUND

Founded 1966 \$1,000 Added 1970-2009 \$48,000 Added 2010 \$250

Established by Colonel and Mrs. James W. Gerard for corporate purposes of the Parish and funded through the Sumner Gerard Foundation.

THE SUMNER GERARD MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2010 \$20,000

Established under the will of James W. Gerard II in memory of his father Sumner Gerard for the corporate purposes of the parish.

THE HAROLD LESLIE GIBBS MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 193 \$3,500

Established by Parishioners in memory of the Reverend Harold L. Gibbs (assistant minister at Saint Thomas Church for six years) to provide scholarships to the Choir School.

THE PATRICIA STUART GILBERT FUND

Founded 1975 \$7,777 Added 1977–1992 \$158,934

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FRANK LEGRAND GILLISS FUND

Founded 1937 \$4,202

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT GOELET SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1965 \$75,000 Added 1973 \$20,000

Established to provide scholarships for and to benefit the Choir School.

THE CHARLES A. GOULD FUND

Founded 1928 \$500

Established to place flowers on the Altar the last Sunday in December.

THE WILLIAM S. GOULD FUND

Founded 1967 \$1,000

Established to maintain and preserve the Gould tapestry.

THE GRACE INREACH FUND

Founded 2007 \$40,000

Established by an anonymous parishioner to provide assistance to parishioners in need.

THE MARGARET A. GRAHAM FUND

Founded 1964 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELIZABETH SWORDS GRANT FUND

Founded 1984 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HENRY AND GEORGE C. GRAVES FUND

Founded 1934 \$2,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DORIS L. GRAY SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 2011 \$328,405 Added in 2013 \$1,300

Established under the will of Doris Gray to provide scholarships to students at the Choir School.

THE CARL F. GREENWAY FUND

Founded 1969 \$1,000 Added 1972-1978 \$328,935

Established for the music program.

THE HAROLD E. GROVE FUND

Founded 1992 \$425,000 Added 1994 \$146,226

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ETHEL J. GRUEN FUND

Founded 1978 \$500

Established by Robert Gruen for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE OLGA H. GUGGENHEIM FUND

Founded 1937 \$5,000 Added 1939-1970 \$170,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FLORENCE D. HAFER FUND

Founded 1949 \$500

Established to place flowers on the Altar the third Sunday

in September.

THE DOROTHY BURGOYNE HAIGHT FUND

Founded 1982 \$1,491 Added 1986

\$180,013

Established for the Rector's Discretionary Fund.

THE EMMA GERTRUDE KEEP HALSEY FUND

Founded 1909

\$50,000

Established for the Halsey Day Nursery.

THE JULIA BLANCHE HANFORD FUND

Founded 1948 \$9,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PHILANDER C. HANFORD, EMMA C. O. HANFORD AND CHARLES W. HANFORD FUND

Founded 1948 \$336,263

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PHILANDER C. HANFORD, EMMA C. O. HANFORD & CHARLES W. HANFORD

FLOWER FUND

Founded 1948

Established to place flowers on the Altar the first Sunday

in July.

THE JOYCE D. HARDY FUND

Founded 1974

\$3,035

\$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JOSEPH W. HARPER FUND

Founded 1896

\$5,000

Established for the maintenance of the Chantry Altar.

THE ANNIE P. HARRIS FUND

Founded 1942

\$1,655

Established by proceeds of an insurance policy by Annie P. Harris, an employee of the Parish for many years, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FAMILY OF MR. AND MRS. RICHARD B. HARTSHORNE FUND

Founded 1970 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE BRODERICK HASKELL FUND

Founded 1987 \$50,000

Established for the new Choir School (\$25,000) and for corporate purposes of the Parish (\$25,000).

THE JANE MCNEELY HARDING FUND

Founded 2001 \$1,500

Established by David Blake and Leslie Harding. The income to be used to place flowers on the High Altar on the third Sunday in August in loving memory of Jane McNeely Harding and for the support of members and families of the Parish who are living with cancer.

THE HAYDEN & FANDETTA ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 2001 \$1,000 Added 2003 \$500

Established by John-Peter Hayden, Jr. and David Fandetta. The income to be used for the preservation of the Chantry Chapel.

THE ALICE FLORINE HAYNE FUND

Founded 1961 \$41,269

Established to place flowers on the Altar at Christmas and Easter and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HEADMASTER'S 30TH ANNIVERSARY SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1984 \$9,466 Added 1985-1998 \$16,750

Established in honor of Gordon Clem to provide scholarships for the Choir School.

THE MARY BUCKELEW HELME FUND

Founded 1936 \$8,358 Added 1938 \$1,643 Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE NORA H. HENSLEY FUND

Founded 1957 \$1,000

Established for purposes of the Choir School.

THE CAROLYN K. HEROD FUND

Founded 1996 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM ROGERS HEROD FUND

Founded 1975 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE RICHARD HESCHKE CHORISTERSHIP FUND

Founded 2018 \$500,000

Choristerships assist the school by offsetting a portion of the cost of housing, nurturing, and educating the choristers.

THE MARY C. HIGGINS FUND

Founded 1956 \$25,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT W. HIGGS FUND

Founded 1964 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ARTHUR TURNBULL HILL FUND

Founded 1937 \$500

Established for purposes of placing flowers on the Altar the last Sunday in November.

THE ARTHUR TURNBULL AND MARION FRENCH HILL FUND

Founded 1936 \$48

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LYMAN NORTHROP HINE FUND

Founded 1970 \$5,000 Added 1974-1983 \$60,000

Given by Sibyl Y. Clark in memory of her first husband for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DANIEL T. HOAG FUND

Founded 1912 \$3,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PHILIP B. HOFMANN FUND

Founded 1966 \$1,000 Added 1967-1991 \$14,000

Gifts from the Philip B. Hofmann Charitable Trust. Income to be used for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE NANCY B. AND JOHN B. HOFFMANN FUND, IN HONOR OF GERRE HANCOCK

Founded 2001 \$931,022 Added 2002 \$371,250

Given in thanksgiving for Dr. Hancock's thirty years of faithful service to the Parish as Organist and Master of Choristers. The purpose of the fund is to support the position of the Organist and Master of Choristers, or if such a position no longer exists, for the general corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDWARD PRESCOTT HOOPER, PRIEST MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1996 \$39,478

Established by Richard P. Whitmore for maintenance of the Anglo-Catholic Liturgy.

THE ALFRED HOPKINS FUND

Founded 1941 \$1,144

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FRANCIS LAURENS VINTON HOPPIN FUND

Founded 1942 \$500

Added 1962 \$500

Established to place flowers on the Altar on the second Sunday in October.

THE MATILDA J. HORN FUND

Founded 1965 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WALTER HOVING FUND

Founded 1990 \$20,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILBUR FRANKLIN HOWELL FUND

Founded 1964 \$250

Established for purposes of the Choir School.

THE LEANDER TOWNSEND HOWES FUND

Founded 1959 \$1,500

Established for benefit of the Choir School.

THE LEANDER TOWNSEND HOWES FUND

Founded 1982 \$81,053 Added 2008 \$9,824

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MRS. REUBEN HOYT FUND

Founded 1891 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHARLES P. HUNTINGTON FUND

Founded 1900 \$2,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELIZABETH J. HURLBUT, JOSEPH RILEY HURLBUT, AND ROBERT RILEY HURLBUT FUND

Founded 1950 \$500

Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the fourth Sunday in June.

THE MARGARET CRANE HURLBUT FUND

Founded 1933 \$260,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish (\$200,000). To maintain and place flowers in the Resurrection Chapel every Sunday (\$25,000). Choir School Scholarships (\$25,000). Garments for St. Barnabas House of The Episcopal Mission Society (\$10,000).

THE MARGARET HAVENS HURLBUT FUND

Founded 1932 \$1,000

Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the first Sunday in May and the third Sunday in June.

THE WILLIAM HENRY HURLBUT FUND

Founded 1928 \$500

Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the third Sunday in February.

THE ERIC HURNER MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1996 \$25,000

Established for music programs.

THE ERIC HURNER FUND

Founded 1996 \$50,000 Added 1997-2001 \$129,050

Funds to be used at the discretion of the Rector.

THE ALICE MARY HYDE FLOWER FUND

Founded 1954 \$500

Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the third Sunday in November.

THE ALICE MARY HYDE FUND

Founded 1954 \$1,000

Established for purposes of the Altar Guild.

THE ISABEL CAMPBELL HYDE FUND

Founded 1955 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE RALPH MEAD HYDE FAMILY FUND

Founded 1954 \$1,000

Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the Sunday after Ascension Day and the Sunday after All Saints' Day.

I

THE HORACE L. INGERSOLL AND MARGARET CUSTIS INGERSOLL FUND

Founded 1997 \$5,560 Added 1998-2002 \$1,201

Established for purposes of the Choir School and the Parish.

J

THE ANNE ANDREW JARMAN ALTAR GUILD FUND

Founded 2008 \$1,850 Added 2010-2013 \$700 Added 2014 \$100

Established by The Reverend Canon John Andrew in memory of his beloved sister. To be used for the benefit of the Altar Guild.

THE ISABELLA W. JEX FUND

Founded 1967 \$78,874

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JOHN RAVEN JOHNSON FUND

Founded 1983 \$5,000 Added 1984-1986 \$15,685

Established by Keith R. Johnson for faculty sabbaticals and teaching apprenticeships at the Choir School or other purposes of the Choir School.

THE RUSSEL BRIAN JONES MEMORIAL (FORMER CHORISTER) FUND

Founded 1977 \$3,000 Added 2004 \$10,000

Established for Choir School Scholarships for minority students.

THE DONALD J. JOSLYN FUND

Founded 1997 \$25,000 Added 1998-2000 \$16,562

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MARY LATHAM GURNEE JUDGE FUND

Founded 1973 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

K

THE PATRICK J. KANE FUND

Founded 1963 \$7,386

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ALEXANDER KELEMAN FUND

Founded 1969 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MAY L. KELLER FUND

Founded 1970 \$2,237

Proceeds of a savings account established by May L. Keller in trust for Saint Thomas Church for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JAMES P. KINEON AND BEATRICE CORNELL SHIVERICK FUND

Founded 1966 \$1,000

Established by Vira C. Kineon for placing flowers on the Altar at Christmas and Easter.

THE VIRA C. KINEON FUND

Founded 1936 \$3,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ADELAIDE M. KING FUND

Founded 1936 \$500

Established by Josephine G. Hill for placing flowers on the Altar on the first Sunday in November.

THE MR. AND MRS. SAMUEL HAMILTON KISSAM FLOWER FUND

Founded 1936 \$1,000

Established by William Kissam for placing flowers on the Altar on the first Sunday in October and the first Sunday in December.

THE MR. AND MRS. SAMUEL HAMILTON KISSAM FUND

Founded 1934 \$15,051

Established by William Adams Kissam for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM ADAMS KISSAM FUND

Founded 1965 \$25,565 Added 1973-1974 \$422,863

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JAMES R. KNAPP FUND

Founded 1954 \$853

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE KNICKERBACKER FUND

Founded 1927 \$14,950

Established by Helen M. Knickerbacker in memory of her husband Henry Knickerbacker, and her sons William Henry Knickerbacker and Henry Knickerbacker, Jr., for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MATEEL R. KUBIK FUND

Founded 1990 \$16.023

Established for purposes of the Choir School.

L

THE EDITH LAMB FUND

Founded 1966 \$1,000

Established for purposes of the Altar Guild.

THE ARTHUR HAROLD LAND FUND

Founded 1987 \$18,970

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FATHER LANG MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1990 \$16,775 Added 1991-1993 \$6,975

Established to provide special music for 11:00 a.m. service on Easter Sunday.

THE EDMUND C. LARKIN FUND

Founded 1995 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HELGA LASKO FLOWER FUND

Founded 2013 \$5,000

To be used for Christmas and Easter Flowers in memory of Helga Lasko. Also in memory of Reverend Herman Brueckner, Julia Brueckner, Meta Lenz, Herman Lenz, Anneliese Lasko, Hans Georg Lasko and Henry Lasko.

THE EMILY FERRIS BROOKS LAZAR FUND

Founded 1941 \$3,000

Established by Sheda Torbert Synder in memory of Dr. Roelif H. Brooks' daughter for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FRANCIS HENRY LENYGON FUND

Founded 1954 \$1,000 Added 1973-1978 \$21,000 Established by Jeanette Lenygon for placing flowers on the Altar on the second Sunday in June.

THE OGDEN NORTHROP LEWIS, JR. CHORISTERSHIP FUND

Founded 2005 \$204,660 Added 2006 \$201,716 Added 2007 \$93,700

Established by Mr. and Mrs. Ogden Northrop Lewis as a memorial to their son. To be used to offset the cost for a chorister to attend the Choir School.

THE JOSEPH GRAY LINDSAY MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1990 \$500

Established with a gift from Emilie T. Lindsay. Income to be used for the Rector's Discretionary Fund.

THE HENRIETTA PORTER LIPPINCOTT ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 1949 \$20,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HENRIETTA PORTER LIPPINCOTT FUND

Founded 1950 \$3,541,564

Established for charities and corporate purposes of the Church.

THE MARY JANE LITTLE FUND

Founded 1927 \$500

Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the second Sunday in January.

THE MARGARET JAMESON LITTLEFIELD MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2000 \$1,500

Established under the will of Margaret Jameson Littlefield to be used for corporate purposes of the Church.

THE JOHN Q. LOCKMAN FUND

Founded 1963 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE E. VICTOR LOEW FUND

Founded 1951 \$1,000

Established by his wife to place flowers on the Altar the third Sunday in April.

THE KENNETH A. LOHF FUND

Founded 1989	\$10,770
Added 1990-2003	\$625,352
Added 2004	\$384,421

The income to be used to support the Saint Thomas Church Concert Series as the Director of the series determines. In the event that the Concert Series is terminated, the income will be used to support the positions of Associate and Assistant Organists and Choir Directors, fund the creation of new choral and organ works for the church, and subsidize vocal and instrumental groups that appear with the Choir.

THE AUGUSTUS LUDWIG MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1971	\$6,499
Added 1974	\$1,030

Established by Ida E. M. Ludwig for corporate purposes of the Church.

THE WINIFRED W. LYNCH FUND

Founded 1962 \$5,423

Established for benefit of the Choir School.

M

THE ADELE P. MACPHERSON FUND

Founded 1970 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and Choir School.

THE WALLACE MAGNANI FUND

Founded 1996 \$32,500 Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HENRIETTA MAGUIRE FUND

Founded 1994 \$5,000

Established for benefit of the Choir School.

THE GEORGE HENRY MAHLAR FUND

Founded 1957 \$1,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDWIN AND MILDRED MANCHESTER FUND

Founded 1994 \$7,460

Established for purposes of the Parish and the Choir School.

THE HARRIET FERRY MANICE FUND

Founded 1975 \$1,000

Established by her children for placing flowers on the Altar on the Sunday nearest May 8.

THE HAYWARD F. MANICE FLOWER FUND

Founded 1990 \$5,000 Added 1991-2013 \$8,500 Added 2014 \$1,000

A gift from Mrs. Beatrice G. Manice in memory of her husband. Income to be used to provide flowers in the Church annually on June 21st in memory of Hayward F. Manice.

THE WILLIAM DEFOREST MANICE MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1976 \$15,000

Established by his wife for corporate purposes of the Parish and the Choir School.

THE BEATRICE D. MARONY FUND

Founded 1965 \$19,176 Added 1967 \$25,280

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and Choir School scholarships.

THE DOROTHY MARSH MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2001 \$170,653

Established under the will of Dorothy Marsh to be used for corporate purposes of the Choir School.

THE ELEANOR F. MARVIN FUND

Founded 1990 \$45,000

Established with a gift from the estate of Eleanor F. Marvin. \$25,000 to be used for corporate purposes of the Parish and \$20,000 for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE JAMES R. MASSEY MEMORIAL FLOWER FUND

Founded 2002 \$500 Added 2003 \$500

Established by Evelyn Cordell. The income to be used to place flowers in the Resurrection Chapel annually on May 5 and September 28 in memory of James R. Massey.

THE CALVIN SLOANE MAY FUND

Founded 1954 \$114,729

Established to be disbursed by the Rector for charitable purposes.

THE LOUISE J. MCCONNELL FUND

Founded 1946 \$3,266

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish from proceeds from a savings account in trust for St. Thomas Church.

THE ANNE MCCUTCHEON MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1998 \$3,000

Established under her will to be used for corporate purposes of the Church and the Choir School.

THE MEMORIAL HYMNAL AND PRAYER BOOK ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 1956 \$1,233 Added 1957-1993 \$17,525

Established for memorial gifts of \$20 each to purchase hymnals and prayer books in perpetuity.

THE MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1967 \$955 Added 1967–1998 \$88,125 Added 2010 \$350

Established by the Vestry in memory of George Arthur Wilson (Warden 1960–1967) to provide Choir School scholarships or for corporate purposes of the Parish. This fund is also the recipient of gifts made in memory of deceased Parishioners.

THE MEN'S ASSOCIATION FUND

Founded 1934 \$5,300

Established from gifts of the Men's Association of Saint Thomas Church from 1934-1957 for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MEN'S COUNCIL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1959 \$29,904

Established from proceeds of benefit performances produced by the Choir School under the Men's Council auspices for purposes of Choir School scholarships.

THE METCALF FLOWER FUND

Founded 1997 \$1,000 Added 1998-2002 \$29,000

Established with funds received from Karen Metcalf. The income to be used to place flowers on the High and Chantry Chapel Altars annually in memory of her parents, grandmother and brother as follows: High Altar: third Sunday of May in memory of Ida May Ives, fourth Sunday of May in memory of Albion E. Metcalf. second Sunday of June in memory of Albion and Natalie Metcalf, third Sunday of July in memory of Natalie Ives Metcalf, last Sunday of August in memory of Albion E. Metcalf II, first Sunday of September in memory of Ida May Ives, last Sunday of October in memory of Natalie Ives Metcalf, last Sunday of December in memory of Albion E. Metcalf and Easter and Christmas in memory of Ida May Ives, Albion E. Metcalf, Natalie Ives Metcalf and Albion E. Metcalf II. Chantry Chapel Altar: All Sundays in the month of June in memory of Albion and Natalie Metcalf.

THE VERONICA MARY SIEGER AND DOROTHY A. MEYER FUND

Founded 1985 \$900 Added 1986–1988 \$4,630

Established by Carl S. Meyer and Christopher Wilde to benefit boys at the Choir School.

THE MARY W. MILLBANK FUND

Founded 1976 \$40,000

Established for purposes of the Choir School or corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE SAMUEL MILLBANK FUND

Founded 1969 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DAVID DECKER MILLER FUND

Founded 1967 \$500

Established by his mother, Mrs. Kenneth D. Miller, for purposes of placing flowers on the Altar on the third Sunday in August.

THE OLIVE CLARK MILLER FUND

Founded 1979 \$5,000

Established by her husband, William G. Miller. Funds to be used at the discretion of the Rector.

THE WILLIAM G. MILLER FUND

Founded 1985 \$50,000

Established in memory of Olive Clark Miller for corporate purposes of the Church.

THE WILLIAM R. MILLER FUND FOR NEW MUSIC COMPOSITION

Founded 2007 \$50,000

Established to support the commissioning of new music.

THE REGINA V. A. MILLHISER FUND

Founded 1965 \$1,000 Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MOESCHLIN/HAAS ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 2018 \$100,000 Addded 2019 \$40,000 Added 2020 \$47,500 Added 2021 \$100,000 Added 2022 \$200,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LANCASTER MORGAN CHOIR SCHOOL FUND

Founded 1952 \$1,000 Added 1953 \$4,000

Established by Mrs. Morgan in memory of her husband, a member of the Vestry from 1917 to 1938 and Warden from 1938 to 1946 for purposes of the Choir School.

THE LANCASTER MORGAN FUND

Founded 1957 \$18,263

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE KATHERINE J. MORGAN FUND

Founded 1897 \$3,000

Established by the Employment Society of Saint Thomas Church for the poor of the Parish.

THE ANITA H. H. MORRELL FUND

Founded 1958 \$1,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDNA B. MORRIS FUND

Founded 1997 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FREDERICK M. MORRIS FUND

Founded 1972 \$414,319 Added 1974–1976 \$14,935

Established from gifts, offerings and fees during his Rectorship for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FREDERICK AND DOROTHY MORRIS FUND

Founded 1998 \$500

Established with a gift from Nomina Horton to be used for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE KATHERINE C. MORRIS FUND

Founded 1975 \$10,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DR. LEWIS RUTHERFURD MORRIS FUND

Founded 1937 \$500

Established by his wife, Katherine L. S. Clark Morris, for placing flowers on the Altar on the second Sunday in December.

THE JESSIE MUDDIMAN FUND

Founded 1935 \$1,905

Funds to be used at the discretion of the Rector.

THE MR. AND MRS. EUGENE MUNSELL FUND

Founded 1944 \$1,000 Added 1957 \$1,000

Established by their daughter, Margaret Wheeler Forshay, for placing flowers on the Altar on the fourth Sunday in March.

THE JOHN MUNSON MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1989 \$1,000

Established for purposes of the Choir School.

THE ELIZABETH W. MCCONIHE MURPHY FUND

Founded 1968 \$9,993 Added 1970-1980 \$109,182

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MUSIC FUND

Founded 1976 \$26,017 Added 1977–1983 \$7,321 Established for the music program of the Parish.

N

THE LYDA M. NELSON FUND

Founded 1976 \$2,000

Established for benefit of the Choir School.

THE JEAN S. H. NEWELL FUND

Founded 1973 \$99,279 Added 1983-1990 \$15,833

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE RHODA D. NEWMAN FUND

Founded 194 \$250

Established by her son, Randall M. Newman for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the third Sunday in February.

THE PARKER NEWTON FUND

Founded 1949 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELIZABETH VAN BOKKELEN NICHOLS FUND

Founded 1954 \$500

Established by her family for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the last Sunday in March.

THE SPENCER VAN BOKKELEN NICHOLS FUND

Founded 1947 \$300

Established by his wife, Virginia C. Ward Nichols, for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the first Sunday in July.

THE PHILIP R. NOBLE FUND

 Funded 1980
 \$10,000

 Added 201
 \$86,019

 Added 2015
 \$1,188

Established for support of the Choir School.

THE T. TERTIUS NOBLE FUND

Founded 1954 \$2,465 Added 1989-1991 \$9,425 Added 2012 \$10,000

Established by former Choir Boys in memory of Dr. Noble for support of the Choir School.

THE T. TERTIUS NOBLE CENTENNIAL CHORISTERSHIP

Founded 2018 \$208,628 Added 2019 \$337,053 Added 2020 \$1,000

Choristerships assist the school by offsetting a portion of the cost of housing, nurturing, and educating the choristers.

THE FRANK NORTHROP FUND

Founded 1944 \$500

Established by his wife, Anna L. Northrop, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

0

THE IDA SPEAR O'NEILL FUND

Founded 1944 \$1,000

Established by her niece, Margaret Wheeler Forshay, for placing flowers on the Altar on Easter and the fourth Sunday in September.

THE VIRGINIA B. ORWIG FUND

Founded 1985 \$5,000 Added 1987 \$90

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

P

THE ALTON BROOKS PARKER AND AMELIA DAY CAMPBELL PARKER FUND

Founded 1963 \$4,000

Established to assist a boy at the Choir School.

THE AMELIA CAMPBELL PARKER FUND

Founded 1961 \$1,000 Established for corporate purposes of the Parish

THE PAUL R. PALMER FUND

Fonded 1990 \$3,500 Aded 1991-2006 \$9,275 Added 2007 \$5,000

Established to maintain the Altar of Saint Thomas Church.

THE FORREST H. AND M. EVELINE THOMASON PARKER FUND

Founded 1953 \$1,000

Established by Eveline Parker Todd for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PARSONS FUND

Founded 1864 \$1,000

Established by Mrs. William Barclay Parsons from proceeds of a fair to procure clothing for poor children.

THE SALLIE HARRIS MILES PARSONS FUND

Founded 1938 \$10,000

Established by Susan S. Miles for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JAMES A. AND ELIZA R. PATTESON FUND

Founded 1940 \$1,000

Established by their daughter for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ANNE DEPEW PAULDING FUND

Founded 1944 \$25,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHARLES COOK PAULDING FUND

Founded 1939 \$25,000 Founded 1980

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MARGARET W. PEEBLES FUND

Founded 1995 \$10,000 Founded 1973

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELEANOR PENNELL FUND

Founded 2018 \$25,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MILDRED PERBIX MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1998 \$3,000

Established under her will for corporate purposes of the

Parish.

THE RICHARD S. & GLADYS T. PERKIN FUND

Founded 1995 \$25,000 Added 1998-2003 \$100,000

Established for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE INGER H. PETERSEN FUND

Founded 1997 \$88,348 Added 2001 \$94,559

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE THEODORA ANDREWS PETROPULOS FUND

Founded 2017 \$100,000 Added 2018 \$100,000 Added 2019 \$100,000

Established under the will of Theodora Andrews

Petropulos to be used for the benefit of the music program.

THE WALLACE B. PHILLIPS FUND

Founded 1964 \$5,000

Established by his wife Ann Philips for placing flowers on the Altar on Easter.

THE STELLA D. PIERSON FUND

\$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GERTRUDE R. PRICHETT FUND

\$800

Aded 1974 \$240

Established in memory of Harriet A. Langwig for

corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT H. PORTER MEMORIAL **SCHOLARSHIP FUND**

Founded 1989 \$1,045 Added 1990-1994 \$625

Established for scholarships at the Choir School.

THE GRACE S. POWERS FUND

Founded 1981 \$100,000 Added 1981-1998 \$702,696 Added 2010 \$146,206

Established for community service projects, for the benefit of the Choir School, and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE P. MICHAEL PULEO FUND

Founded 2019 \$45,171

THE LESLIE C. QUICK SR CHOIR MUSIC FUND

Founded 1985 \$100,000

Established by Leslie C. Quick Sr to benefit the choir and music programs at Saint Thomas Church and Choir

School.

THE DORIS G. QUINN FUND

Founded 1999 \$50,000

Established under the will of Ms. Doris Quinn to be used

for corporate purposes of the Church.

R

THE ADELAIDE R. READ FUND

Founded 1948 \$2,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PHILIP STANDISH READ SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 2002 \$100,000

Established under the will of Philip Standish Read. The income to be used to provide funds for the further education, in a private secondary school, of a student in need of scholarship money in the graduating class of the Saint Thomas Choir School. The student shall be one who, in the opinion of the Headmaster, has shown an interest in and an aptitude for a career in the visual arts. In any years in which there is no such student any unused income shall be added to the principal.

THE READER'S DIGEST ENDOWED SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1984 \$25,000 Added 1985 \$25,000

Established by a grant from the New York Community Trust for partial scholarships to academically qualified students from middle income families.

THE RECTOR'S FUND

Founded 1983 \$4,000 Added 1983 and 1989 \$10,043

Established by Cornelia Ensign Claiborne to be used at the discretion of the Rector.

THE JULIE PARSONS REDMOND FUND

Founded 1961 \$194,591

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HELENE AND JAMES S. REILLY, JR. ORIGINALLY JAMES S. REILLY, JR. FUND

Founded 1968 \$2,000 Added 1969-1996 \$29,000 Established for Choir School scholarships and for placing flowers on the Altar on the first Sunday in February, the third Sunday in March, and the third Sunday in July in memory of James S. Reilly, Jr.

THE ELIJAH LEE REQUA FAMILY MEMORIAL TRUST FUND OF SAINT THOMAS CHURCH

Founded 1968 \$171,865

Established by Emma Matilda Requa for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELLA LEE REQUA FUND

Founded 1962 \$5,812

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE REREDOS PRESERVATION FUND

Founded 2004 \$9,872

Established by Clare Fahnestock Moorhead to initiate an endowment for the preservation and maintenance of the Reredos above the High Altar which was a gift of the Fahnestock family.

THE MARGARET S. REYNBOLD FUND

Founded 1978 \$5,000 Added 1980 \$5,000 Added 1984-1991 \$1,150

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MARGARET CONKLING REYNOLDS FUND

Founded 1992 \$50,000 Added 1992 \$1,846,000 Added 1993 \$300,000

Established under the will of Mrs. Margaret C. Reynolds to be used solely and exclusively to maintain the Church building and the Parish House.

THE REVEREND DOCTOR CYRIL C. RICHARDSON LITURGICAL MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1982 \$2,000 Added 1984-1994 \$7,800

Established by his wife, Louise B. Richardson, for corporate purposes and to provide honorarium for a

Richardson Lecturer as designated by the Rector.

THE STURGIS LEE AND ELISABETH SLOAN RIDDLE FUND

Founded 2013 \$1,000,000 Added 2014 \$752,104

\$900,000 to be used for the corporate purposes of of the church and \$100,000 to be used at the discretion of the Rector.

THE CHARLES N. VANBRAAM ROBERTS FUND

Founded 1927 \$1,300

Established by his mother, Katherine Aymar Roberts, for placing flowers on the Altar on the first Sunday in January.

THE TOURO ROBERTSON FUND

Founded 1944 \$300,816

Established by his daughter, Jessie S. Robertson, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FRANCIS A. ROBINSON FUND

Founded 1981 \$25,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Church and Choir School.

THE FRANCIS A. ROBINSON OPERA FUND

Founded 1986 \$8,165 Added 1987-1998 \$41,200

Established by gifts from friends and Parishioners to enable Choir School Boys to attend performances at the Metropolitan Opera.

THE GERTRUDE SENEY ROBINSON FUND

Founded 1938 \$500

Established by her daughter, G. Louise Robinson, for placing flowers on the Altar on the second Sunday in March.

THE WILLIAM HARRIS ROOME FUND

Founded 1952 \$1,000

Established by his wife for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the first Sunday in November.

THE ARLENE CRANGLE ROSNER FLOWER FUND

Founded 1982 \$2,560 Established for placing flowers on the Altar on the third Sunday in August in memory of Lillian Dickerson Crangle and James Frederick Crangle, her parents, and Jerome I. Rosner, her husband.

THE ARLENE CRANGLE ROSNER FUND

Founded 1982 \$10,238

Established for Choir School scholarships.

THE JOEL E. ROTHERMEL FUND

Founded 1984 \$1,000

Established by his wife for purposes of placing flowers on the Altar each Sunday in August.

THE EDITH L. RUTTER FUND

Founded 1939 \$250

Established by her sister, Alice Rutter Reynolds, for purposes of placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the fourth Sunday in June.

THE FRANCES L. RUTTER FUND

Founded 1958 \$4,977

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

S

THE SAINT THOMAS CHORAL MUSIC ENDOWMENT FUND: A LIVING MEMORIAL

Founded 2001 \$13,143 Added 2003-2004 \$91,566 Added 2005 \$27,357

Established to provide for the financial future of the choral services at Saint Thomas Church. The income will be used to support the costs of the Music Department and the Gentlemen of the Choir.

Contributors:

Mr. and Mrs. Sidney Stires, for All Saints Sunday

Multiple contributors in honor of Dr. and Mrs. Gerre Hancock

THE SAINT THOMAS CHURCH ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 2014	\$1,000
Added 2016-2018	\$2,000
Added 2019	\$8,000
Added 2020	\$1,000

The income to be used for the corporate purposes of the Church.

THE SAINT THOMAS CHURCH FLOWER ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 2016	\$2,000
Added 2018	\$2,021

The income to be used for memorial flowers at the high altar.

THE SAINT THOMAS CHURCH FLOWER FUND

Founded 2007	\$5,809
Added 2014-2016	\$2,200
Added 2018	\$2,000

Established to offset the cost of flowers for the Church.

THE SAINT THOMAS CHURCH FUND

Founded 2007	\$4,000
Added 2012	\$22,917
Added 2018	\$10,000

Established to keep general bequests designated for corporate purposes of the Church.

THE GERTRUDE SAMPSON SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1964	\$3,000
Added 1965-1971	\$14,000

Established for Choir School scholarships.

THE MRS. CHARLES W. SANDERS FUND

Founded 1928 \$500

Established by her daughter, Ethel B. Sanders Gould, for placing flowers on the Altar on the fourth Sunday in January.

THE DOROTHY LEGG SANDERSON FUND

Founded 1968 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GEORGE STEVENS SCHERMERHORN FAMILY FUND

Founded 1974 \$1,000

Established by Elsa Carla Schermerhorn for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on one designated Sunday between October 1 and June 1.

THE HARRIET PULLMAN SCHERMERHORN FUND

Founded 1957 \$15,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PHILIP GRIM AND ELSA CARLA SCHERMERHORN MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1988	\$200,000
Added 1989-1992	\$109,942

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GEORGE R. D. AND SARAH SCHIEFFELIN MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1976	\$100,000
Added 1976-2013	\$1,405,745
Added 2014	\$65,671

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE DOROTHY BELSTERLING SCHLEY FUND

Founded 1987	\$41,000
Flower Fund	\$9,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and for the Flower Fund.

THE JANE E. SCHMELZEL FUND

Founded 1930 \$3,000

Funds to be used at the discretion of the Rector.

THE EDITH M. SCHROEDER FUND

Founded 1968 \$500

Established by her sister, Florence J. Schroeder, for placing flowers on the Altar on the Sunday nearest August 20.

THE LOUISE B. SCOTT FUND

Founded 1958 \$25,000 Added 1960 \$144,149

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE SCOTT MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1961 \$1,074,449

Established by George S. Scott for St. Luke's Hospital to support a special medical program.

THE FRANCES WASSON SCOVILLE FUND

Founded 1945 \$500

Established by her daughter, Grace Scoville, for placing flowers on the Altar on the last Sunday in September.

THE GRACE SCOVILLE FUND

Founded 1959 \$20,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ROBERT SCOVILLE FUND

Founded 1943 \$10,000

Established by his sister, Grace Scoville, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MAJOR BOONE SEEGERS FUND

Founded 1953 \$500

Established by his mother, after he was killed in action in Korea, for purposes of the Choir School.

THE WILLIAM SELF, ORGANIST AND MASTER OF THE CHOIR 1954-1971, SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1972 \$1,030 Added 1973 \$280 Established by his friends for purposes of Choir School scholarships.

THE WILLIAM SELF MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1998 \$10,162

Established under his will for corporate purposes of the Parish

THE SERVICE CLUB MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1960 \$3,000 Added 1960-1964 \$3,540

Established by Margaret Forshay in memory of Dr. Roelif H. Brooks, for the work of the Women of Saint Thomas.

THE MARIE J. SPAULDING SHANNON FUND

Founded 1969 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LEANDER B. AND CLARISSA LYMAN SHAW FUND

Founded 1946 \$23,266

Established by their daughter, Ida A. Shaw, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LILLIAN B. AND IDA A. SHAW FUND

Founded 1951 \$24,140

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DONALD W. SHERWOOD FUND

Founded 1947 \$500

Established by his sister, Emily Jane Sherwood, for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the second Sunday in June.

THE NELSON T. SHIELDS, JR. FUND

Founded 1975 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JANE AYRAULT BAILEY SIBLEY FUND

Founded 1943 \$100

Established by her daughter, Marion Ayrault Sibley Hall, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE AUGUSTUS H. SKILLIN FUND

Founded 1932 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HAROLD V. SMITH FUND

Founded 1963 \$300 Added 1964 \$300

Established by his wife and his daughter for placing flowers on the Altar of the Resurrection Chapel on December 13 and flowers on the Chantry Altar on the second Sunday in December.

THE SHEDA TORBERT SNYDER THANK OFFERING FUND

Founded 1939 \$5,695 Added 1940 \$2,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE VALENTINE P. SNYDER FUND

Founded 1936 \$5,000

Established by his wife, Sheda Torbert Snyder, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE VALENTINE PERRY AND SHEDA TORBERT SNYDER FUND

Founded 1961 \$7,500 Added 1962–1968 \$72,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE REV. WILLIAM P. AND ANN COOKE SNYDER FUND

Founded 1936 \$6,417

Established by their daughter-in-law, Sheda Torbert Snyder, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FUND FOR SPECIAL ALCOHOLISM COUNSELING

Founded 1983

\$1,804

Established in memory of the Reverend Samuel B. Bird, fr. for alcoholism counseling and for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE SPECIAL OFFERINGS FUND

Founded 1927

\$222,848

Established by the Vestry for Christmas, New Year's and Easter offerings from 1927–1951 for corporate purposes of the Parish. The amount shown excludes \$50,000 transferred in 1968 to the Arents Organ Fund.

THE EDMUND M. SPEER FUND

Founded 1954 \$3,900 Added 1956 \$1,000

Established by Edmund M. Speer, Sexton of Saint Thomas Church for 26 years, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHARLES STEELE FOUNDATION FUND

Founded 1925 \$300,000 Added 1934-1939 \$524,847

Established for support of the Choir School.

THE CHARLES STEELE FUND

Founded 1945 \$100,152

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDWARD S. STEVENS FUND

Founded 1927 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ARNOLD AND MATILE STIEFEL FUND

Founded 1958 \$2,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ELEANOR H. STORER FUND

Founded 1955 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDITH M. AND CHARLES R. STOUGHTON FUND

Founded 1964 \$300

Established by their daughter, Mrs. Frederick W. Nichol, for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on All Saints Day.

THE CHARLES H. STOUT FUND

Founded 1928 \$15,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE HENRIETTA M. STOUT FUND

Founded 1942 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ALLEN JAY AND ALICE MORSE STROUSE FUND

Founded 1988 \$1,000 Added 1989-2003 \$322,473

Established with a gift from Mrs. Alice J. Strouse to be used for the benefit of the Boys at the Choir School.

THE ERNESTINE T. SUMNER FUND

Founded 1964 \$64,928

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LORRAINE SWARTS FUND

 \mathbf{T}

Founded 1980 \$30,000 Added 1981-1982 \$111,547

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MOULIKA TAN MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1985 \$695

Established to help settle refugees or for corporate

purposes of the Parish.

THE KATHLEEN TAPPEN FUND

Founded 1996

\$4,374

Established under the will of Kathleen Tappen. To be used for the benefit of the Choir School to facilitate its musical performances.

THE ELSIE W. TAUSSIG SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1983 \$2,500 Added 1983-1985 \$59,565

Established for Choir School Scholarships.

THE FRANCES LAKE THACHER FUND

Founded 1962 \$4,500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

A THANKSGIVING FUND

Founded 1930 \$300

Established by Mr. and Mrs. Oscar G. Connfelt for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar at Easter.

THE REV. WILLIAM THOELEN FUND

Founded 1994 \$25,265

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE DOROTHY Q. THOMAS FUND

Founded 1989 \$5,000 Added 1991-2004 \$15,000 Added 2005 \$1,000

Established by her daughter, Eleanor T. Elliott, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM C. STUBING AND RONALD L. THOMAS FUND

Founded 2017 \$200,769 Added 2018 \$149,866 Added 2019 \$75,729 Added 2020 \$75,198

Established to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE MABEL SIMMONS TILDEN ENDOWMENT FUND

Founded 1968 \$71,933

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE AMBROSE G. AND EVELINE PARKER TODD FUND

Founded 1953 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JOHN REID TOPPING FUND

Founded 1952 \$500

Established for support of the Choir School.

THE FRANCIS M. TOWNSEND FUND

Founded 1974 \$1,063

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE PARSONS TROTTER FLOWER FUND

Founded 2002 \$1,000

Established with a gift from Joan and John Hoffman. The income to be used to place flowers on the Altar on the Third Sunday in Advent in memory of Parsons Trotter.

THE PARSONS TROTTER MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2002 \$10,000

Established under the will of Parsons Trotter to be used for corporate purposes of the Church.

THE WILLIAM AUSTIN AND ELIZABETH FOSTER TUCKER FUND

Founded 1941 \$5,000

Established by their daughter, Marion Tucker, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JAMES L. TUOHY MD FUND

Founded 2017 \$250,000 Added 2018 \$250,000 Established to provide scholarships at the Choir School.

THE W. RUTH TURNER FUND

Founded 1946 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

 \mathbf{V}

THE VALENTINE FUND

Founded 1948 \$456,896

Established by Eliza W. Valentine for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM IRWIN VANDERHOEF FUND

Founded 1943 \$300

Established by his mother in his memory for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MRS. WILLIAM HALSTED VANDER POEL FUND

Founded 1953 \$500

Established for support of the Choir School.

THE WILLIAM VAN NORTWICK FUND

Founded 1996 \$32,184

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and designated for the Loening Hancock Organ.

THE FLORENCE E. VAN RAALTE FUND

Founded 1966 \$100

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE VESTMENT FUND

Founded 1998 \$100

Established with a gift from Lyle J. Sanford to be used for purchasing and repairing vestments.

THE KATHRYNE S. VON STADE FUND

Founded 1980 \$7,772

Established in memory of her father, Charles Steele, for purposes of Choir School scholarships.

THE LINDA GRIFFITH VORSANGER FUND

Founded 1983 \$1,000

Established for prayers for the repose of her soul.

THE CLARA S. E. VOSS FUND

Founded 1956 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE FRANK S. VOSS FUND

Founded 1950 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

W

THE REV. CHARLES WALLACE CHORISTERSHIP FUND

Founded 2022 \$500,000

A new choristership established by Terry Thompson in recognition of Fr. Wallace's distinguished service as Head of School from 2007 to 2019.

THE HANNAH M. WALLEN FUND

Founded 1947 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JOHN A. WARDEN FUND

Founded 1935 \$300

Established by Countess Irene Cittadini for placing flowers on the Chantry Altar on the second Sunday in November.

THE VIRGINIA ARABELLA WASHBURN FUND

Founded 1891 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JOHN JAY WATSON FUND

Founded 1958 \$10,000

Established by his wife, Eliza J. Watson, as income to support St. Barnabas House of The Episcopal Mission Society.

THE JOHN JAY WATSON AND ELIZA J. WATSON FUND

Founded 1958 \$2,000

Established for placing flowers on the Altar every Sunday in April.

THE JOHN JAY WATSON MEMORIAL SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1958 \$50,000 Added 2013 \$250

Established by his wife, Eliza J. Watson, for scholarships at the General Theological Seminary.

THE JOHN JAY WATSON SUSTENTATION FUND

Founded 1958 \$75,000

Established by his wife, Eliza J. Watson, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MAUDE B. WATSON FUND

Founded 1965 \$1,000

Established by her sister, Eva F. Burnside, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ALBERT WAYCOTT FUND

Founded 1950 \$3,204

Established by proceeds of a savings bank account by his wife, Blanche Waycott, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE BLANCHE E. WAYCOTT FUND

Founded 1950 \$5,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE MRS. EDWIN H. WEATHERBEE FLOWER FUND

Founded 1948 \$600

Established by her daughter, Mrs. Samuel Millbank, to place flowers on the Altar on the third Sunday in March.

THE MRS. EDWIN H. WEATHERBEE FUND

Founded 1951 \$5,000 Added 1953 \$5,000

Established by her son-in-law and daughter, Dr. and Mrs. Samuel Millbank, for support of the Choir School.

THE WEIST ORGAN FUND

Founded 1981 \$15,000 Added 1986-1987 \$26,747

Established by Edward C. Weist for the organs and organ music at Saint Thomas Church.

THE PHYLLIS COUDERT WEAVER AND GAYLORD CHASE WEAVER, IN MEMORY OF DR. ROELIF H. BROOKS FUND

Founded 1990 \$310,000 Added 1991 \$141,033

Established for support of the Choir School (\$10,000) and for corporate purposes of the Parish (\$441.033).

THE MEDLEY G. B. WHELPLEY FUND

Founded 1969 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LEWIS F. AND LUCY M. WHITIN FUND

Founded 1948 \$2,000

Established for the Church Periodical Society of Saint Thomas Church.

THE RICHARD PRESCOTT WHITMORE MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1996 \$39,478

Established to maintain Anglo-Catholic music.

THE HORACE E. WHITNEY FUND

Founded 1969 \$21,199

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE WILLIAM HULL WICKHAM FUND

Founded 1926 \$10,000

Established for domestic charities of the Parish.

THE BONNIE AND WALTER WILDS FLOWER FUND

Founded 1998 \$2,500 Added 2014 \$2,500

The income to be used to place Star Gazer lilies on the Resurrection Chapel Altar every June 14 in memory of Walter and on the Sunday closest to January 22 in memory of Bonnie.

THE BONNIE WILDS FUND

Founded 2014 \$5,000

Established in honor of Father Mead's leadership and service to the Saint Thomas congregation and larger community.

THE EILEEN ZU WIED FUND

Founded 1986 \$20,000

Established for benefit of the Choir School.

THE ETHLIN AND CLARENCE WILLIAMS MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2009 \$5,000

Established under the will of Clarence Williams to be used to assist with the needs of the elderly of the parish..

THE HERSCHEL V. WILLIAMS FUND

Founded 1989 \$3,035 Added 1990 \$1,091

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE CHARLES AND DOROTHY WILSON FUND (FORMERLY THE DOROTHY J. WILSON FUND)

Founded 1986 \$72,088 Added 1987-2001 \$4,906,008 Added 2008 \$160,685

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish, including the Choir School.

THE CHARLES T. WILSON FUND

Founded 1974 \$3,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GEORGE A. WILSON PRIZE FUND

Founded 1968 \$1,000

Established by Walter G. Baker for an annual prize to a student at the Choir School.

THE GEORGE A. WILSON MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 1996 \$10,000

Established by his wife, Elizabeth Dent Wilson, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE GEORGE A. WILSON SCHOLARSHIP FUND

Founded 1996 \$100,000

Established to provide Choir School scholarships.

THE GEORGE AND ELIZABETH WILSON FUND

Founded 1996 \$100,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish and the Choir School.

THE JEAN FISCHER WILSON FUND

Founded 1981 \$1,000

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE ANNA M. WISE FUND

Founded 1948 \$10,000 Founded 1914

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE EDITH GRANDIN WISE FUND

Founded 1974 \$500

Established for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE VIRGINIA DELANO WITHAM FUND

Founded 2001 \$25,000 Established under the will of Virginia Delano Witham in memory of The Reverend Leslie Lang. To be used for the Altar, the Sacristy and worship in the Sanctuary.

THE EMILY MORRELL AND WILLIAM GRAHAM **WOOD FUND**

Founded 1938 \$4,725

Established by their granddaughter, Sheda Torbert Snyder, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE LENORE WISER WOOD MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2000 \$39,045

Established under the will of Lenore Wiser Wood to be used for the benefit of the Choir School.

THE ADA R. WOODS FUND

Founded 1958 \$2,000

Established by her sister, Agnes E. C. Woods, for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE JAMES T. WOODWARD FUND

Founded 1910 \$10,000

Established to give relief to the poor of the Parish.

THE MARY E. WOODWARD FUND

Founded 1894 \$4,000

Established to give relief to the poor and sick of the Parish.

THE SARAH A. WOODWARD FUND

\$5,029

Established for the poor of the Parish.

THE W. WOODWARD III MEMORIAL FUND

Founded 2000 \$3,500

Established with a donation from the Woodward family in memory of William Woodward III. To be used for corporate purposes of the Church.

Y

THE CECILE YOUNG FUND

Founded 1936

\$3,000

The gift of Gwendolyn Heyworth Koch in memory of her mother. Income to be used for corporate purposes of the Parish.

THE YUILLE FUND

Founded 1928

\$250

The gift of Nancy W. Long Yuille as a thank offering. Income to be used to place flowers on the Chantry Altar annually on Holy Innocents Day.

THE NANNY W. LONG YUILLE FUND

Founded 1945

\$5,000

Established to provide \$4,000 for corporate purposes of the Parish and \$1,000 for the Altar Guild.

THE THOMAS BURKS YUILLE FUND

Founded 1936

\$500

The gift of Nancy W. Long Yuille in memory of her husband. The income to be used to place flowers on the Altar annually on the third Sunday in November.

THE MR. AND MRS. THOMAS BURKS YUILLE FUND

Founded 1945

\$1,000

The gift of Mrs. Harry Payne Bingham, Mrs. Carroll Carstairs, Countess Dunraven and Mrs. Wolcott Blair in memory of their parents. Income to be used to place flowers on the Altar annually on the third Sunday in November.

Z THE ALMA GLUCK ZIMBALIST FUND

Founded 1940

\$1,000

Established under the will of Alma Gluck Zimbalist. Income to be used for music.

PLANNED GIFTS

Many of the most significant gifts in the history of Saint Thomas Church and Choir School have been estate gifts. There are many ways to do this, and a few of these are described below. The Rector and the Vestry encourage members of the Parish to remember Saint Thomas in their estate plans.

BEQUESTS

All adults should have a will and decide upon the legacy they leave for the people and institutions they love – if you do not define your estate provisions, state law will do so. If you would like to make a provision in your will to leave a specific sum to the Church, the language of the bequest to Saint Thomas Church should read:

"I give to Saint Thomas Ch the sum ofdo	urch in the City and County of New York, for its corporate purposes, llars."
If you decide to leave a percentage	of your estate, your will could include the following language:
	urch in the City and County of New York, for its corporate purposes, he rest, residue and remainder of my estate."
The form of bequest to Saint Thom	as Choir School would read:
"I give to Saint Thomas Church in the City and County of New York, for the support of the Saint Thomas Church Choir School, the sum of dollars" or " percent of the rest, residue and remainder of my estate."	

These forms of bequest may be changed in consultation with the Rector and the Head of School to reflect the intentions of the donor. For example, a donor may wish to create a choristership, which is an endowment gift of at least \$500,000.

LIFE INSURANCE

It is also possible to support Saint Thomas through gifts of life insurance by:

Naming the Church or School as the beneficiary, in whole or in part, of an existing policy or as a contingent beneficiary, or

Cashing in a policy and donating all or part of the cash value to Saint Thomas.

OTHER WAYS TO GIVE

It is also possible to make significant gifts to Saint Thomas through Charitable Remainder Trusts, Charitable Lead Trusts and retirement plans, such as 401(k)s and IRAs.

COLUMBARIUM

When finalizing these important end-of-life decisions, please consider the Columbarium in the Resurrection Chapel. The Columbarium consists of five hand-carved oak cabinets, each with one hundred private niches for the permanent storage of remains.

It is important to talk with your family and your financial advisor before making a decision about including a gift to Saint Thomas in your will. Saint Thomas cannot render any legal or tax advice.

For more information, please contact Bruce Smith.

Planned Giving at Saint Thomas has two guilds: the Cornelius Roosevelt Duffie Guild for the Church and the T. Tertius Noble Guild for the Choir School. For many people, a testamentary gift is the most substantial gift they will ever make. All alumni, parishioners and friends of Saint Thomas are the beneficiaries of the extraordinary past gifts made in this way. If you intend to remember Saint Thomas in your will, please contact Bruce Smith, Chief Advancement Officer. Unless anonymity is requested, the members of each guild are listed below.

Saint Thomas Church received gifts from the following estates in 2022:

The Estate of Martha J. Dodge
The Estate of Rita A. Hughes
The Estate of Jill V. Hunt

The Estate of John and Mary Alyce Merow

The Cornelius Roosevelt Duffie Guild

Ms. Rita M. Abbott Ms. Janice Conzet* Mrs. Walter H.B. Hansen Mr. Jesse Adelaar Miss Mary T. Dailey* Mrs. Kazie Metzger Harvev Dr. Richard Heschke* Dr. Emokpolo E. Aideyan Mr. and Mrs. James D. Daniels Mr. Matthew R. Ailev Ms. Martha J. Dodge* Mr. Harry Lee Hinson* and Mr. Gregory C. Zaffiro Mr.* and Mrs. Joseph A. Donner Mr. and Mrs.* John B. Hoffmann The Rev. Canon John G.B. Andrew Ms. Rita Hughes* Ms. Tessa Dunning OBE, DD* Mr. Lawrence Edghill* Ms. Jill V. Hunt* Mr. James Stepleton and Ms. Betsy F. Ashton The Honorable* Dr. Charles E. Ingram and Mrs. Thomas E. Engel Mrs. Doris Tiffany Williams Barth* Mr. Thomas E. Kamm Ms. Adelaide P. Farah Dr. Barbara H. Battle* Ms. Ann Hall Kaplan Mr. Colin Fergus* Mr. Louis M. S. Beal* Mrs. Linda E. Ketchum-Pompili and Mr. Paul M. Pompili Mr. James Norwood Finklea II Mr. and Mrs. J. Truman Bidwell, Jr. Mr. John V. Frank Ms. Karen Beecher Kimber* Mr. and Mrs.* Francis Xavier Blouin Mr. and Mrs. Glenn T. Fuller Mr. Stephen John Koch Willem (Pim) and Jo* Brans Mr. Daniel E. Gabriele, Jr. Mr. Kenneth F. Koen Ms. Roberta S. Brill Mrs. Anthony S. Gaccione* Mr. Timothy J. Kryger Mrs. Elizabeth Y. Burr* Mr. Michael William Galligan Richard D. Lester, MD Mr. Stuart L. Caldwell and Mr. Willem P. Pruissers Mr. Edward L. Gibson Dr. Barry John Capella Miss Fay M. Lewis Miss Jean C. Grainger Mr. Ronald Ciavolino* Ms. Pamela A. Lewis The Rev. William Ms. Elizabeth Clark* and Mrs. Jane Greenlaw Ms. Christina Louis Mr. and Mrs.* Charles W. Clute, Jr. Mr. G. William Haas Mr. Mathew J. Maine

* Deceased

and Mr. George J. Moeschlin III

Miss Barbara Como*

Dr. Mary C. Mattis

Ms. June H. Mayer

Mr. Charles F. McCown

Mr. and Mrs. Dennis McCrary*

Mr. George Lowman McGeary*

Ms. Joyce McLean*

The Reverend Andrew C. Mead and Canon Nancy H. Mead

Mr. and Mrs. John E. Merow*

Mr. James C. Michael, Jr. and Mr.* Richard A. Nelson

Mr. and Mrs.* Reid R. Miles, Jr.

Mr. Harold Miller

Mr.* and Mrs. Eugene Mintz

Miss Joan T. Mischo

Mr. Jonathan L. Mortimer

Mr. Brian Tetsuo Moto

Mr. and Mrs. Peter Nadosy

Dr. Richard B. Nelson and Dr.* Beth Nelson

Mr. John G. Oghia

Fr. David Pace

Ms. Lucia Paolise*

Mr. and Mrs.* Richard J. Pearse, Jr.

Mr. Fredericus G. Peelen*

Mr. and Mrs. Paul W. Pendorf, Jr.

Mr. David P. Pengilly

Miss Eleanor Pennell*

Ms. Barbara W. Pettus

The Reverend and Mrs. Thomas Pike

Mrs. Hope Bryce Preminger*

Mr. P. Michael Puleo*

Mr. B. Franklin Reinauer III

Mr. and Mrs. James M. Rhodes

Mr. Douglas J. Riccardi

Mrs. Diane Russell*

Mr. George Salley

Mrs. Joan M. Saunders*

Ms. Bonnie L. Schiffer

Mr.* and Mrs. Stanley DeForest Scott

Miss Susan E. Seaman

Dr. R. Stephen Seibt

Sir George* and Eleanor, Lady Shearing

The Reverend John C. Smith*

Mrs. Georgeann Sohn*

Mr. Chenault Spence and Mr. Guido Aren

Mr. Gregory A. Stoskopf

Mr. Robert Strachan*

The Venerable and Mrs. Howard Stringfellow

Ms. Martha Swope

Ms. Beatrice J. Thompson*

Messieurs David N. Tisdale-Woods and Gary L. Tisdale-Woods

Mrs. Mary Mylenki Trager

Mr. Charlie J. Updegraph*

Mr. Jan Willem van Bergen Henegouwen

Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Warwick

Mr. and Mrs.* O. Wendell Welch

Mr. Raymond G. Wells

Mr. Terry Wells

Ms. Charlotte Wiggers

Mrs. Walter Warren Wilds*

Mr. John R. Wilson, Jr.

Mr. William Henry Andrew Wright II

Mr. and Mrs. Edward Wronski

Mr. Craig Zeichner

Mr. and Mrs. Frederic Zonsius

The T. Tertius Noble Guild

Named after the founding choirmaster of the Choir School, the T. Tertius Noble Guild recognizes those people who have included Saint Thomas Choir School in their estate plans.

Saint Thomas Choir School gives thanks for the gifts from the following estates in 2022:

The Estate of Martha J. Dodge
The Estate of Rita A. Hughes
The Estate of Georgia E. Hofmann
The Estate of Christopher M. King
The Estate of Richard W. Pendleton, Jr.

The Estate of Alan V. Waters

Dr. K.F. Andrews* Mrs. Esther Kamm

Mr. Philip H. Baldwin, Jr. Mr. Christopher M. King*

The Reverend Canon John Birdsall

Mr. Kenneth F. Koen

Mr. David L. Brown

Mr. Jeffrey Lawrence*

Mr. Nicholas Browne Ms. Elaine Liner
The Reverend and Mrs. R. C. Burlington Dr. Sean McFate

Mr. Darby Cannon Mr. Easton T. McMahon

Dr. Barry John Capella Ms. Karen Metcalf

Mr. Ronald Ciavolino* Mr.* and Mrs.* William R. Miller

Mr. and Mrs.* Charles W. Clute, Jr. Mr.* and Mrs. William Minshall

The Reverend and Mrs. David C. Cobb Mr.* and Mrs. Eugene G. Mintz

Ms. Janice L. Conzet* Dr. Richard B. Nelson and Dr. Beth* Nelson

Mr. David K. Dimmock* Mr. and Mrs. John Charles Newsome

Ms. Martha J. Dodge*

Ms. Janice Parkinson-Tucker* and Mr. James S. Tucker

Mr. Paul R. Emmons Mr. Richard W. Pendleton*

The Honorable* and Mrs. Thomas E. Engel Mr. Andrew J. Pierre

Mr. and Mrs. Bruce Englebrecht Mr. B. Franklin Reinauer III

Mr. and Mrs. Alan F. Gettner Mrs. Edmee Reit*

Mr. Donald H. Goodyear, Jr. Dr. Stephen G. Schaeffer

Dr. Gerre* and Mrs. Judith Hancock Miss Susan E. Seaman

Mr. Martin T. Harris Dr. R. Stephen Seibt

Mr. Mark Holup Lady Eleanor Shearing

Mr. and Mrs. Stephen M. Jones Mrs. Amanda Slattery

Mr. Charles W. Soltis*

Mr. Robert G. Strachan*

Mr. and Mrs. Neal Stuber

Ms. Theresa S. Thompson

Mr. J. Stanley Tucker

The Rev. Charles Wallace

Ms. Charlotte Wiggers

Mr. John R. Wilson, Jr.